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P R O C E E D I N G S 1 


  MR. GREENE:  Today's date is October 4th, 2 


2019.  My name is Kevin Greene, and I'm with Eagle 3 


Intel Services.  And we've been contracted by the North 4 


Carolina General Assembly Subcommittee on the ACP to 5 


gather facts and report those facts back to the 6 


committee.  We are recording this interview today.  And 7 


I would like to have each person present to state your 8 


name, position and that you acknowledge that we're 9 


recording this interview.  And I'll start with Tom. 10 


  MR. BEERS:  Okay.  Tom Beers, I'm an 11 


investigator with Eagle Intel Services.  And I 12 


understand that this is being recorded today. 13 


  MR. LANE:  Bill Lane from DEQ.  I understand 14 


this is being recorded. 15 


  MS. MUNGER:  Bridget Munger with the 16 


Department of Public Safety.  I understand this is 17 


being recorded. 18 


  MR. HARGROVE:  Drew Hargrove with DEQ.  I 19 


understand it's being recorded. 20 


  MR. GREENE:  Thank you all.  And I believe Mr. 21 


Lane would like to add something? 22 


  MR. LANE:  Yes, thank you.  We are starting 23 


this interview at 1:35 p.m.  By agreement of the 24 


parties, this interview will take no more than an hour, 25 
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so we will be concluding this interview no later than 1 


2:35.  Again, by agreement of the parties the questions 2 


to be asked will be related to Ms. Munger's official 3 


duties related to the 401 Water Quality Certification 4 


for the Atlantic Coast Pipeline and not other -- any 5 


other projects that she's worked on or anything in her 6 


personal life.  Okay. 7 


  MR. GREENE:  Thank you very much.  We'll start 8 


by just if you would just give us a brief background of 9 


your time with DEQ, when you started and the position 10 


that you served. 11 


  MS. MUNGER:  I started with DEQ in August of 12 


2006 as a communications specialist III with the 13 


Division of Soil and Water Conservation.  That division 14 


was later moved out of the agency.  Before that 15 


happened, I accepted a position with the Division of 16 


Water Quality moving over as a federally funded storm-17 


water outreach and education coordinator for the state.  18 


And that would have been February 1st, 2008, when I 19 


switched jobs there. 20 


  What followed was various reorgs, not 21 


particularly official reorgs, but within the 22 


communications shop for the department.  And eventually 23 


I ended up as PIO for two divisions, the Division of 24 


Energy, Mineral and Land Resources; as well as the 25 
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Division of Water Resources.  And eventually I became 1 


the deputy communications director for the department. 2 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  And during the timeframe 3 


of primarily 2017 and early 2018, what position did you 4 


have at that time? 5 


  MS. MUNGER:  A deputy communications director.  6 


That promotion came about midpoint of that, but I'd 7 


already assumed the duties.  I was working as the lead 8 


for both of those very busy divisions. 9 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  Yeah, I believe we found 10 


that out.  And can you give us an idea of what you did 11 


in those -- in that position as deputy communications 12 


director? 13 


  MS. MUNGER:  Each part of the work would be 14 


public information requests; taking in requests; doing 15 


the research; working with subject matter experts 16 


permitting staff to respond to those.  We get a very 17 


high volume of those at DEQ; responding to media 18 


inquiries; writing press releases; website content, 19 


maintaining that sort of thing.  Developing outreach 20 


materials, education outreach materials, PowerPoints.  21 


And just serving as a general communication consultant 22 


for staff, when they're writing reports, that sort of 23 


thing. 24 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  And can you give us a 25 
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hierarchy of who you answer to or did you supervise any 1 


employees?  So two questions there. 2 


  MS. MUNGER:  And so in that position, you sort 3 


of serve two masters.  You answer to the directors that 4 


you're serving as a PIO, but you also report to a 5 


communications director at the department level, or to 6 


a deputy communications director, then a communications 7 


director. 8 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  So in 2017, within the 9 


Division of Water Resources, who was your immediate 10 


boss or supervisor? 11 


  MS. MUNGER:  Honestly I believe it was Linda 12 


Culpepper.  There was a transition in leadership and 13 


I'm not sure what the date was. 14 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  And then you said you also 15 


had someone else that you would answer to beyond that? 16 


  MS. MUNGER:  Yes, at the department level. 17 


  MR. GREENE:  The department.  And who would 18 


that be? 19 


  MS. MUNGER:  Doug Heyl headed up 20 


communications.  And after he arrived, within a matter 21 


of a few months, Megan Thorpe came onboard to serve as 22 


a communications director.  He served as communications 23 


director/deputy secretary for public affairs, then 24 


Megan Thorpe came onboard and took over the premier 25 
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communications director role. 1 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  All right.  And we'll 2 


start with your role as it pertains to specifically the 3 


Atlantic Coast Pipeline project.  Can you just give us 4 


a brief summary of that role and your duties and 5 


responsibilities and what may have taken place during 6 


that time period of the permitting process, 7 


specifically as it relates to the Division of Water 8 


Resources? 9 


  MS. MUNGER:  So my role involved assisting 10 


with placing public notices to a degree when a draft 11 


permit might be ready for review.  And honestly, I 12 


don't remember the details of that.  But typically it 13 


would be a public notice being posted, announcing a 14 


public comment period, attending public hearings in 15 


case media showed up.  Our staff don't prefer -- they 16 


really don't want to talk on camera, so we run 17 


interference for them.  So, yeah, I'd be there for 18 


media inquiries.  And of course, if reporters were to 19 


call about the project, direct them in the right place, 20 


or if I have the information, answer it.  And for some 21 


of the community meetings. 22 


  I also worked, got information from cultural 23 


resources, that particular project carried across 24 


different programs.  And so for example, we had fact 25 
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sheets that talked about they crossed Indian burial 1 


grounds over there.  So the fact sheets for information 2 


on the project. 3 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  And how closely did you 4 


work for those people making the decision for the 5 


permit? 6 


  MS. MUNGER:  I didn't work closely with those 7 


people. 8 


  MR. GREENE:  Would they reach out to you 9 


regarding, like, obviously the public hearings?  Is 10 


that something that was your function to arrange those 11 


public hearings? 12 


  MS. MUNGER: With that particular program, they 13 


were pretty self-sufficient in terms of public 14 


hearings.  They had lot of experience.  And I don't 15 


recall if I actually set up the public hearings over 16 


the years.  Honestly, I set up a lot of public… 17 


  MR. GREENE:  Sure. 18 


  MS. MUNGER:  Those still stand out to me. 19 


  MR. GREENE:  I am sure.  Was there anything 20 


within the ACP permitting process that stood out to you 21 


that was a duty that you had that you recall that was 22 


significant or a contribution to… 23 


  MS. MUNGER:  I would say, as with any big 24 


project, just making sure that the public in the public 25 
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comment period, the inquiries, people got all the 1 


information that they're looking for, we’re public 2 


servants.  And that's who we work for. 3 


  MR. GREENE:  All right.  So you dealt a lot 4 


with the media, requests for information.  And I guess 5 


interviews.  Do they -- do they want to interview 6 


people? 7 


  MS. MUNGER:  I don't remember.  I mean, some 8 


reporters call for interviews, some call for, you know, 9 


background information.  I know that on occasion I'd 10 


get a call from reporters asking if a permit had been 11 


issued.  And I would tell them I would check, you know, 12 


to try to find out the status and I let them know. 13 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  Do you recall any specific 14 


instances where there were topics that reporters would 15 


ask routinely about on the ACP? 16 


  MS. MUNGER:  There was a lot of interest in 17 


the project.  So if you were a county reporter, and the 18 


pipeline was going to impact your county, you might 19 


want to know if an erosion and sediment control plan 20 


was approved.  So they would call and ask that.  The 21 


pivotal permit was the water permit, has that been 22 


issued.  And I would confirm whether - where we were in 23 


the process, and let them know. 24 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  Did you attend any of the 25 
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staff meetings when they were discussing the project? 1 


  MS. MUNGER:  If I did, it -- no, I don't think 2 


so.  I don't recall being in one of those meetings.  So 3 


I mean, no, I don't think -- you mean permitting staff.  4 


I… 5 


  MR. GREENE:  Correct.  Yes ma'am.  Or 6 


department staff discussing the Atlantic Coast 7 


Pipeline? 8 


  MS. MUNGER:  In PIO meetings, I might talk 9 


about when I would draft a press release communications 10 


step.  But that would be a round robin setting where we 11 


go by division.  And these were not communications 12 


meetings called to talk about the Atlantic Coast 13 


Pipeline. 14 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  I'm going to show you, 15 


since it involves press, this is an e-mail that was 16 


pulled off the public server for the files regarding, 17 


and it's an e-mail dated October 24, 2017.  And I think 18 


it's a response to Elizabeth Ouzts that you may have 19 


given regarding the Atlantic Coast Pipeline.  So this -20 


- if you'd just kind of review that and basically just 21 


summarize what that request is and what the response 22 


was. 23 


  MS. MUNGER:  Okay.  What is the question? 24 


  MR. GREENE:  Can you summarize what the 25 
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question was, what they were seeking, and your response 1 


and what you may have provided? 2 


  MS. MUNGER:  It looks like she's looking for 3 


data on 401 certifications that had been applied for 4 


historically, and whether or not they were approved.  5 


That's what I would take from this.  And my responses 6 


are referring her to a very large online database that 7 


is Laserfiche where the 401 unit stores all their 8 


program files. 9 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  Was there a denials 10 


spreadsheet? 11 


  MS. MUNGER:  Excuse me, it's a public -- 12 


publicly accessible database. 13 


  MR. GREENE:  Right. 14 


  MS. MUNGER:  That's important. 15 


  MR. GREENE:  We're familiar with it. 16 


  MS. MUNGER:  Okay. 17 


  MR. GREENE:  Was she -- was there a denial 18 


spreadsheet provided? 19 


  MS. MUNGER:  I don't recall.  I don't recall 20 


if there was a denial spreadsheet.  I would refer -- I 21 


would typically refer someone, a reporter, anyone to a 22 


project file on Laserfiche that would be labeled by the 23 


project number.  And I -- quite frankly, it wasn't my 24 


job to go in and dig out all that information. 25 
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  MR. GREENE:  Right. 1 


  MS. MUNGER:  It's -- this was a convenience to 2 


be able to say here's the file.  For want of a paper 3 


file review, just easier for the requester. 4 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  All right.  I think I see.  5 


And I think she was asking here -- she'd interviewed a 6 


former North Carolina DEQ regulator who said outright 7 


denials of major 401s is pretty unusual.  Do you know 8 


who she talked to? 9 


  MS. MUNGER:  I don't. 10 


  MR. LANE:  Can she see the emails? 11 


  MR. GREENE:  Yes, I'm sorry. 12 


  MS. MUNGER:  No, I don't know who she talked 13 


to. 14 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  Do you recall speaking or 15 


communicating with this particular person? 16 


  MS. MUNGER:  Not this particular exchange.  I 17 


know who Elizabeth Ouzts is-, but I don't remember that 18 


exchange. 19 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  And is she with a paper or 20 


magazine or what's her position? 21 


  MS. MUNGER:  At that point, I think she was 22 


with Southeast Energy News -- no, or something energy 23 


news, some sort of publication that focused on energy. 24 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay. 25 
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  MS. MUNGER:  I think she was freelancer. 1 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay. I figured as far as that 2 


iCloud account --  3 


  MS. MUNGER:  Yeah. 4 


  MR. GREENE:  -- she probably was. I couldn’t 5 


figure that out.  Thank you.  What were some of the 6 


major -- she contacted you about that and I've kind of 7 


alluded to this question, but was there one particular 8 


topic that most of the press wanted to know about 9 


during the ACP process? 10 


  MS. MUNGER:  No. 11 


  MR. GREENE:  No? 12 


  MS. MUNGER:  No. 13 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay. 14 


  MS. MUNGER:  No, I mean, I don't really recall 15 


that, so. 16 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  Do you remember -- do you 17 


recall anything being unusual regarding the ACP 18 


permitting process that you would have to respond to? 19 


  MS. MUNGER:  No.  Unusual?  No. 20 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  Everything was normal? 21 


  MS. MUNGER:  Yes. 22 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  And you said you weren't 23 


sure if you actually set up the hearings, the public 24 


hearings or not.  Do you remember there being a 25 
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listening session for environmental justice? 1 


  MS. MUNGER:  Yes.  Yes. 2 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  Did you set that… 3 


  MS. MUNGER:  I did set this up, yes. 4 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  What do you recall about 5 


that particular session?  And do you recall when it 6 


took place? 7 


  MS. MUNGER:  What do I recall about them? 8 


  MR. GREENE:  How it came to be, what initiated 9 


it? 10 


  MS. MUNGER:  I think in large part it was 11 


because many of the public comments we received and 12 


many of just the contact we got from community 13 


organizers indicated they wanted more information.  14 


They were concerned about the impacts of the project to 15 


their communities.  And they wanted to be heard.  And 16 


we thought it was very important that they be able to 17 


have that chance.  So we decided to go further than was 18 


required under I guess I don't know, administrative, 19 


whatever the rules are that apply there.  And hold 20 


these listening sessions.  So that's what we did. 21 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  What -- can you define 22 


environmental justice, what that is? 23 


  MS. MUNGER:  I doubt that I would give the 24 


textbook or legal definition that perhaps you or my 25 
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friends here are familiar with.  What it means to me is 1 


a mindfulness in terms of permitting, the location of 2 


industrial facilities, any of the impacts associated 3 


with it; being very mindful of their location in a 4 


community making sure that there's not a vulnerable or 5 


at-risk population that is impacted inordinately -- 6 


inordinately if I've said that correctly.  That's maybe 7 


the Cliffs Notes, the… 8 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  Sounds good to me.  Thank 9 


you. 10 


  MS. MUNGER:  Okay. 11 


  MR. GREENE:  And was that standard, or was 12 


that a normal practice in major projects? 13 


  MS. MUNGER:  Was what a more major? 14 


  MR. GREENE:  To have the public listening 15 


sessions regarding environmental justice? 16 


  MS. MUNGER:  No, it was not a standard 17 


practice.  In this particular instance, we decided to 18 


do it because there were requests for it.  And as I 19 


said before, I take the public service part of this 20 


very seriously, and try to be responsive. 21 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay. 22 


  MR. BEERS:  You said we requested.  Who at DEQ 23 


would have actually made that request for you to do 24 


that? 25 
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  MS. MUNGER:  I don't recall. 1 


  MR. BEERS:  Would you have taken that on your 2 


own initiative to do that or would it be someone above 3 


you in command that would have said let's do this? 4 


  MS. MUNGER:  I think in the case of these that 5 


I in part suggested that we should do it. 6 


  MR. BEERS:  Was there any pushback because 7 


it's not a requirement for the permit?  Was it -- do 8 


you remember any discussions to that extent? 9 


  MS. MUNGER:  No, that was -- no, no, there was 10 


support for doing these listening sessions. 11 


  MR. BEERS:  For across the board at the review 12 


process? 13 


  MS. MUNGER:  Yes. 14 


  MR. BEERS:  Okay. 15 


  MS. MUNGER:  Yes, there was absolute goal of 16 


transparency in this project and that included the best 17 


public engagement that we could achieve.  And that was 18 


-- that's what we were trying to do. 19 


  MR. BEERS  Do you believe those efforts to be 20 


that transparent delayed the review process of the 401 21 


permit in any way? 22 


  MS. MUNGER:  No. 23 


  MR. GREENE:  Were you involved in each time 24 


there was a notice of request for additional 25 
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information to the applicant? 1 


  MS. MUNGER:  I'm not… 2 


  MR. GREENE:  Would that be published in any 3 


way? 4 


  MS. MUNGER:  I’m speaking as though I still 5 


work here.  I was not involved in that part of the 6 


process, no. 7 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  When decisions were made 8 


specifically 401 water permit or certification, it was 9 


your duty to do a public press release on that? 10 


  MS. MUNGER:  We didn't always do press 11 


releases on each development in the permitting process.  12 


In fact, I don't really recall when we did the actual 13 


press releases.  I know that was done at the end of 14 


that.  That's what I recall, that one.  But -- can you 15 


repeat the question again?  I could have checked there. 16 


  MR. GREENE:  Yeah, they were okay.  You just 17 


said there was a press release involved at the end of 18 


that.  When you say end of that, is it 401 permit? 19 


  MS. MUNGER:  Yeah, at the end of that 20 


particular permitting process, correct. 21 


  MR. GREENE:  Were you involved in that 22 


particular press release? 23 


  MS. MUNGER:  Yes.  Yes. 24 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay. 25 
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  MS. MUNGER:  It was my division. 1 


  MR. GREENE:  It was your division.  Were you 2 


involved in it in this capacity working with the 3 


governor's office and their press, or their PIO --  4 


  MS. MUNGER:  No. 5 


  MR. GREENE:  -- in doing a release? 6 


  MS. MUNGER:  No. 7 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  Who would have reviewed 8 


the press release in the -- within the department? 9 


  MS. MUNGER:  Again, without remembering the 10 


today specifics of then, it would have been a subject 11 


matter expert.  Maybe the program supervisor for 12 


accuracy, a standard procedure.  I am not an engineer.  13 


So a subject matter expert and it's typical just to -- 14 


for a director to be able to see any press release 15 


going out a division director.  That's why they're the 16 


director.  And then it would be given to the department 17 


communications office for review, some of your top 18 


communications director reviews. 19 


  MR. GREENE:  And at that time would be Doug 20 


Heyl? 21 


  MS. MUNGER:  Honestly I don't know if Megan 22 


was onboard with DEQ at that point or not.  So if Megan 23 


was here, it would have gone to Megan. 24 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  And if she wasn't, who was 25 
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prior to her? 1 


  MS. MUNGER:  There was an Acting 2 


Communications Director, Jamie Kritzer.  But -- Jamie 3 


was gone by then.  Jamie was gone by then. 4 


  MR. GREENE:  Jamie Kritzer? 5 


  MS. MUNGER:  Yeah.  Yeah.  He was gone by 6 


then. 7 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay. 8 


  MR. LANE:  And spelling is K-r-i-t-z-e-r. 9 


  MR. GREENE:  Kritzer.  Thank you.  Were you 10 


ever present during any meetings, whether it was with 11 


staff or the division or the department where they were 12 


expressing any concerns over the permitting process 13 


itself? 14 


  MS. MUNGER:  Concerns about the process? 15 


  MR. GREENE:  The process? 16 


  MS. MUNGER:  No. 17 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay. 18 


  MS. MUNGER:  No. 19 


  MR. GREENE:  Do you know when the 401 was I 20 


guess certified or when it was given? 21 


  MS. MUNGER:  Approved? 22 


  MR. GREENE:  Approved? 23 


  MS. MUNGER:  Honestly I don't remember the 24 


exact date.  I know it was I believe the end of 25 
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January.  But I don't recall the exact date.  Sorry. 1 


  MR. GREENE:  All right.  Prior to that, when 2 


did you have any knowledge about when it was expected 3 


to be approved? 4 


  MS. MUNGER:  Well, in any sort of substantial 5 


permit you might hear in a casual comment that it will 6 


be finished by -- we expect it to be ready by such and 7 


such date.  But no, I don't remember specific 8 


references to when it was going to be or -- no.  It 9 


would be ready when it was ready was my take on this. 10 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  Were you ready to prepare 11 


or have you had -- did you have a draft press release 12 


prior to the issuance? 13 


  MS. MUNGER:  I don't recall if I had a draft, 14 


but the nature of my job is to be ready to knock out a 15 


press release whenever it's needed fast. 16 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  Do you want to go over? 17 


  MR. BEERS:  Yeah.  So are you familiar with 18 


the hearing officer's report that's required in certain 19 


--  20 


  MS. MUNGER:  I know what one is. 21 


  MR. BEERS:  -- 401 certifications? 22 


  MS. MUNGER:  Yes. 23 


  MR. BEERS:  In this ACP, do you remember there 24 


being a hearing officer's report that was approved up? 25 
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  MR. BEERS:  This is actually one, I'll show 1 


you the… 2 


  MR. BEERS:  Well, I'll tell you, no, there was 3 


in fact one. 4 


  MS. MUNGER:  I'm sorry, did I know there was 5 


one? 6 


  MR. BEERS:  You do -- yeah. 7 


  MS. MUNGER:  Yes. 8 


  MR. BEERS:  Are you aware in this case there 9 


was --  10 


  MS. MUNGER:  Yes. 11 


  MR. BEERS:  -- because you were. 12 


  MS. MUNGER:  It's a requirement. 13 


  MR. BEERS:  Right.  So that's the hearing 14 


officer's report.  And it's dated January 22nd I 15 


believe.  Do you understand the purpose of the hearing 16 


officer's report and what it does and how it affects 17 


the issuance of a 401 certification? 18 


  MS. MUNGER:  Do I understand the purpose? 19 


  MR. BEERS:  Do you understand -- yeah. 20 


  MS. MUNGER:  Yes. 21 


  MR. BEERS:  Okay.  Can you describe that, 22 


what's the purpose of that report, and how it affects 23 


the… 24 


  MS. MUNGER:  "For an experienced and qualified 25 
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individual who serves as the hearing officer to have 1 


thorough knowledge front to back of a project from all 2 


of our subject matter experts referencing research and 3 


data and public comments and feedback.  And everything 4 


they have learned about a project to make a 5 


recommendation -- a recommendation on whether or not an 6 


approval or a permit should be issued."  And they 7 


summarize this again to -- speaking to transparency.  8 


"This summarizes everything that's happened in this 9 


process for any member of the public to be able to 10 


review if they have questions.  And it's prepared for 11 


the director of the appropriate division." 12 


  MR. BEERS:  Okay.  Do you remember the review 13 


process for this particular hearing officer's report? 14 


  MS. MUNGER:  I was not involved in the review 15 


process. 16 


  MR. BEERS:  Not at all? 17 


  MS. MUNGER:  I don't -- if I was I don't 18 


remember. 19 


  MR. BEERS:  Okay.  I'm going to -- there is 20 


some e-mails. 21 


  MS. MUNGER:  I might have -- I might have done 22 


like -- this is like reviewing a white paper if you're 23 


a communications expert.  You don't make substance 24 


changes.  You might fix dates so they were an 25 
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Associated Press style.  You don't do that kind of 1 


editing.  I might have looked at this for formatting or 2 


something, but I don't really recall. 3 


  MR. BEERS:  Okay.  I'm just going to refer you 4 


to an e-mail. 5 


  MS. MUNGER:  I think right there, there. 6 


  MR. BEERS:  Okay.  There's the e-mail dated 7 


January 5th.  This is from Brian Wrenn back to you 8 


indicating that you've had some communications about 9 


this hearing officer's report. 10 


  SIRI:  Sorry, I couldn't quite hear you.  11 


Could you please repeat what you said? 12 


  MR. GREENE:  For the record that was not Ms. 13 


Munger. 14 


  MR. BEERS:  That was Siri (phonetic) on my 15 


phone. 16 


  MS. MUNGER:  Yeah, that was not me. 17 


  MR. BEERS:  Looks like January 4th. 18 


  MS. MUNGER:  Okay.  So this is going in the 19 


other direction. 20 


  MR. BEERS:  Exactly. 21 


  MS. MUNGER:  Okay.  Okay. 22 


  MR. BEERS:  Yeah.  This is this is Brian Wrenn 23 


responding back to you. 24 


  MS. MUNGER:  Okay.  Yeah, let me start over so 25 
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I can read it in the proper order.  That was a little 1 


confusing. 2 


  MR. BEERS:  These are confusing how they're 3 


printed off the website, but they're backwards. 4 


  MS. MUNGER:  Okay. 5 


  MR. BEERS:  Okay.  So you just read those e-6 


mails I think on January 4th and 5th, 2018. 7 


  MS. MUNGER:  Uh-huh. 8 


  MR. BEERS:  So can you describe the 9 


communication with Brian Wrenn about the hearing 10 


officer's report? 11 


  MS. MUNGER:  In summary, it just sounds like 12 


he is still working on it and fine-tuning it.  And it's 13 


going through a review process internally. 14 


  MR. BEERS:  Okay.  So how are you involved 15 


with this process?  Why is he going to -- why are you 16 


asking to have it sent to you if that's in fact what 17 


you did? 18 


  MS. MUNGER:  There could be a number of 19 


reasons why it'd be sent to me.  Someone may have asked 20 


for me -- asked for it, ask me for it. 21 


  MR. BEERS:  Well, that is the question.  Did 22 


someone ask you to get that from Brian Wrenn, do you 23 


recall that? 24 


  MS. MUNGER:  I don't recall that.  No, I 25 
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don't.  But when these -- I mean, when we review 1 


documents, they -- there can be quite a few people that 2 


are involved in that process.  So I don't recall this 3 


specific communications or who asked me for the copy.  4 


Sorry. 5 


  MR. BEERS:  There's another e-mail that may 6 


refresh your recollection.  So this e-mail above 7 


January 5th at 9:17.  It says "Brian Wrenn."  He's 8 


indicating that the secretary's office has to have it 9 


reviewed.  Do you recall that? 10 


  MS. MUNGER:  I mean I can read what's here in 11 


the e-mail. 12 


  MR. BEERS:  Yeah, I'm asking for your 13 


recollection. 14 


  MS. MUNGER:  But I don't remember that 15 


instance. 16 


  MR. BEERS:  You don't recall if the 17 


secretary's office asked you to get this report? 18 


  MS. MUNGER:  No, in fact, I mean, I don't know 19 


if he's the one who's first sharing that there.  So I -20 


- no, I don't, I'm sorry. 21 


  MR. BEERS:  Okay.  So in this e-mail, Brian 22 


Wrenn does in fact, as he said he was going to you send 23 


it to Jeff Poupart, is that his -- that's -- do you 24 


know who that is? 25 
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  MS. MUNGER:  Uh-huh. 1 


  MR. BEERS:  And CCed you, the hearing 2 


officer's report? 3 


  MS. MUNGER:  This one going backwards too.  4 


Let me just get my bearings here.  12/19, 4:15, okay.  5 


It is two -- the same e-mail here. 6 


  MR. BEERS:  Yeah, it's -- I think the way your 7 


-- the website stores and it's from multiple people, so 8 


they all have this duplicates involved. 9 


  MS. MUNGER:  Okay.  The very last one doesn't 10 


clearly show who is to and who is from. 11 


  MR. BEERS:  Which one… 12 


  MS. MUNGER:  If that's… 13 


  MR. BEERS:  What this is -- they're not all 14 


presented. 15 


  MS. MUNGER:  Yeah. 16 


  MR. BEERS:  So one of them is -- this is the 17 


one I'm talking about.  You got -- you received this 18 


from Brian Wrenn.  He CCed you this hearing officer's 19 


report. 20 


  MS. MUNGER:  Uh-huh. 21 


  MR. BEERS:  Right?  I just want to know if you 22 


recall why -- who asked you to get it and what you did 23 


with it?  And what's the reason for you to get the 24 


report? 25 







 
 


Page 27 


 


 


  MS. MUNGER:  And so again, he's courtesy 1 


copying me there.  So that's not unusual to courtesy 2 


copy communications specialist or anybody else.  You 3 


may think we'd be interested in a document.  But also, 4 


so you're asking me again, can you just -- are you 5 


again ask me if someone in particular requested it from 6 


me? 7 


  MR. BEERS:  Yes, exactly. 8 


  MS. MUNGER:  No.  I didn't -- I don't recall 9 


that. 10 


  MR. BEERS:  Okay.  Here's -- this is a little 11 


later in time.  But it's the next time we see you e-12 


mailing anything related to this.  And here you're 13 


sending this hearing officer's report out. 14 


  MS. MUNGER:  Okay. 15 


  MR. BEERS:  So it looks like you at least had 16 


a copy of it for some time now. 17 


  MS. MUNGER:  Okay.  Someone here for a review.  18 


Is this the same thread I'm looking at? 19 


  MR. BEERS:  No. 20 


  MS. MUNGER:  Okay.  Okay. 21 


  MR. BEERS:  No, but here you are sending on 22 


the 22nd.  Can you read that e-mail to see… 23 


  MS. MUNGER:  Okay.  I'm trying to figure out.  24 


I want to start -- over here. 25 
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  MR. BEERS:  Yeah, let's make sure --  1 


  MS. MUNGER:  Okay. 2 


  MR. BEERS:  -- we're in the right one. 3 


  MS. MUNGER:  And I particularly want it in the 4 


correct order. 5 


  MR. BEERS:  The one from you. 6 


  MS. MUNGER:  Okay. 7 


  MR. BEERS:  And there is an attachment, the 8 


hearing officer's report. 9 


  MS. MUNGER:  Okay. 10 


  MR. BEERS:  And who is it being sent to? 11 


  MS. MUNGER:  Sent to Karen Higgins. 12 


  MR. BEERS:  From -- to? 13 


  MS. MUNGER:  Oh, I'm sorry. 14 


  MR. BEERS:  I'm sorry.  I don't want to -- 15 


just a -- I'm sorry. 16 


  MS. MUNGER:  You're making me nervous, coming 17 


across the table. 18 


  MR. BEERS:  I'm trying to direct you to… 19 


  MS. MUNGER:  That is -- it's an e-mail to 20 


Sheila Holman and Doug Heyl. 21 


  MR. BEERS:  Okay.  Can you tell me why you 22 


were sending it to them? 23 


  MS. MUNGER:  So that they would have a copy of 24 


it. 25 
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  MR. BEERS:  Just for -- just the copy, or was 1 


there a request to -- from them to get this? 2 


  MS. MUNGER:  There may have been a request.  I 3 


don't remember the incidence of them of making a 4 


request.  I don't remember if someone else asked me to 5 


send it. 6 


  MR. BEERS:  Yeah, I was just wondering if you 7 


remember this, this -- why you were reviewing this 8 


document and what you did, what you recalled about 9 


this? 10 


  MS. MUNGER:  And so again I think I mentioned 11 


before, it's not unusual for a hearing officer's report 12 


for any project to be reviewed.  Not everyone who 13 


becomes an engineer or an environmental specialist is a 14 


particularly talented writer, some are better than 15 


others.  It's not out of the ordinary for that to be 16 


the case, just to take a look at it.  A lot of times we 17 


don't have time to do it.  But I don't recall someone 18 


asking me to do this particular thing to take this 19 


action.  I'm not saying it didn't happen because 20 


clearly it did.  But I would be dishonest if I told you 21 


I recalled that. 22 


  MR. BEERS:  Okay.  You don't recall even 23 


getting it at this time.  Actually you're looking it --  24 


  MS. MUNGER:  I see the e-mail. 25 
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  MR. BEERS:  -- it says it happened and you 1 


still recall it. 2 


  MS. MUNGER:  Okay.  And it makes sense.  You 3 


know, it's in the course of work.  But I… 4 


  MR. BEERS:  Do you recall a conversation with 5 


Brian Wrenn where you said the secretary's office wants 6 


to review this hearing officer's report? 7 


  MS. MUNGER:  No, I don't recall the 8 


conversation.  I'm sorry.  I just -- I don't. 9 


  MR. GREENE:  And backing up to that particular 10 


e-mail, it's being sent to Holman, is that correct? 11 


  MS. MUNGER:  Sheila Holman, yes. 12 


  MR. GREENE:  And what's her position? 13 


  MS. MUNGER:  She was assistant secretary -- 14 


assistant secretary for the environment for the 15 


Department. 16 


  MR. GREENE:  For the department? 17 


  MS. MUNGER:  She still is I think, yeah. 18 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  And also it's been sent to 19 


Doug --  20 


  MS. MUNGER:  Doug Heyl. 21 


  MR. GREENE:  -- Heyl who was working for the 22 


department as a PIO also? 23 


  MS. MUNGER:  No.  Doug, no.  Doug was the 24 


deputy secretary for Public Affairs. 25 
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  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  Okay.  And so in Holman's 1 


role, she would be supervising the permitting process 2 


overall? 3 


  MS. MUNGER:  That's my understanding. 4 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  I just want to clarify 5 


that.  So if she wanted it, I mean would it not go 6 


through channels instead of going outside of PIO to 7 


her? 8 


  MS. MUNGER:  Not necessarily, no. 9 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay. 10 


  MS. MUNGER:  It's entirely possible for a 11 


project that she would ask for it. 12 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay. 13 


  MS. MUNGER:  There's not a checklist that has 14 


to follow a procedure. 15 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  All right.  Did you have 16 


communications with the governor's office, Public 17 


Affairs, officers, individuals regarding the ACP? 18 


  MS. MUNGER:  No. 19 


  MR. GREENE:  No? 20 


  MS. MUNGER:  No. 21 


  MR. GREENE:  When the press release was 22 


written for the 401 permit, I believe is 1/26 23 


(phonetic), that was your press release or did the 24 


governor's office have input? 25 







 
 


Page 32 


 


 


  MS. MUNGER:  I probably would have done the 1 


first draft because it's my programs.  But again, press 2 


releases are collaborative.  I had no authority to 3 


draft a press release in a vacuum on anything. 4 


  MR. GREENE:  Right. 5 


  MS. MUNGER:  It's a collaboration.  So… 6 


  MR. GREENE:  And who would you collaborate 7 


with? 8 


  MS. MUNGER:  As I mentioned before that 9 


subject matter experts, division director to review to 10 


make sure you don't have something wrong.  Make sure 11 


there's no typos or bad dates.  And then it goes up the 12 


communications, you know, to whoever is involved in the 13 


project. 14 


  MR. BEERS:  Okay.  Were you aware of a 15 


mitigation fund being negotiated by the governor's 16 


office for the ACP partnership? 17 


  MS. MUNGER:  There's a mitigation fund.  18 


That's what -- I don't know a lot about that. 19 


  MR. BEERS:  The separate fund -- apart from 20 


the 401 permitting process, it's separate funds. 21 


  MS. MUNGER:  And so I remember hearing a 22 


little bit about that, but I didn't really understand 23 


what that was about.  And so it was in the course of a 24 


PIO meeting, so. 25 
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  MR. BEERS:  Where did you hear that, from what 1 


source? 2 


  MS. MUNGER:  Honestly I'm not sure who it was.  3 


It might have been Doug. 4 


  MR. BEERS:  Did you get inquiries from the 5 


press regarding that issue? 6 


  MS. MUNGER:  No. 7 


  MR. BEERS:  No? 8 


  MS. MUNGER:  Huh-uh. 9 


  MR. BEERS:  When you first heard about it, was 10 


this during the course of the review of the 401 permit 11 


application? 12 


  MS. MUNGER:  I don't think so, no.  I don't 13 


think so.  I don't know the specific dates, but as -- I 14 


mean, as the hearing report was being finalized, 15 


following the regulations and the rules and the laws 16 


that are laid out in the books, the determination was 17 


made.  And so I don't know why the two would be 18 


involved, if I understand your question. 19 


  MR. BEERS:  Well, I just want to know if you 20 


knew about this mitigation fund.  There's a memorandum 21 


of understanding that was signed by ACP partners and 22 


the governor's office.  And it was announced right 23 


around the same time (cross talk). 24 


  MS. MUNGER:  I remember when it was announced.  25 
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I do remember when it was announced.  And I remember 1 


discussion about how Virginia had done something 2 


similar there.  And -- but I don't know details of it 3 


and I wasn't privy to discussions about it. 4 


  MR. BEERS:  You weren't included in any prior 5 


meetings?  Prior to announcement, you weren't included 6 


in any discussions about how this would actually affect 7 


environmental mitigation or how the press might be 8 


interested in this issue as it relates to the ACP? 9 


  MR. LANE:  Maybe you could break that down a 10 


little bit.  Do you… 11 


  MR. BEERS:  Well, I just wanted -- you weren't 12 


involved in any discussions about this prior, is that 13 


correct? 14 


  MS. MUNGER:  I don't think so, no. 15 


  MR. BEERS:  You don't recall? 16 


  MS. MUNGER:  They don't stand out.  No, I 17 


don't think so. 18 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  Where did you learn that 19 


Virginia had the same fund? 20 


  MS. MUNGER:  I think there was media coverage 21 


of it. 22 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  So it wasn't a PIO meeting 23 


in where you guys noticed that? 24 


  MS. MUNGER:  Oh, no, there was media coverage 25 
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of that. 1 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay. 2 


  MS. MUNGER:  I mean, we -- they were dealing 3 


with the same project, so. 4 


  MR. GREENE:  Right.  So you didn't have a 5 


briefing after the fact as to how to handle questions 6 


regarding the fund? 7 


  MS. MUNGER:  No. 8 


  MR. GREENE:  Did you have… 9 


  MS. MUNGER:  No, I don't think so.  No, I 10 


don't, no. 11 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  Did you have a -- after 12 


the 401 permit was issued, did you have a briefing as 13 


to what questions may arise? 14 


  MS. MUNGER:  We may have had talking points on 15 


the permit, which again is typical because anything 16 


controversial, you prepare talking points to be able to 17 


answer questions.  I recall that somewhat.  It was not 18 


a very large document, it was just a few key points 19 


about the issuance. 20 


  MR. BEERS:  Okay.  So with this -- you know, 21 


you weren't present during a meeting when people 22 


associated with the ACP talked about potential uses of 23 


this fund during the negotiation of the fund? 24 


  MS. MUNGER:  I don't recall that. 25 
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  MR. BEERS:  You say you don't recall that? 1 


  MS. MUNGER:  To be honest, I forgot -- I don't 2 


have to dementia but (phonetic). 3 


  MR. BEERS:  Yeah. 4 


  MS. MUNGER:  I hadn't even thought about my 5 


meetings, where I had attended, where the 6 


representatives were there until you just said it.  So, 7 


no, I don't recall that. 8 


  MR. BEERS:  Okay.  I think -- anything else?  9 


I don’t know if this is going to be anything of 10 


importance.  All done.  That's all the questions I 11 


have.  You've got… 12 


  MR.GREENE:  Did anyone ever express any 13 


concerns that to you, within the department or outside 14 


the department, that the permitting process was 15 


dragging or being slowed?  Or that there were barriers 16 


being created? 17 


  MS. MUNGER:  No.  No. 18 


  MR. GREENE:  Did you ever have any discussions 19 


with anyone regarding how long the process is taking or 20 


was taking at that time? 21 


  MS. MUNGER:  Not in that context.  There were 22 


-- I got reporter questions about the process, for 23 


example, when do you think it'll be finished?  But no, 24 


not conversations as to -- as though… 25 
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  MR. GREENE:  And how would you follow up on 1 


those questions? 2 


  MS. MUNGER:  That it’s still under review. 3 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay. 4 


  MS. MUNGER:  That would be a standard.  For 5 


any permit that's come, the talking point is still -- 6 


again, it's ready when it's ready. 7 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  Anything unusual that you 8 


can think of regarding the ACP process that was out of 9 


the norm? 10 


  MS. MUNGER:  No. 11 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay. 12 


  MS. MUNGER:  No. 13 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  I think we're done. 14 


  SPEAKER:  (Inaudible). 15 


  MS. MUNGER:  Okay.  I get to have lunch now. 16 


  MR. GREENE:  It's --  17 


  MS. MUNGER:  Oh.  Yeah. 18 


  MR. GREENE:  -- 2:19 and we're going to turn 19 


the recorders off. 20 


 21 


 22 


 23 


 24 
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From: Munger, Bridget
To: Elizabeth Ouzts
Cc: Munger, Bridget (bridget.munger@ncdenr.gov)
Subject: RE: [External] Re: Atlantic Coast Pipeline Project Update: Oct. 24, 2017
Date: Wednesday, October 25, 2017 4:18:00 PM


Hi Elizabeth,
Because of the Neuse Nutrient Strategy and associated buffer protection rules, the erosion and sediment
control plans that were submitted for the northern segment of the proposed pipeline (DEQ’s Raleigh
Regional Office) cannot be approved without a buffer authorization. If granted, the buffer authorization will
be issued at the same time as the required state 401 water quality certification. Erosion and sediment
control plans cannot be approved without the required buffer authorization and/or the required state 401
certification. For any project, without the required buffer and/or 401 water quality documents, the erosion
and sediment control plans would be disapproved.
 
 
Bridget Munger
Public Information Officer
N.C. Department of Environmental Quality
 


919-807-6363   office
919-207-7786   mobile
bridget.munger@ncdenr.gov
 


1612 Mail Service Center
Raleigh, NC  27699-1612
 


Email correspondence to and from this address is subject to the
North Carolina Public Records Law and may be disclosed to third parties.
 


From: Elizabeth Ouzts [mailto:elizouzts@icloud.com] 
Sent: Wednesday, October 25, 2017 10:42 AM
To: Munger, Bridget <bridget.munger@ncdenr.gov>
Subject: [External] Re: Atlantic Coast Pipeline Project Update: Oct. 24, 2017
 
CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you
verify that the attachment and content are safe. Send all suspicious email as an attachment to
report.spam@nc.gov.


 
Thanks for this update. Isn’t it a foregone conclusion that you all will have to reject this again b/c
Atlantic Coast Pipeline doesn’t yet have its 401 cert? Or is there a chance you would approve them
both at the same time, or approve them with conditions?
 
Best
E
 


On Oct 24, 2017, at 6:07 PM, Munger, Bridget <bridget.munger@ncdenr.gov> wrote:
 
Atlantic Coast Pipeline Update
Oct. 24, 2017
 
Atlantic Coast Pipeline, LLC submitted new erosion and sediment control plans for the
proposed route for the North Carolina segment of the pipeline on Oct. 23. When a project



mailto:/O=EXCHANGELABS/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=C54E1F650CEA49968A5ABA689C204F61-BCMUNGER

mailto:elizouzts@icloud.com

mailto:bridget.munger@ncdenr.gov

mailto:bridget.munger@ncdenr.gov

mailto:report.spam@nc.gov

mailto:bridget.munger@ncdenr.gov





submits erosion and sediment control plans for a second time, the state Sedimentation
Control Act requires DEQ to review and make a decision to either deny or approve the new
plans within 15 days of receipt. Therefore, the deadline for review of the newly submitted
plans is Tuesday, Nov. 7. The new plans are available online at the links below:


Fayetteville Region Sediment and Erosion Control Plan Submittal 2
Raleigh Region Sediment and Erosion Control Plan Submittal 2 


 
 
More Information
Information on the pipeline project’s environmental review process is regularly updated on
the DEQ website:https://deq.nc.gov/about/divisions/energy-mineral-land-resources/acp.
 
Please feel free to share this update with other interested parties who may wish to have
more information on the Atlantic Coast Pipeline project.
 
 
 
 
Bridget Munger
Public Information Officer
N.C. Department of Environmental Quality
 


919-807-6363   office
919-207-7786   mobile
bridget.munger@ncdenr.gov
 


1612 Mail Service Center
Raleigh, NC  27699-1612
 


Email correspondence to and from this address is subject to the
North Carolina Public Records Law and may be disclosed to third parties.


 
Elizabeth Ouzts
Southeast Energy News
elizouzts@icloud.com
(919) 672-9803 / @envirouzts
 
 
 
 



http://edocs.deq.nc.gov/WaterResources/0/fol/603210/Row1.aspx
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https://deq.nc.gov/about/divisions/energy-mineral-land-resources/acp
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mailto:elizouzts@icloud.com





 


 


 


 


 


 



krpeterson

Rounded Exhibit Stamp























































































 


 


 


 


 


 



krpeterson

Rounded Exhibit Stamp















 


From: Doug Heyl  


To: Julia White (julia.white@nc.gov)  
Subject: Date: Attachments:  


Heyl, Douglas  


FW: ACP Update Notes - Jan. 3, 2018 Wednesday, January 3, 2018 1:36:00 PM image001.png  


North Carolina Department of Environmental Quality 919.707.9034 (Office) 
919.812.3415 (Mobile) 
douglas.heyl@ncdenr.gov  


Email correspondence to and from this address is subject to the 
North Carolina Public Records Law and may be disclosed to third parties.  


From: Munger, Bridget 
Sent: Wednesday, January 03, 2018 1:04 PM 
To: Holman, Sheila <sheila.holman@ncdenr.gov> 
Cc: Heyl, Douglas <Douglas.Heyl@ncdenr.gov>; Munger, Bridget <bridget.munger@ncdenr.gov> 
Subject: ACP Update Notes ‐ Jan. 3, 2018  


ACP Weekly Update Notes Jan. 3, 2018  


DAQ: No written response has been received from Dominion following DAQ’s request for 
additional information on the air quality permit application for the Northampton compressor 
station facility. Mike A. has reviewed draft hearing officer’s report; it is in good shape.  


DWR: In response to the fifth add-info request, Dominion submitted a revised cumulative 
analysis report on Dec. 20. Information submitted is under review to ensure that all the 
requested information has been provided. Final edits are being made to the hearing officer’s 
report. Staff is meeting with Linda Culpepper tomorrow to discuss further.  


DEMLR - E&SC: Staff will issue another letter of disapproval to Dominion by Jan. 4, which is the 
15-day deadline date. The letter will include about 19 comments/items, which is down from 34 
on the last letter of disapproval. There is no set deadline for Dominion to respond once the letter 
of disapproval is issued. Staff said the timeline is working out that we may be ready to issue an 
approval for the E&SC and construction stormwater permit application when the 401 certification 
issues are  


 


resolved. Per standard procedures, DEMLR will not issue the E&SC or construction stormwater 
permit approval prior to 401/404 approvals.  







DEMLR - Stormwater: No information has been received from Dominion in response to the 
DEMLR’s requests for more information on the stormwater general permit and stormwater 
individual permit. Options for a public comment period are under discussion.  


Bridget Munger 
Public Information Officer 
N.C. Department of Environmental Quality  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







 


From: Wrenn, Brian L  


To: Higgins, Karen; Burdette, Jennifer a 
Subject: Date: Attachments:  


RE: ACP Well Testing 
Thursday, January 4, 2018 12:54:46 PM image001.png  


Ok, I think I have the comments and edits from both of you resolved. Karen, I made one change to the 
appendices order and double checked the references in the text but no changes to the Appendices other 
than that. I’ve included the well testing language about complaints, added the 500 feet zone around 
blasting, and the cumulative analysis write‐up as well. I think that covers it. I’ve saved the report with 
today’s date. Let me know what you think. Thanks.  


Brian Wrenn 919‐743‐8409 (office) 919‐491‐2616 (cell)  


From: Higgins, Karen 
Sent: Thursday, January 04, 2018 9:47 AM 
To: Burdette, Jennifer a <Jennifer.Burdette@ncdenr.gov>; Wrenn, Brian L <brian.wrenn@ncdenr.gov> 
Subject: Re: ACP Well Testing  


agreed  


Thanks‐ Karen  


Karen Higgins  


401 & Buffer Permitting Branch Supervisor Division of Water Resources 
Department of Environmental Quality  


919 807-6360 office 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







From: Wrenn, Brian L  


To: Higgins, Karen; Burdette, Jennifer 


Subject: a FW: ACP HO report 


Date: Friday, January 5, 2018 9:17:45 AM 


Not sure if either of you got in this am, but I’m at home with one sick child and another out of school 
due to snow. The Secretary’s office wants to review the HO report prior to sending to Linda. I told 
Bridget we would send a copy to them when we send to Jeff. I doing another read through right now. 
When do you think you can finish your review? Thanks!  


Brian Wrenn 919‐743‐8409 (office) 919‐491‐2616 (cell)  


From: Munger, Bridget 
Sent: Friday, January 05, 2018 8:56 AM 
To: Wrenn, Brian L <brian.wrenn@ncdenr.gov> Subject: RE: ACP HO report  


That sounds great. Thanks!  


From: Wrenn, Brian L 
Sent: Friday, January 5, 2018 8:44 AM 
To: Munger, Bridget <bridget.munger@ncdenr.gov> Subject: Re: ACP HO report  


I think the HO report is their focus this am. If it’s ok, we can send the draft to you when we send it to Jeff 
to review. Thanks.  


Sent from my iPhone 
On Jan 5, 2018, at 8:09 AM, Munger, Bridget <bridget.munger@ncdenr.gov> wrote:  


Hi Brian, 
If Karen and Jennifer will be looking at the report today, I can wait for that draft. Please let me know what 
you prefer. 
Thank you! 
Bridget 
(Working at home this morning: 919-268-0069)  


From: Wrenn, Brian L 
Sent: Thursday, January 4, 2018 7:25 PM 
To: Munger, Bridget <bridget.munger@ncdenr.gov> Subject: ACP HO report  


Please make it known that this has not gone through final revisions. Some of the cumulative impact 
language is new and neither Karen nor Jennifer have reviewed it at all. Thanks.  


 


 







From:  


To: Subject: Date:  


Brian‐  


Higgins, Karen  


Wrenn, Brian L; Burdette, Jennifer a RE: ACP HO report 
Friday, January 5, 2018 11:37:00 AM  


Just a few minor suggestions highlighted in yellow. I don’t think Jennifer will review this today 
so please go ahead and send to Jeff and others.  


Since the department is reviewing the documents before going to Linda, I’m not sure that it will 
be ready for her by Monday. Should we try to reschedule for later in the week? We could try for 
after the EMC on Thursday (maybe 3:30) or Friday (maybe 8:45 or 2:00).  


Thanks‐ Karen  


Karen Higgins  


401 & Buffer Permitting Branch Supervisor Division of Water Resources 
Department of Environmental Quality  


(919) 807-6360 office  


karen.higgins@ncdenr.gov  


https://deq.nc.gov/about/divisions/water-resources/water-resources-permits/wastewater-branch/401- 
wetlands-buffer-permits  


512 N. Salisbury Street (Archdale Building), Suite 942-E, Raleigh, NC 27604 1617 Mail Service Center, 
Raleigh, NC 27699-1617  


Email correspondence to and from this address is subject to the North Carolina Public Records Law and 
may be disclosed to third parties.  


From: Wrenn, Brian L 
Sent: Friday, January 05, 2018 9:18 AM 
To: Higgins, Karen <karen.higgins@ncdenr.gov>; Burdette, Jennifer a <Jennifer.Burdette@ncdenr.gov> 
Subject: FW: ACP HO report  


Not sure if either of you got in this am, but I’m at home with one sick child and another out of school 
due to snow. The Secretary’s office wants to review the HO report prior to sending to Linda. I told 
Bridget we would send a copy to them when we send to Jeff. I doing another read through right now. 
When do you think you can finish your review? Thanks!  


Brian Wrenn 919‐743‐8409 (office)  







From: Munger, Bridget 
Sent: Friday, January 05, 2018 8:56 AM 
To: Wrenn, Brian L <brian.wrenn@ncdenr.gov> Subject: RE: ACP HO report  


That sounds great. Thanks!  


From: Wrenn, Brian L 
Sent: Friday, January 5, 2018 8:44 AM 
To: Munger, Bridget <bridget.munger@ncdenr.gov> Subject: Re: ACP HO report  


I think the HO report is their focus this am. If it’s ok, we can send the draft to you when we send it to Jeff 
to review. Thanks.  


Sent from my iPhone 
On Jan 5, 2018, at 8:09 AM, Munger, Bridget <bridget.munger@ncdenr.gov> wrote:  


Hi Brian, 
If Karen and Jennifer will be looking at the report today, I can wait for that draft. Please let me know what 
you prefer. 
Thank you! 
Bridget 
(Working at home this morning: 919-268-0069)  


From: Wrenn, Brian L 
Sent: Thursday, January 4, 2018 7:25 PM 
To: Munger, Bridget <bridget.munger@ncdenr.gov> Subject: ACP HO report  


Please make it known that this has not gone through final revisions. Some of the cumulative impact 
language is new and neither Karen nor Jennifer have reviewed it at all. Thanks.  


Brian L. Wrenn 
Ecosystems Branch Chief Water Sciences Section 
NC Division of Water Resources 919‐743‐8409 (office) 919‐491‐2616 (cell)  


Physical Address:  


4401 Reedy Creek Road Raleigh, NC 27607  


Mailing Address:  


1621 Mail Service Center Raleigh, NC 27699‐1623  


 


 


 


 







From: Wrenn, Brian L  


To: Higgins, Karen; Burdette, Jennifer a 
 
Subject: FW: ACP hearing officer"s report 


Date: Friday, January 5, 2018 12:19:39 PM 


Attachments:  


FYI  


 
ACP_hearing officers rept_01052018.docx 


Brian Wrenn 919‐743‐8409 (office) 919‐491‐2616 (cell)  


From: Wrenn, Brian L 
Sent: Friday, January 05, 2018 12:19 PM 
To: Poupart, Jeff <jeff.poupart@ncdenr.gov> 
Cc: Munger, Bridget <bridget.munger@ncdenr.gov> Subject: ACP hearing officer's report  


Jeff, 
Please find attached the draft hearing officer’s report for the ACP project. If you have any questions, 
please do not hesitate to contact me. I’m at home with kids, so try my cell (919‐491‐2616). Thanks.  


Brian L. Wrenn 
Ecosystems Branch Chief Water Sciences Section 
NC Division of Water Resources 919‐743‐8409 (office) 919‐491‐2616 (cell)  


Physical Address:  


4401 Reedy Creek Road Raleigh, N 19681C 27607  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







From: To: Subject: Date:  


Burdette, Jennifer a  


Wrenn, Brian L  


RE: ACP hearing officer"s report Friday, January 5, 2018 4:15:00 PM  


Sorry for missing your call this morning. I was deep into the draft of the 401. Before I left, I just 
wanted to thank you for all of your help with this project. I enjoyed and learned a lot working 
with you.  


Take care, Jennifer  


Jennifer Burdette  


401/Buffer Coordinator 
Division of Water Resources - 401 & Buffer Permitting Branch Department of Environmental Quality 
919 807 6364 office 
jennifer.burdette@ncdenr.gov  


1617 Mail Service Center Raleigh, NC 27699-1617  


(Physical Address: 512 N. Salisbury St, Raleigh, NC 27604 - 9th Flr Archdale Bldg – Room 942F) Email 
correspondence to and from this address is subject to the  


North Carolina Public Records Law and may be disclosed to third parties.  


From: Wrenn, Brian L 
Sent: Friday, January 05, 2018 12:20 PM 
To: Higgins, Karen <karen.higgins@ncdenr.gov>; Burdette, Jennifer a <Jennifer.Burdette@ncdenr.gov> 
Subject: FW: ACP hearing officer's report  


FYI  


Brian Wrenn 919‐743‐8409 (office) 919‐491‐2616 (cell)  


From: Wrenn, Brian L 
Sent: Friday, January 05, 2018 12:19 PM 
To: Poupart, Jeff <jeff.poupart@ncdenr.gov> 
Cc: Munger, Bridget <bridget.munger@ncdenr.gov> Subject: ACP hearing officer's report  


Jeff, 
Please find attached the draft hearing officer’s report for the ACP project. If you have any questions, 
please do not hesitate to contact me. I’m at home with kids, so try my cell (919‐491‐2616). Thanks.  


Brian L. Wrenn 
Ecosystems Branch Chief Water Sciences Section 
NC Division of Water Resources 919‐743‐8409 (office) 919‐491‐2616 (cell)  







From: Wrenn, Brian L  


To: Higgins, Karen 
Poupart, Jeff 
Cc:  


Subject: Re: ACP - Draft Decision Documents 


 Date: Sunday, January 21, 2018 8:58:42 PM  


Karen, 
I accepted all of the edits on the HO rept. I looked at the 401 one last time. In condition 16, it 
references an exemption from condition #13. should that be #15 instead?  


I'll sign the document and send it to Linda, copying you and Jeff. Thanks for all of your help on 
this.  


From: Higgins, Karen 
Sent: Friday, January 19, 2018 9:26:01 PM To: Wrenn, Brian L 
Cc: Poupart, Jeff 
Subject: Re: ACP ‐ Draft Decision Documents  


Brian‐  


Attached are a revised 401 and HO report. I made the edits to the HO report based on your 
comments in the 401 and reviewed a couple other places as well. I used the HO report I sent 
yesterday with those track changes accepted, so the only track changes you see are those I 
made today.  


I also made the recommended changes to the draft 401. 
Please let me know if you have any further comments/changes for either document.  


Thanks‐ Karen  


Karen Higgins  


401 & Buffer Permitting Branch Supervisor Division of Water Resources 
Department of Environmental Quality  


919 807-6360 office karen.higgins@ncdenr.gov  


 


 


 







From: Higgins, Karen 
Sent: Thursday, January 18, 2018 10:00 PM 
To: Wrenn, Brian L <brian.wrenn@ncdenr.gov>; Poupart, Jeff <jeff.poupart@ncdenr.gov> 
Subject: ACP ‐ Draft Decision Documents  


Attached please find the draft 401 certification for ACP as well as the draft denial letter. Please 
review and send me any edits/comments etc. If you make edits in the document(s) please use 
track changes so I can look at them easily.  


Please send me comments tomorrow if possible, or at least Monday morning.  


Thanks‐ Karen  


Karen Higgins  


401 & Buffer Permitting Branch Supervisor Division of Water Resources 
Department of Environmental Quality  


919 807-6360 office  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







 


From: Wrenn, Brian L  


To: Culpepper, Linda 
Cc: Poupart, Jeff; Higgins, Karen 
 
Subject: ACP Hearing Officer"s report 
Date: Monday, January 22, 2018 8:41:00 AM  


Attachments: ACP_hearing officers rept_01222018.pdf 


Linda, 
Please find attached for your review the Hearing Officer’s report for the Atlantic Coast Pipeline project. I 
am happy to discuss this with you if you have any questions or comments. Thanks!  


Brian L. Wrenn 
Ecosystems Branch Chief Water Sciences Section 
NC Division of Water Resources 919‐743‐8409 (office) 919‐491‐2616 (cell)  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







From: Munger, Bridget  


To: Holman, Sheila; Heyl, Douglas 
 


Subject: Fwd: ACP Hearing Officer"s report 


Date: Monday, January 22, 2018 2:51:28 PM 


Attachments: ACP_hearing officers rept_01222018.pdf ATT00001.htm 


Please see attached. 
Sent from my iPhone Begin forwarded message:  


From: "Higgins, Karen" <karen.higgins@ncdenr.gov> To: "Munger, Bridget" 
<bridget.munger@ncdenr.gov> Subject: FW: ACP Hearing Officer's report  


FYI  


Thanks‐ Karen  


Karen Higgins  


401 & Buffer Permitting Branch Supervisor Division of Water Resources 
Department of Environmental Quality  


(919) 807-6360 office  


karen.higgins@ncdenr.gov https://deq.nc.gov/about/divisions/water-resources/water-resources-
permits/wastewater- branch/401-wetlands-buffer-permits  


512 N. Salisbury Street (Archdale Building), Suite 942-E, Raleigh, NC 27604 1617 Mail Service Center, 
Raleigh, NC 27699-1617  


Email correspondence to and from this address is subject to the North Carolina Public Records Law and 
may be disclosed to third parties.  


From: Wrenn, Brian L 
Sent: Monday, January 22, 2018 8:42 AM 
To: Culpepper, Linda <linda.culpepper@ncdenr.gov> 
Cc: Poupart, Jeff <jeff.poupart@ncdenr.gov>; Higgins, Karen <karen.higgins@ncdenr.gov> 
Subject: ACP Hearing Officer's report  


Linda, 
Please find attached for your review the Hearing Officer’s report for the Atlantic Coast  


Pipeline project. I am happy to discuss this with you if you have any questions or comments. Thanks!  







Brian L. Wrenn 
Ecosystems Branch Chief Water Sciences Section 
NC Division of Water Resources 919‐743‐8409 (office)  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







 


From: Higgins, Karen  


To: Culpepper, Linda  


 
Subject: draft 401 decision documents 


Date: Tuesday, January 23, 2018 1:22:54 PM 


Attachments: 140957v2AtlanticCoastPipeline(Multi)_401_IC_NRB_TAR_2.docx 
140957v2AtlanticCoastPipeline(Multi)_401_IC_NRB_TAR_DENIAL.docx 


Linda‐  


Attached please find an electronic copy of the draft 401 decision documents for ACP. I’m 
working on the bullet points.  


Thanks‐ Karen  


Karen Higgins  


401 & Buffer Permitting Branch Supervisor Division of Water Resources 
Department of Environmental Quality  


(919) 807-6360 office  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







 


Subject: DWR Discussion - ACP 
 


Location: DENR_GS - Rm 5301 - 10 Seats - Morrow Mount 


Start: Wed 1/24/2018 11:30 AM Wed 1/24/2018 12:15 PM Tentative  
End: 
Show Time As:  


Recurrence: Meeting Status:  


Organizer: 
Required Attendees:  


Linda‐  


(none) 
Not yet responded 


Higgins, Karen 
Culpepper, Linda; Wrenn, Brian L; Poupart, Jeff  


We wanted to block some time with you to go over the HO Report and 401 decision documents 
if you had any questions. I gave Bridgette a hard copy of the HO Report, draft 401 certification 
and draft denial.  


Thanks‐ Karen  


127  


Mack, J anet  


 


Subject: Location:  


Start: 
End: 
Show Time As:  


Recurrence: Meeting Status:  


Organizer: 
Required Attendees:  


(none) Accepted  







Canceled: ACP Team Meeting 
DENR_GS - Rm 5212 - 14 seats - Bodie Island Lighthouse  


Mon 1/22/2018 1:00 PM Mon 1/22/2018 1:30 PM Free  
 
Lucey, John D 
Heyl, Douglas; Kritzer, Jamie; Jill Warren Lucas; Munger, Bridget; Leonard, Laura  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







From: Higgins, Karen  


To: Morris-McLawhorn, Bridgette R 
Culpepper, Linda 
 
Cc: 
Subject: ACP - word document 


Date: Thursday, January 25, 2018 3:40:34 PM 


Attachments: 140957v2AtlanticCoastPipeline(Multi)_401_IC_NRB_TAR_3.docx 


Bridgette‐  


I put a paper copy of the 401 certification for ACP on your desk today – there are two places for Linda to sign. I will not be in the office 
tomorrow, so if Linda wants any changes to the 401, I’ve attached the word document to this email so you can edit as needed. If you do make 
any changes to the word document, will you please send me the final word version document for our records?  


Also, on the bottom of page two you’ll see email addresses for Richard Gangle and Spencer Trichell. Once (if) Linda signs the 401, will you 
please email them a scanned copy of the signed document, and cc me as well?  


Thanks‐ Karen  


Karen Higgins  


401 & Buffer Permitting Branch Supervisor Division of Water Resources 
Department of Environmental Quality  


(919) 807-6360 office  


karen.higgins@ncdenr.gov  


https://deq.nc.gov/about/divisions/water-resources/water-resources-permits/wastewater-branch/401- wetlands-buffer-permits  
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P R O C E E D I N G S 1 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  Today's date is October 4, 2 


2019.  My name is Kevin Greene.  Our company, Eagle 3 


Intel Services is contracted with the North Carolina 4 


General Assembly Subcommittee on the ACP for the 5 


purpose of gathering and reporting information back to 6 


the committee.  We're recording this interview.  I 7 


would like to have each person present to state their 8 


name, position and also to acknowledge that you 9 


understand that this interview is being recorded.  So 10 


I'll start with my partner.  11 


  MR. BEERS:  Tom Beers.  Yes, I know it's being 12 


recorded.  13 


  MR. LANE:  Bill Lane, DEQ.  14 


  MS. BURDETTE:  Jennifer Burdette.  I 15 


understand this is being recorded.  16 


  MR. HARGROVE:  Drew Hargrove, DEQ.  17 


  MR. GREENE:  Thank you.  And Mr. Lane, would 18 


you like to add something?  19 


  MR. LANE:  Yes, thank you.  This is Bill Lane, 20 


General Counsel for DEQ.  I'd like to clarify that this 21 


interview will end -- we are starting at 9:02 a.m. it 22 


will end no later than 10:00 a.m.  It is being recorded 23 


by audio by both parties.  The questions in this 24 


interview will be related to the witnesses' official 25 
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duties related to the 401 Water Quality Certification 1 


for the Atlantic Coast Pipeline project.  So there will 2 


not be questions about the witnesses' work on other 3 


projects or the witnesses' personal life.  4 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  Thank you.  Thank you all.  5 


We appreciate your time.  We'll just start out.  You've 6 


already stated your name, Ms. Burdette, but, would you 7 


give us a brief history of your employment with DEQ 8 


just when you started and your positions that you had?  9 


  MS. BURDETTE:  Yes, I started, I believe in 10 


2013 as the 401 and Buffer Coordinator for the 401 and 11 


Buffer Permitting, maybe unit at that time, but 12 


probably changed to branch while I was there.  13 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  14 


  MS. BURDETTE:  And I resigned to go to private 15 


employment, maybe February of 2018, I believe the 1st, 16 


February of 2018.  17 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  Thank you.  So during 18 


2017, all of 2017 and then just probably one or two 19 


months into 2018, your official position was -- or your 20 


official title was?  21 


  MS. BURDETTE:  The 401 Buffer Coordinator. 22 


  MR. GREENE:  401 Buffer Coordinator.  Thank 23 


you.  And in that position, what was your chain of 24 


command?  What department -- I'm assuming this is the 25 
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water quality, but can you give us a brief of what your 1 


chain of command was?  2 


  MS. BURDETTE:  Yes, my supervisor was Karen 3 


Higgins.  And there were some changes as far as her 4 


supervisor, but towards the end it was Jeff Poupart, 5 


who was Chief of the -- I want to say chief of -- I 6 


know there's so many different departments, I get 7 


confused sometimes.  But that was my chain.   8 


  Mr. GREENE:  A lot of chiefs in the (cross 9 


talk).  10 


  MS. BURDETTE:  It was Karen Higgins and then 11 


Jeff Poupart was her superior.  12 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  Did you manage anyone?  13 


  MS. BURDETTE:  No, I did not manage --   14 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  15 


  MS. BURDETTE:  -- when I was here.  16 


  MR. GREENE:  All right.  And so Mr. Poupart 17 


and Ms. Higgins, and you said there was a change, was 18 


that Mr. Zimmerman?  19 


  MS. BURDETTE:  Yeah, let's see.  Okay, so then 20 


above, Jeff would have been the director.  And it's 21 


been a while since I've been here.  They changed a lot.  22 


So, oh, wow, is his name escaping me, Tom Reeder 23 


(phonetic).  24 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  25 
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  MS. BURDETTE:  It was when I first got here, 1 


then it was Jay Zimmerman after that.  2 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  Thank you.  3 


  MS. BURDETTE:  Sorry, I don't remember those 4 


names so well.  5 


  MR. GREENE:  Well, we'll just go ahead and 6 


start, what was your involvement?  I guess your -- your 7 


duties with the ACP permitting process.  Can you kind 8 


of just give us a little bit of background on what you 9 


did and describe what you did and how you did it?  10 


  MS. BURDETTE:  Yeah, being the 401 Buffer 11 


Coordinator in the central office I usually handled 12 


individual permits.  Those are the permits that are 13 


elevated, not the routine nationwide permits for minor 14 


projects.  So I handled all the individual permits and 15 


the buffer variances with the -- with the Environmental 16 


Management Committee commission presenting those.  When 17 


this project first began, it was thought that it would 18 


be an individual permit, because it was such a large 19 


project.  But the Corps of Engineers decided to process 20 


it as a nationwide crossing several regions, it stayed 21 


in my -- as my responsibility being in the central 22 


office because it crossed those multiple regional 23 


office territories.  24 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  All right.  So an 25 
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individual permit, is their differences and can you 1 


explain those?  2 


  MS. BURDETTE:  Sure.  So the individual permit 3 


refers to the Clean Water Act Section 404 Permitting.  4 


And they, for those -- those Section 404 permits are 5 


divided, there's two, there's a few types, but the main 6 


ones that they -- they deal with are nationwide permits 7 


for very minor activities with impacts that are below a 8 


threshold for what they consider gets elevated to a 9 


Individual Permit.  And the Corps of Engineers decides 10 


which permit method they will use to permit a project.  11 


And then the 401 certifies that permitting process that 12 


the Corps now chooses to go through.  That individual 13 


permit process is a more rigorous review.  14 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  And are there different 15 


standards within the states?  I mean, you have the 16 


Corps of Engineers, do they have their standards and do 17 


the states have their regulatory standards?  Or is it 18 


all the same?  19 


  MS. BURDETTE:  I'm not sure I follow you.  20 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  21 


  MS. BURDETTE:  Help me out a little bit.  22 


  MR. GREENE:  So the Corps of Engineers, they 23 


make the decision as to what's going to be an 24 


individual permit.  25 
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  MS. BURDETTE:  Uh-huh.  1 


  MR. GREENE:  And then as an individual permit, 2 


the state has certain regulations for that 401 permit.  3 


  MS. BURDETTE:  Uh-huh.  4 


  MR. GREENE:  So do those vary across state 5 


lines?  6 


  MS. BURDETTE:  Don't -- I mean, I'm sure they 7 


do.  They're -- all the states are different.  8 


  MR. GREENE:  Right.  9 


  MS. BURDETTE:  You know, as far as how they 10 


handle the 401 --  11 


  MR. GREENE:  But North Carolina has their set 12 


of I don't know what you call it, regulations or --  13 


  MS. BURDETTE:  Sure, rules and rules.  14 


  MR. GREENE:  -- that rules that you would 15 


follow?  16 


  MS. BURDETTE:  Yes.  17 


  MR. GREENE:  All right.  And you've already 18 


kind of touched on it, how it works.  But kind of go 19 


through the 401 certification process.  What has to be 20 


done?  We're aware, we'll get into some of this other 21 


stuff like the hearing officers report.  But just kind 22 


of give us a general background of specifically 23 


regarding the ACP permit, 401 permit, what had to be 24 


done?  25 
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  MS. BURDETTE:  Well, we review the project to 1 


make sure it meets the six criteria that are listed in 2 


the rule for issuance of a water quality certification.  3 


Those are well; practical alternatives, minimizing and 4 


avoiding impacts, mitigation, degradation of surface 5 


water and groundwater, cumulative and secondary 6 


impacts, How many did I just list?  There  are six, 7 


like I'm missing one.  8 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  9 


  MS. BURDETTE:  Oh, storm water controls, 10 


that's it -- very good, storm water controls are on 11 


site storm water for post construction, storm water 12 


treatment.  13 


  MR. GREENE:  So is there a first step in 14 


starting all this, it seems like a lot of stuff to do?  15 


What would you normally start with?  16 


  MS. BURDETTE:  Well, we start with reviewing 17 


the application for its completeness.  Did we have all 18 


the information that we need to review the project to -19 


- to apply those six criteria that I listed.  There's 20 


also -- well, it's a -- there are also public notice 21 


requirements, it was decided to process  this as an 22 


individual permit.  So that requires a public notice.  23 


And reviewing the project and getting that public input 24 


as part of that review process.  25 
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  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  And how is the public 1 


notice and their input?  How's that affect what you 2 


were doing?  3 


  MS. BURDETTE:  So we conducted two public 4 


hearings.  And we collected comments from the public 5 


and of course, comments during the public hearing, and 6 


then comment, written comments that were submitted 7 


during that comment period.  We reviewed all those 8 


comments, categorized them as to whether they were 9 


duplicate, you know, the different issues that were 10 


brought up.  And then we considered all those comments 11 


in reviewing those six criteria in our review.  12 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  So that the application, 13 


do you recall when the application was first submitted 14 


in this -- in the ACP 401?  15 


  MS. BURDETTE:  I don't really recall the date.  16 


I'm sorry.  17 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  All right.  Prior to the 18 


application process, were you involved in the ACP 19 


project, prior to them filing a formal application?  20 


  MS. BURDETTE:  Yes.  So applicants have the 21 


ability to ask for what they call pre-application 22 


consultation.  And so we had meetings with the Corps of 23 


Engineers, me as a representative of the Division of 24 


Water Resources, and meetings at the Corps of Engineers 25 
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office, just being introduced to the project, general 1 


questions about the project, and just some, some 2 


familiarity with -- with how (phonetic) FERC (phonetic) 3 


you know, their projects are processed and guidance for 4 


how to comply with our roles.  5 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  And do you know, when that 6 


began?  7 


  MS. BURDETTE:  I base that on the project 8 


number that is given, those are based on the year in 9 


which they were started, and that was 2014.  10 


  MR. GREENE:  2014.  So between 2014, and I 11 


think the application was filed in May of 2017.  Does 12 


that sound right to you?  We can go back and look, but 13 


--  14 


  MS. BURDETTE:  I -- it was, it was later on, I 15 


remember that.  16 


  MR. GREENE:  Right.  So during that whole 17 


process, is -- you called it like a pre-application 18 


type screening, or --  19 


  MS. BURDETTE:  Yeah.  So there's a lot of 20 


information they need to collect, in order to apply for 21 


a permit.  They need to delineate the surface waters 22 


and wetlands.  And in there, we also have that 23 


overlapping program of the riparian buffer rules.  And 24 


so they came to talk to us back in 2014, I believe, 25 
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before they had completed all of their fieldwork and 1 


assessments of natural resources.  And you know, they 2 


delineate, then they meet with the Corps of Engineers, 3 


and the Corps of Engineers verifies that their 4 


delineation is accurate.  And then an overlapping step 5 


is the riparian buffer rules that each stream that is -6 


- that is applicable to the buffer rules has to be 7 


verified that it's subject or not subject.  So that 8 


took quite a bit of time.  So a lot of that time period 9 


was them completing their fieldwork, and those 10 


verification process of the -- of their accuracy of 11 


their delineations and subjectivity.  12 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  So I guess, I'm trying to 13 


understand it is -- so they're trying to get the 14 


information to put in the application for review, so 15 


they're working with you to do that, or they're working 16 


with DEQ in this case, the Water Quality Division to do 17 


that up front.  18 


  MS. BURDETTE:  Yeah.  19 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  20 


  MS. BURDETTE:  Yes.  21 


  MR. GREENE:  That makes sense.  22 


  MS. BURDETTE:  They basically come to find out 23 


what, you know, what is subject and --  24 


  MR. GREENE:  Right.  25 
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  MS. BURDETTE:  -- and before they go.  1 


  MR. GREENE:  So do they have an understanding, 2 


I think you mentioned those six, those six criteria 3 


that you look at.  Do they have an understanding of 4 


each and every one of those at that point in time?  5 


  MS. BURDETTE:  I don't recall whether we 6 


discussed each of those criteria at that time.  7 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  And this is kind of -- as 8 


a general question.  But, have you had experience 9 


dealing with similar projects of this size?  10 


  MS. BURDETTE:  While at DWR, no.  11 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  I'm assuming this was the 12 


kind of the most significant or largest project, I 13 


guess, how would you categorize this project?  As would 14 


you categorize it by size, you categorize it by the 15 


work that has to be done?  16 


  MS. BURDETTE:  From geographic extent, it was 17 


definitely a large project.  18 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  Okay.  That makes sense.  19 


And this project, compared to others that you worked 20 


on, what were some of the variances or what were some 21 


of the things that may have differed from other 22 


projects?  23 


  MS. BURDETTE:  Well, it's linear nature.  A 24 


lot of linear projects, are more transportation 25 







 
 


Page 14 


 


 


projects that are in a different group, than the group 1 


I was in.  There's a separate transportation unit that 2 


handles those.  So most of my experience was from a 3 


single footprint project more than a linear project.  4 


  MR. GREENE:  Like roadways and stuff would be 5 


linear?  6 


  MS. BURDETTE:  Roadways and utility lines.  7 


And lots of utility lines, although they're linear, 8 


they don't cover the same geographic extent.  So they 9 


would have been handled in the -- in the regional 10 


office, as opposed to the central office, because they 11 


were nationwide permits that were of a small scale.  12 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  And because this, the 13 


magnitude of this project, were there different methods 14 


of approvals?  Were there different strategies as how 15 


to deal with it than other projects?  16 


  MS. BURDETTE:  As an individual permit, it -- 17 


it had the additional, the six criteria applies to both 18 


general certifications and individual permits.  The 19 


difference being the public involvement, the public 20 


hearings and the public comment would be the 21 


difference.  22 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  And so when you had those 23 


public hearings, and you get the comments, then those 24 


have to be addressed within the permitting process?  25 
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  MS. BURDETTE:  Yes, the hearing officer's 1 


report addresses those.  2 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  And who was the hearing 3 


officer in this -- in the ACP project?  4 


  MS. BURDETTE:  Brian Wrenn.  5 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  And you -- did you work 6 


closely with Brian Wrenn?  7 


  MS. BURDETTE:  Yeah.  8 


  MR. GREENE:  How does that relationship in 9 


your position and the hearing officer, how does that, I 10 


guess you say, how does that mesh?  11 


  MS. BURDETTE:  Well, we participated in the 12 


public hearings.  He was the hearing officer. I 13 


presented just a background overview of the project.  14 


When it came to reviewing the project, we did consult 15 


as far as meeting those six criteria and how each 16 


comment related to the six criteria required for 17 


reviewing the projects.  Provided information that was 18 


-- that was also, you know, provided for the permit 19 


application to make sure that Brian had all the 20 


information regarding the application.  21 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  Do you recall how many 22 


public comments you had?  23 


  MS. BURDETTE:  No I don't, actually.  24 


  MR. GREENE:  Do you recall what the primary 25 
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concerns or comments were or positive or negative for 1 


the pipeline?  2 


  MS. BURDETTE:  One comment was about the 3 


necessity of the project for energy policy was probably 4 


an overarching one we received.  5 


  MR. GREENE:  What energy policy, what did you 6 


(cross talk)  7 


  MS. BURDETTE:  Oh, as in the public, not 8 


believing that North Carolina should invest in this 9 


infrastructure or allow this investment in 10 


infrastructure and in fossil fuels.  11 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  Do you recall any other 12 


comments?  13 


  MS. BURDETTE:  Oh, yeah.  Water quality 14 


concerns about the extent of the project, the number of 15 


crossings, the amount of impacts -- I mean stream 16 


crossings and wetland crossings that is.  Safety was 17 


another issue that came up.  Water, groundwater wells, 18 


people being concerned about their wells being affected 19 


by construction of the project.  Issues with sediment 20 


erosion control, you know, degradation of downstream 21 


water quality from construction of the project.  And 22 


operations too.  23 


  MR. GREENE:  Were there concerns by these 24 


public hearings about the cumulative and secondary 25 
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impacts?  1 


  MS. BURDETTE:  Yes.  2 


  MR. GREENE:  And can you kind of summarize 3 


what those concerns were?  4 


  MS. BURDETTE:  That the project would, that 5 


not just the construction of the project itself, but 6 


the -- constructing the project, it would result in 7 


additional development that would have an impact on 8 


water quality.  9 


  MR. GREENE:  And how did you address that, as 10 


one of those issues, how do you make a determination or 11 


what's the criteria to make a determination on the 12 


cumulative impact?  13 


  MS. BURDETTE:  So the cumulative impact is 14 


tied to additional development that would have an 15 


impact on water quality.  And we have a guidance policy 16 


that we used at the time to evaluate that.  We went 17 


with a qualitative review.  18 


  MR. GREENE:  Can you explain that a little 19 


bit?  20 


  MS. BURDETTE:  Yeah.  So I mean, from -- I 21 


mean, I only remember, it's a -- I haven't looked at 22 


this in a long time.  But looked at, I asked them to 23 


provide an analysis of what they anticipated from 24 


secondary development resulting from the project.  We 25 
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learned that the project, through the process that 1 


transmission line, not anybody can tap into a 2 


transmission line, anywhere along the line.  So we 3 


focused on the metering stations, there were three 4 


metering stations that were here in North Carolina, as 5 


that's where development could actually have access to 6 


the, to the new gas that was being provided.  And we 7 


asked for them to out -- and provide an analysis of 8 


that.  9 


  MR. GREENE:  They being the ACP partners?  10 


  MS. BURDETTE:  Yes, the ACP, the applicant to, 11 


to look through and predict what type of development 12 


they expected.  And then through back and forth, to 13 


then relate that development to whether it would impact 14 


water quality or not.  And that related to, you know, 15 


were there already storm water controls in place for -- 16 


that would protect water quality from that additional 17 


development.  And then also looking at 303D streams, 18 


streams that are impaired, quality impaired to make 19 


sure that that those were protected.  20 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  So you focused around the 21 


metering stations primarily for the impact.  And those 22 


were, do you recall where those were?  23 


  MS. BURDETTE:  Was it Johnston, Cumberland, 24 


and Robeson.  25 







 
 


Page 19 


 


 


  MR. GREENE:  Thank you.  What about the 1 


environmental justice?  How did that play into the 2 


permitting process?  3 


  MS. BURDETTE:  Because it wasn't part of the 4 


six criteria, we looked to the department to assist us 5 


with the environmental justice aspect.  And we did 6 


participate in some public meetings, what we called 7 


listening sessions.  I can't honestly remember if I 8 


went to them or not, I went to -- I went to some, it 9 


blurs, I can't remember.  But that wasn't within our 10 


six criteria that that we reviewed, that I remember.  11 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  And you look to the 12 


department regarding that, so it's not within the six 13 


criteria, but it's necessary?  14 


  MS. BURDETTE:  It was certainly, from an 15 


overall standpoint, considered.  And we -- I do 16 


remember, our department assisting with outreach, 17 


sending, basically sending notices to -- everywhere 18 


along the pipeline, about the public hearings.  19 


Reaching out more than our usual advertisements for a 20 


public hearing, but actually sending notices to 21 


churches and post offices and basically any community 22 


center that was along the pipeline to make sure people 23 


understood we were having these meetings and had the 24 


opportunity to speak.  25 
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  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  Can you define 1 


environmental justice?  2 


  MS. BURDETTE:  Sure.  That projects aren't 3 


sited in areas where there are minority, economically 4 


minority or, or culturally minority people who -- that 5 


the project isn't located on the property.  That is -- 6 


all right, I am stammering -- that is --  7 


  MR. GREENE:  Yeah.  Take your time.  That's 8 


fine.  9 


  MS. BURDETTE:  That is -- where there's a 10 


preponderance of those populations, and that those 11 


folks are considered.  12 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  As you said, it's not a 13 


requirement for the Department, correct, the 14 


environmental justice.  Or was the department did they 15 


make that a requirement?  In any way to make this a 16 


condition?  17 


  MS. BURDETTE:  I don't know.  18 


  MR. GREENE:  No.  19 


  MS. BURDETTE:  I mean, I -- to be honest, I 20 


did, I did not, I was much more peripherally involved 21 


with that aspect than reviewing the project from a very 22 


technical standpoint over the six criteria.  23 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  So  you can't speak to 24 


that how the department's policies were put into play 25 







 
 


Page 21 


 


 


with this permit?  1 


  MS. BURDETTE:  I don't remember.  I mean, I'm 2 


sure it was discussed and I'm sure it was around when 3 


it was discussed.  But it wasn't my primary 4 


responsibility.  So I don't recall -- other than those 5 


listening sessions and outreach.  6 


  MR. GREENE:  Who was -- whose primary 7 


responsibility was that?  8 


  MS. BURDETTE:  The department I believed.  9 


  MR. GREENE:  Was there a single individual 10 


assigned for that duty?  11 


  MS. BURDETTE:  I don't recall, other than the 12 


Public Information Officer being involved, Bridget 13 


Munger, but I don't, I can't tell you whether that was 14 


her responsibility, or whether she was just a point 15 


person I remember.  16 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  Do you know how much time 17 


you spent on environmental justice?  18 


  MS. BURDETTE:  Myself, it was mostly -- I did 19 


attend one meeting with the -- all right, I'm going to 20 


-- try not to butcher their name, Halo Wasapony 21 


(phonetic), is that right.  Did I get that right?  22 


Tribe. They hosted a meeting and an information session 23 


and I attended that one.  And I can't remember, I don't 24 


believe I attended the listening sessions.  I don't 25 
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remember.  1 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  Thank you.  2 


  MS. BURDETTE:  I mean, I did the public 3 


hearing.  So, I -- I don't think there were follow up 4 


listening sessions, and I don't believe I participated 5 


in it.  But I may have, I can't -- I do not remember.  6 


  MR. GREENE:  And kind of backing up a little 7 


bit the process, the timing of it, the process to 8 


complete or to deny the certification.  9 


  MS. BURDETTE:  Uh-huh.  10 


  MR. GREENE:  Can you give us a brief 11 


background on that?  12 


  MS. BURDETTE:  Yeah.  So when an applicant 13 


submits an application, we have a 60 day time clock for 14 


reviewing that application.  And unless we find that 15 


there's additional information needed for the project 16 


to review the application.  And whenever we asked for 17 


additional information, it, it, it resets that clock.  18 


Well, that clock doesn't reset until the applicant 19 


provides the additional information that was requested.  20 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  And in this case, you had 21 


multiple requests for additional information.  22 


  MS. BURDETTE:  Yes.  23 


  MR. GREENE:  Do you recall how many?  24 


  MS. BURDETTE:  Not exactly, but I estimate 25 
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three or four felt like it was but there was quite a 1 


bit of back and forth where there was addendums to 2 


additional information provided that makes a little --  3 


  MR. GREENE:  All right.  And do you -- do you 4 


recall what those requests involved like for each one?  5 


  MS. BURDETTE:  I remember the later ones more 6 


than I remember the early ones.  7 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  8 


  MS. BURDETTE:  I remember one issue being 9 


their proposal or their plans for completing the 10 


crossings in the dry.  And you know, that would be 11 


pumping the water around as they completed these 12 


crossings that we had quite a bit of back and forth 13 


about that.  Also about minimizing the impact to well -14 


- you know can you adjust the alignment this direction 15 


or that direction to have less wetland  impact, or 16 


less, you know, fewer stream crossings.  That was one.  17 


And then we also had a -- one of -- one of our 18 


additional informations was after the public comment 19 


period where we went through and basically anything we 20 


hadn't asked about before that the public brought up, 21 


we made sure to ask the applicant to address those 22 


comments that were of public concern, I don't know.  23 


And then, of course, I believe the last one was more 24 


about the, that secondary and cumulative impact 25 
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analysis.  1 


  MR. GREENE:  Now , do they have an 2 


understanding of -- they obviously have an 3 


understanding of what's required during the process.  4 


So is it something that in the first information 5 


requests, you were trying to gather information or 6 


gather questions that needed to be answered and combine 7 


it all in one request?  Or do you, and would you 8 


intentionally have different requests for different I 9 


guess, questions of like cumulative impact, or the Dry 10 


Creek (phonetic) stuff?  Would you categorize it?  Or 11 


would it all be like -- you could do it one request?  12 


  MR. LANE:  Can you clarify that just a little. 13 


That was  a long question.  14 


  MR. GREENE:  I'm sorry.  15 


  MR. LANE:  Maybe break it down.  16 


  MR. GREENE:  To clarify it.  Could everything, 17 


every request for additional information be put in one 18 


request?  19 


  MS. BURDETTE:  Not always.  Sometimes the 20 


information the applicant provides you have additional 21 


questions.  And the, that we would, you know, when we 22 


get additional information would lead to further 23 


questions.  I can't say that once in a while you would 24 


-- you would add something that you may have seen but -25 
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- or may have been in there, but you didn't notice 1 


before and you go ahead and ask about it.  2 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  Did you participate in the 3 


weekly staff meetings?  4 


  MS. BURDETTE:  Yes.  5 


  MR. GREENE:  And when did they start in the 6 


process?  7 


  MS. BURDETTE:  I don't remember.  8 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  And what were the --  9 


  MS. BURDETTE:  And I frankly didn’t remember 10 


they were weekly either.  Sorry.   11 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  That's okay.  12 


  MS. BURDETTE:  Let me just correct that.  I 13 


mean, I knew we -- I knew we had them regularly, but I 14 


couldn't remember that, it's they were what, you know 15 


whether it was weekly or not. 16 


  MR. GREENE:  Right.  Was that normal or was 17 


that something that was a little bit different from 18 


other permitting projects that you worked on? 19 


  MS. BURDETTE:  Yes, that was an additional 20 


part of the process. 21 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay. 22 


  MS. BURDETTE:  But for the size of the project 23 


and the number of department -- or excuse me divisions 24 


that were involved in the -- this project. 25 







 
 


Page 26 


 


 


  MR. GREENE:  And, I believe there is at one 1 


point the secretary's office asked you to -- or asked 2 


each department to notify them prior to sending 3 


communications to the applicant, do you recall that? 4 


  MS. BURDETTE:  I don't remember.  I mean in 5 


general, no.  I mean I don't remember specifically like 6 


when that was required, when it wasn't or I know 7 


towards the end we were coordinating more but I don't 8 


remember the process other than Jeff Poupart signing 9 


those letters and it going up that chain of command. 10 


  MR. GREENE:  Who would normally sign them? 11 


  MS. BURDETTE:  Karen Higgins usually signs 12 


most of the… 13 


  MR. GREENE:  Requests for additional 14 


information? 15 


  MS. BURDETTE:  Right. 16 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  And you just mentioned the 17 


coordination of the departments more towards the end, 18 


what do you mean by that? 19 


  MS. BURDETTE:  Just that we would have those 20 


meetings and they would ask where you are in your 21 


process, you know.  Are you -- do you need more 22 


information for your review?  Have you asked for it?  23 


Have you got it back it, you know, and a lot of that 24 


too was also coordination with those public meetings -- 25 
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the planning and set up for those public meetings. 1 


  MR. GREENE:  Did you ever meet with anyone -- 2 


did you ever meet with the secretary or someone in the 3 


secretary's office regarding the ACP? 4 


  MS. BURDETTE:  Tell me who is -- who would 5 


that be?  I know I just forgot my division director's 6 


name. 7 


  MR. GREENE:  Yeah.  Secretary Reagan, 8 


Assistant Secretary Nicholson I believe at that time. 9 


  MS. BURDETTE:  He was part of -- I recall him 10 


being part of some that one listening session we had.  11 


Sheila Holman, I can't remember what she -- what her 12 


title was. 13 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay. 14 


  MS. BURDETTE:  Was she in the secretary's 15 


office?  No, I don't know.  I'm sorry, I don't 16 


remember. 17 


  MR. GREENE:  Was she like assistant director 18 


of the division or something? 19 


  MS. BURDETTE:  Yes, that sounds familiar. 20 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  I'm not 100 percent sure 21 


of that. 22 


  MS. BURDETTE:  Yeah I mean these were, these 23 


were meetings with a lot of folks gathered around the 24 


table that were part of it and who led them?  Maybe it 25 
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was Sheila?  I don't remember.  I mean I know Sheila 1 


was there, Sheila Holman. 2 


  MR. GREENE:  Right. 3 


  MS. BURDETTE:  But I don't recall whether she 4 


led them or… 5 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay. 6 


  MS. BURDETTE:  She did towards the end I do 7 


remember but… 8 


  MR. GREENE:  What about the governor's office?  9 


Do you have any contact regarding the ACP, regarding 10 


anyone inside the governor's office? 11 


  MS. BURDETTE:  Not that I know of.  I mean, 12 


not unless I misunderstood somebody's position. 13 


  MR. GREENE:  All right.  Did you -- were you 14 


aware that a draft denial letter was prepared? 15 


  MS. BURDETTE:  Yes. 16 


  MR. GREENE:  Can you tell us a little bit 17 


about why and when that was prepared? 18 


  MS. BURDETTE:  So the hearing officer's report 19 


is prepared and in order to not -- the decision is 20 


ultimately the division director's decision.  And as 21 


support for that, and I believe Karen Higgins wrote the 22 


draft denial,  we provide both a denial and an approval 23 


for the division director to make their decision based 24 


on reviewing the hearing officer's report as to whether 25 
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they chose to. 1 


  MR. GREENE:  Is that a normal practice? 2 


  MS. BURDETTE:  It is with individual projects 3 


that have a public hearing and a hearing officer's 4 


report. 5 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  Do you know when that was 6 


prepared? 7 


  MS. BURDETTE:  I don't remember. 8 


  MR. BEERS:  Okay.  The draft denial, there's a 9 


copy in the public documents, there's really no -- if 10 


you look at this.  Have you seen the draft denial? 11 


  MS. BURDETTE:  I'm sure I have before. 12 


  MR. BEERS:  Okay.  There's really no 13 


information that's for the reasoning for denying the 14 


permit.  So and I've just handed her a copy to look at.  15 


So the question I have, the hearing officer's report is 16 


pretty detailed.  It explains all the criteria that's 17 


been reviewed and analyzed.  Do you have any reason to 18 


believe that this permit could possibly be denied at 19 


the point that this denial letter was given?  Do you 20 


personally believe that it could have happened? 21 


  MR. LANE:  Professionally. 22 


  MR. BEERS:  Professionally, from your 23 


experience with these permits and all the information 24 


that has gone into this.  Is it -- even a chance that 25 
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the permit would be denied? 1 


  MR. LANE:  If you know.  I'm sorry.  Are you 2 


done reviewing the letter? 3 


  MS. BURDETTE:  Yes. 4 


  MR. BEERS:  This is just to show you that 5 


there is really no information… 6 


  MS. BURDETTE:  Yeah. 7 


  MR. BEERS:  There is no cause for a denial put 8 


into the letter. 9 


  MR. LANE:  Remember, she's here to present 10 


facts. 11 


  MR. BEERS:  Absolutely. 12 


  MR. LANE:  And not beliefs or opinions. 13 


  MR. BEERS:  All right.  In your professional 14 


opinion, was there a need for a draft denial letter at 15 


the time that the hearing officer's report was 16 


submitted? 17 


  MS. BURDETTE:  My review determined that the 18 


project met the six criteria for the issuance of a 401. 19 


  MR. BEERS:  Okay.  So according to the rules 20 


of the permit then a permit would have been granted 21 


based on supplying the correct information? 22 


  MS. BURDETTE:  Yes. 23 


  MR. BEERS:  So I guess you could conclude that 24 


they wouldn't have denied that the permit based on what 25 
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you've just said. 1 


  MS. BURDETTE:  Well, you know how rules are.  2 


Everybody interprets it. 3 


  MR. BEERS:  I'm just asking you for the -- 4 


what is the real need for this letter if they'd met all 5 


the criteria and you know it was going to be granted? 6 


  MS. BURDETTE:  My understanding of that was -- 7 


that it wasn't our ultimate decision. 8 


  MR. BEERS:  Whose ultimate decision was it? 9 


  MS. BURDETTE:  The director. 10 


  MR. BEERS:  Which would be? 11 


  MS. BURDETTE:  Jay Zimmerman, Jay Zimmerman.  12 


Is Jay still around? 13 


  MR. GREENE:  I think at that time it was Ms. 14 


Culpepper (cross talk). 15 


  MS. BURDETTE:  I'm sorry they change and 16 


(cross talk) yes I am probably confusing.  Maybe it was 17 


Linda at that time.  I -- we -- they change those guys 18 


a bit but that role is the director of the Division of 19 


Water Resources. 20 


  MR. BEERS:  So could she have denied the 21 


permit just without even though all the criteria had 22 


been met, according to the rules? 23 


  MS. BURDETTE:  I don't know.  I mean. 24 


  MR. BEERS:  You didn't have a discussion with 25 
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anyone about this denial letter? 1 


  MS. BURDETTE:  Other than what I've already 2 


told you that it's prepared routinely when these 3 


projects have hearing officer's report because the 4 


ultimate decision isn't at staff level but at the 5 


director level. 6 


  MR. BEERS:  So you have personally seen these 7 


drafted in other cases? 8 


  MS. BURDETTE:  Yes. 9 


  MR. BEERS:  In your professional experience.  10 


Okay.  So this is a routine document that's always put 11 


up. 12 


  MS. BURDETTE:  It's -- to not be presumptive. 13 


  MR. BEERS:  Right.  So just another question.  14 


There is no one that basically instructed you or Ms. 15 


Higgins to prepare this out of the ordinary? 16 


  MS. BURDETTE:  No. 17 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  How many of those have you 18 


seen roughly? 19 


  MS. BURDETTE:  I can think of two besides the 20 


Atlantic Coast Pipeline. 21 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay. 22 


  MR. BEERS:  And were those -- on those two was 23 


it, was it before one certification issued? 24 


  MS. BURDETTE:  Yeah.  Yes and I don't 25 
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remember. 1 


  MR. BEERS:  Okay. 2 


  MS. BURDETTE:  I wasn't involved in one 3 


project that I was aware that there was a denial letter 4 


that -- I wasn't processing that project.  So… 5 


  MR. BEERS:  How many 401 permits have you been 6 


involved with in the course of your career? 7 


  MS. BURDETTE:  Gosh, I don't know.  I mean I 8 


don't have an estimate of that. 9 


  MR. BEERS:  So more than the three or the 10 


three denial letters that you've seen. 11 


  MS. BURDETTE:  I mean, it was easily -- wait a 12 


minute I'm sorry. 13 


  MR. BEERS:  So I guess the question. 14 


  MS. BURDETTE:  (cross talk) Clarify that one 15 


more time for me to make sure I understood. 16 


  MR. BEERS:  Okay.  You've been involved with 17 


numerous 401 permits? 18 


  MS. BURDETTE:  Yes. 19 


  MR. BEERS:  To the point where you don't 20 


remember exactly how many. 21 


  MS. BURDETTE:  Yes.  Those are the more 22 


individual certifications that are… 23 


  MR. BEERS:  Right. 24 


  MS. BURDETTE:  That don't require public 25 
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hearing level -- 1 


  MR. BEERS:  Okay. 2 


  MS. BURDETTE:  -- projects and don't have 3 


those hearing officer reports and that aspect of the 4 


review. 5 


  MR. BEERS:  Okay.  So how many have you been 6 


involved with actually had that type of review, hearing 7 


officer's report? 8 


  MS. BURDETTE:  Two. 9 


  MR. BEERS:  Two?  And they were the ones that 10 


you saw the draft denial letters placed so that's 11 


routine for those types of 401 permits? 12 


  MS. BURDETTE:  Yes.  When there's a public 13 


hearing, yes. 14 


  MR. GREENE:  All right okay.  Want to talk a 15 


little bit about the final few weeks of the process and 16 


when the hearing officer's report was submitted, I 17 


believe you had a chance to review it and do you recall 18 


what date you received the hearing officer's report? 19 


  MS. BURDETTE:  No, I don't. 20 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  We've reviewed several of 21 


the e-mails that were provided via the public record 22 


and it said.  This is on January 4, Brian Wrenn 23 


completes.  Brian Wrenn is the hearing officer. 24 


  MS. BURDETTE:  Uh-huh. 25 
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  MR. GREENE:  (Inaudible) his report he sends 1 


it to Higgins and Burdette, it's on January 4.  And did 2 


you review those that hearing officer's report at that 3 


particular time? 4 


  MS. BURDETTE:  I don't specifically remember 5 


but I should have. 6 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  That's fine.  Let's go 7 


back to December.  Or let's just add this question, at 8 


what time did you think a decision would be made on the 9 


401 permit? 10 


  MS. BURDETTE:  When we received all the 11 


information and had completed our review of the six 12 


criteria. 13 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  Do you know when that 14 


would have been? 15 


  MS. BURDETTE:  I mean I don't remember. 16 


  MR. GREENE:  Here are some of your notes I 17 


want to show you from 1/3 and it's got the dates at the 18 


bottom, I've just highlighted those and this is all 19 


coming from the staff files that are made for public 20 


records.  Are those your notes? 21 


  MS. BURDETTE:  Yes, they are. 22 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  And at the bottom down 23 


there, where it says -- I just think -- received, add 24 


information, received or something with those dates, 25 
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would that be what you're referring to is when you 1 


received the information? 2 


  MS. BURDETTE:  They would have been what I had 3 


received by the time, of course, this was written in 4 


January. 5 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  Were there other requests 6 


made outside of that? 7 


  MS. BURDETTE:  Yes, I believe that this -- 8 


that there were additional requests for information or 9 


request to supplement additional information or provide 10 


addend (phonetic) information we'd already received. 11 


  MR. GREENE:  We've heard the term true-up.  12 


What is that? 13 


  MS. BURDETTE:  What's that again? 14 


  MR. GREENE:  True-up, to finalize the numbers? 15 


  MS. BURDETTE:  Oh, I have not heard true-up 16 


myself. 17 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  So you're not familiar 18 


with that term? 19 


  MS. BURDETTE:  Not that term.  No. 20 


  MR. GREENE:  What would you call -- I guess 21 


verification of their figures -- maybe just a request 22 


for verification. 23 


  MS. BURDETTE:  Yes.  Right, yes. 24 


  MR. GREENE:  Before the final. 25 
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  MS. BURDETTE:  Well, sometimes when projects 1 


are very large and there are a lot of different impacts 2 


and, you know, we're talking about numbers of, you 3 


know, adding up a lot of individual numbers, we will 4 


commonly -- not commonly.  Usually it's only in that 5 


circumstance where you have, you know, one or two 6 


impacts we don't need somebody to tell us we have the 7 


right number.  But when you have such -- so many 8 


different impacts we have before sent it to the 9 


applicant and said, is this is what you thought your 10 


total numbers were going to be? Just to reduce errors 11 


and mistakes as far as tallying and accounting of those 12 


individual impacts. 13 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.   Did you have direct 14 


conversations with the applicant's representatives? 15 


  MS. BURDETTE:  I didn't.  I believe Karen took 16 


care of that. 17 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  Do you know Spencer 18 


Trichell? 19 


  MS. BURDETTE:  Yes. 20 


  MR. GREENE:  And what was his position? 21 


  MS. BURDETTE:  He worked for Dominion at the 22 


end.  In the beginning, he worked for, I believe, a 23 


consultant and he went to work for Dominion after that. 24 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay did -- what was his position 25 
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relating to your duties and the 401 processing? 1 


  MS. BURDETTE:  He was the primary point of 2 


contact with Dominion about the application and the 3 


additional information requests. 4 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  And your phone log was 5 


also provided as public record and there's multiple 6 


calls from him. 7 


  MS. BURDETTE:  Yes. 8 


  MR. GREENE:  And to him and so forth.  So do 9 


you recall that you were talking to him on a regular 10 


basis?  How would you categorize the contact and the 11 


context of those calls? 12 


  MS. BURDETTE:  I would say more maybe sporadic 13 


that it depended on, you know, the -- it was on a -- 14 


well, it was on a regular basis.  I talked to him 15 


plenty, you know, back and forth.  It was usually some 16 


question or clarification of what, you know, what 17 


specifically were we asking for, what do we mean, what 18 


-- whether guidance as to what data or what 19 


documentation we needed specifically to fulfill, you 20 


know, our application requirements.  Those kinds of 21 


general. 22 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  Do you recall sending him 23 


an e-mail? 24 


  MS. BURDETTE:  Okay. 25 
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  MR. GREENE:  Do you have those e-mails? 1 


 2 


  MR. BEERS:  Yes, which ones? 3 


  MR. GREENE:  The last one.  That's it.  Is it 4 


the one to Trichell.  No.  There was a request for 5 


information… 6 


  MR. BEERS:  Oh you're talking about the true-7 


up ones? 8 


  MR. GREENE:  Correct.  Sorry. 9 


  MS. BURDETTE:  That's fine. 10 


  MR. GREENE:  The case generated a lot of 11 


documents. 12 


  MS. BURDETTE:  Oh my gosh.  And then that e-13 


mail chain. 14 


  MR. GREENE:  Yes and we certainly appreciate 15 


all the work.   16 


  MR. BEERS:  Yeah. 17 


  MR. GREENE:  It was Higgins, doing those.  18 


Okay. This timeline, you want to do it? 19 


  MR. BEERS:  Yeah, so let's see.  Just coming 20 


back to the permitting process.  There's a series of e-21 


mails between all DEQ I think they are almost internal 22 


between Higgins, yourself, Wrenn.  And the first ones 23 


starts off and -- we don't have a lot of time but it 24 


starts off on December 14th.  And this is an e-mail 25 
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from Karen Higgins to Bridgette I think it's 1 


Culpepper's assistant.  She's trying to schedule a 2 


meeting with you, yourself, Mr. Wrenn to go over a 3 


hearing officer's report, trying to schedule for 4 


January 4th.  So it looks like you are getting ready to 5 


approve the 401 permit.   6 


  MR. LANE:  Can we get copies of these. 7 


  MR. GREENE:  We can give copies when we are 8 


done.  Just want to put it back in the right file. 9 


  MS. BURDETTE:  Do I need to look through all 10 


of these or? 11 


  MR. BEERS:  You don't have to -- I can just -- 12 


I can just go over this.  We're running out of time so 13 


I'm going to just go through.  So on the 14th this e-14 


mail is sent out to, it looks like they tried to set up 15 


a meeting with the director to basically go over the 16 


hearing officer's report which would be the pretty much 17 


the end of the permitting process, correct?  Getting 18 


towards the end. 19 


  MS. BURDETTE:  Sure.  Fair. 20 


  MR. BEERS:  So it looks like it's got all your 21 


information and that's on December 14th.  And then it 22 


moves on to, let's see… 23 


  MR. GREENE:  I think we mentioned the January 24 


4 that you got, received the hearing officer's report? 25 
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  MR. Beers:  So I think you got all your 1 


information.  You're expecting to get this information.  2 


It looks like from Dominion by -- I don't know at some 3 


point -- I don't know at some point.  According to the 4 


documents you got everything you needed by December 5 


20th.  And you were looking to move forward probably to 6 


review the permit. 7 


  MS. BURDETTE:  I don't believe we had 8 


everything we needed by December 20th. 9 


  MR. Beers:  Well, everything dated that you 10 


asked them for, for the first -- the 20th -- according 11 


to the hearing officer's report, that was the last 12 


receipt of information.  And then January 3rd you are 13 


reviewing the hearing officer's report.  And January 14 


4th looks like you're getting ready to meet with Ms. 15 


Culpepper to go over the -- and then somehow the e-16 


mails looks like you're going to actually do it on next 17 


Monday the 8th to actually meet with Culpepper to talk 18 


about this.  So I guess the question, you're moving 19 


forward, you have it in the process and then it looks 20 


like through the e-mails that Bridget Munger makes a 21 


request from Brian Wrenn to instead of sending the 22 


report to Culpepper to send it to her to the director's 23 


office.  Do you recall any conversation about why? 24 


  MS. BURDETTE:  I don't recall that. 25 
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  MR. BEERS:  It would go around the secretary's 1 


office instead of the normal process. 2 


  MS. BURDETTE:  I don't recall the finalization 3 


of the hearing officer's report.  I mean, I… 4 


  MR. BEERS:  So okay. 5 


  MR. GREENE:  And you were still in your 6 


position in January.  You said you think you left in 7 


February? 8 


  MS. BURDETTE:  I think I left the 1st of 9 


February. 10 


  MR. GREENE:  So do you recall the issuance of 11 


the 401 certification? 12 


  MS. BURDETTE:  Yes, I do. 13 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  And I think it was 14 


officially signed on the 26th. 15 


  MS. BURDETTE:  Okay. 16 


  MR. GREENE:  Of January.  During this time 17 


period, what normally takes place?  Once the hearing 18 


officer's report is received and reviewed, how long 19 


does it normally take before the permit is issued? 20 


  MS. BURDETTE:  Well, it depends on workload 21 


and what all else is going on at the time.  I did go 22 


back and review just those last few additional 23 


information that was sent.  And you know we don't wait 24 


to begin working on drafts or anything till the very, 25 
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very end.  Those issues and items there is a lot of 1 


standard conditions that go in there that are very 2 


routine, and so you know, we were working on the letter 3 


but that didn't mean we didn't have some additional 4 


information that we hadn't quite received and got 5 


enough what we felt was enough of a documentation and 6 


answer about and if I -- which I believe is a 7 


cumulative impact analysis I feel like it was the last 8 


thing. 9 


  MR. GREENE:  It was. 10 


  MS. BURDETTE:  It was the last piece that we 11 


felt like we didn't quite have everything we needed to 12 


say it met that criteria. 13 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay. 14 


  MR. BEERS:  Okay Can I follow up on that? That 15 


last request I think was made November 28.  I can show 16 


you this document. 17 


  MS. BURDETTE:  Okay. 18 


  MR. BEERS:  But that's what it shows in the 19 


documents but… 20 


  MS. BURDETTE:  Sure. 21 


  MR. BEERS:  In Ms. Higgins' note she has a 22 


rough timeline of when she thinks this is at that point 23 


in time at December -- this is November 20th.  She 24 


looks like anticipating that when she believes the 25 
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permits will be issued and the hearing officer's report 1 


will be complete.  But that actually gets extended 2 


because another request goes out on November 28th.  Do 3 


you recall conversations from Ms. Higgins or why that, 4 


you know, from that point it looks like things were 5 


rolling on fast.  Why did this extra information 6 


request go out on the 28th because at that point in 7 


time it looks like you were planning on moving forward 8 


with the hearing officer's report? 9 


  MS. BURDETTE:  I think this was just planning 10 


and… 11 


  MR. BEERS:  Right.  But was there some -- so 12 


the additional request on the 28 for the cumulative 13 


impact that's the last one, who is -- who decided to 14 


make that request? 15 


  MS. BURDETTE:  Karen and I both looked over 16 


that particular criteria of the permit. 17 


  MR. BEERS:  Okay. 18 


  MS. BURDETTE:  And based on public comments 19 


and -- I will say that we with our individual projects 20 


we -- I didn't have as much experience with the 21 


secondary and cumulative impact analysis.  And we 22 


looked into it and felt like we didn't really have the 23 


information we needed to say for sure that it would not 24 


have a secondary and cumulative impact without 25 
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additional information from the applicant.  And we 1 


wanted to be very sure that we met our obligation to 2 


make sure the project met the rules. 3 


  MR. BEERS:  So that was -- you and Karen made 4 


that decision? 5 


  MS. BURDETTE:  We consulted with Brian Wrenn 6 


on that.  Brian Wrenn had more transportation 7 


experience. 8 


  MR. BEERS:  So the three of you consulted 9 


together?  It wasn’t someone above in the secretary's 10 


office, director's office who said, "Hey, go look into 11 


this." 12 


  MS. BURDETTE:  No, that was Karen and I. 13 


  MR. BEERS:  That was your (cross talk). 14 


  MS. BURDETTE:  Yeah, leaning on Brian because 15 


he had more transportation experience in linear 16 


projects.  And more secondary and cumulative impact 17 


analysis experience. 18 


  MR. BEERS:  Okay. 19 


  MS. BURDETTE:  Based on his previous history. 20 


  MR. GREENE:  And I think here's a 11/28 note 21 


from yours and you're talking about a disconnect 22 


between the benefit claimed in the ICE.  ICE what does 23 


ICE stand for? 24 


  MS. BURDETTE:  What is it?  Cumulative -- it's 25 
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part of the -- yeah. 1 


  MR. BEERS:  Part of what you're talking about.  2 


Yes. 3 


  MS. BURDETTE:  Yeah part of cumulative impact 4 


analysis.  I can't remember what those letters stand 5 


for exactly. 6 


  MR. Lane:  Can she take a look at what you are 7 


looking at--  8 


  MR. BEERS:  Yeah.  And I believe we've got the 9 


ST, I'm assuming those were the initials that you made 10 


for Spencer Trichell. 11 


  MS. BURDETTE:  Okay.  Let me see here.  Okay 12 


this was a --  13 


  MR. BEERS:  And I believe it says -- he says 14 


it's speculative or what does it say there? 15 


  MS. BURDETTE:  Oh yeah Spencer, ST, says very 16 


speculative. 17 


  MR. BEERS:  And then what's under that? 18 


  MS. BURDETTE:  I replied that it should be 19 


speculative.  And that's the -- referring to the 20 


analysis.  You know you are speculating on what might 21 


happen.  It's not known.  I believe they provided a lot 22 


of -- for their first response to the cumulative impact 23 


analysis was they provided a lot of known projects, you 24 


know, on the books as far as in planning and those 25 
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kinds of things.  And they thought that was enough and 1 


we said well no, your analysis needs to include a more 2 


robust analysis -- a more robust evaluation of what you 3 


expect development wise from this project. 4 


  MR. GREENE:  Who was they? 5 


  MS. BURDETTE:  Well, the applicant you know 6 


believed they had provided what they needed. 7 


  MR. BEERS:  Right. 8 


  MS. BURDETTE:  And we were explaining that 9 


they needed to elaborate on that. 10 


  MR. BEERS:  And that's between you, Wrenn and 11 


Higgins felt that it was necessary to elaborate on 12 


that? 13 


  MS. BURDETTE:  Yes. 14 


  MR. BEERS:  Were there any other factors or 15 


any other individuals that were encouraging to do that? 16 


  MS. BURDETTE:  No, not that I remember.  This 17 


was a checking our boxes and making sure we had 18 


completely reviewed everything and had all the data we 19 


needed. 20 


  MR. BEERS:  Okay. 21 


  MR. LANE:  You've got two minutes. 22 


  MR. BEERS:  Yes sir, thank you.  Were you ever 23 


-- did you ever have -- express any or did you have 24 


concerns that the project permitting process was 25 
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dragging or taking longer than it should? 1 


  MS. BURDETTE:  I don't remember.  I mean it 2 


did take a long time.  I don't remember other than 3 


just… 4 


  MR. BEERS:  Did you ever hear anyone say that 5 


the Departments or the Department is putting up 6 


barriers? 7 


  MS. BURDETTE:  Not that I remember. 8 


  MR. BEERS:  Okay. 9 


  MS. BURDETTE:  Other than all applicants you 10 


know sort of gripe about how long -- I mean that --  11 


  MR. BEERS:  Within the department, not the 12 


applicant itself but that the department was putting up 13 


barriers for the permitting process. 14 


  MS. BURDETTE:  No, not that I remember. 15 


  MR. BEERS:   Okay.  Did you ever have any 16 


conversations with anyone regarding concerns that it 17 


was taking a long time? 18 


  MS. BURDETTE:  I don't remember.  I mean other 19 


than, you know, just status, where are you, or what's 20 


next, I mean sorry the applicant is all I remember of 21 


them of course being anxious to get through the process 22 


but I don't remember the department being --  23 


  MR. BEERS:  Were you aware of a mitigation 24 


fund outside of DEQ? 25 
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  MS. BURDETTE:  I did not hear anything about 1 


that until I left, through the news. 2 


  MR. BEERS:  Okay.  I think -- do you have 3 


anything further? 4 


  MR. GREENE:  No. I think we're --  5 


  MR. BEERS:  We're right on the button here and 6 


we certainly appreciate your time. 7 


  MR. GREENE:  Yes, thank you very much. 8 


  MS. BURDETTE:  You're welcome. 9 


  MR. GREENE:  Thank you.  And the current time 10 


is 9 -- 10 o'clock on the dot and I'm going to turn the 11 


recorders off. 12 


  MR. BEERS:  Yeah, we'll figure out getting 13 


copies. 14 


  MR. LANE:  Yeah, we'll reorganize them and use 15 


whatever you can.  These are all public documents. 16 


  MR. BEERS:  Yeah, I understand that's fine. 17 


  MR. GREENE:  We do appreciate your time.  18 


Thank you very, very much. 19 


  MS. BURDETTE:  Oh, you're welcome. 20 
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From: Doug Heyl  


To: Julia White (julia.white@nc.gov)  
Subject: Date: Attachments:  


Heyl, Douglas  


FW: ACP Update Notes - Jan. 3, 2018 Wednesday, January 3, 2018 1:36:00 PM image001.png  


North Carolina Department of Environmental Quality 919.707.9034 (Office) 
919.812.3415 (Mobile) 
douglas.heyl@ncdenr.gov  


Email correspondence to and from this address is subject to the 
North Carolina Public Records Law and may be disclosed to third parties.  


From: Munger, Bridget 
Sent: Wednesday, January 03, 2018 1:04 PM 
To: Holman, Sheila <sheila.holman@ncdenr.gov> 
Cc: Heyl, Douglas <Douglas.Heyl@ncdenr.gov>; Munger, Bridget <bridget.munger@ncdenr.gov> 
Subject: ACP Update Notes ‐ Jan. 3, 2018  


ACP Weekly Update Notes Jan. 3, 2018  


DAQ: No written response has been received from Dominion following DAQ’s request for 
additional information on the air quality permit application for the Northampton compressor 
station facility. Mike A. has reviewed draft hearing officer’s report; it is in good shape.  


DWR: In response to the fifth add-info request, Dominion submitted a revised cumulative 
analysis report on Dec. 20. Information submitted is under review to ensure that all the 
requested information has been provided. Final edits are being made to the hearing officer’s 
report. Staff is meeting with Linda Culpepper tomorrow to discuss further.  


DEMLR - E&SC: Staff will issue another letter of disapproval to Dominion by Jan. 4, which is the 
15-day deadline date. The letter will include about 19 comments/items, which is down from 34 
on the last letter of disapproval. There is no set deadline for Dominion to respond once the letter 
of disapproval is issued. Staff said the timeline is working out that we may be ready to issue an 
approval for the E&SC and construction stormwater permit application when the 401 certification 
issues are  


 


resolved. Per standard procedures, DEMLR will not issue the E&SC or construction stormwater 
permit approval prior to 401/404 approvals.  







DEMLR - Stormwater: No information has been received from Dominion in response to the 
DEMLR’s requests for more information on the stormwater general permit and stormwater 
individual permit. Options for a public comment period are under discussion.  


Bridget Munger 
Public Information Officer 
N.C. Department of Environmental Quality  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







 


From: Wrenn, Brian L  


To: Higgins, Karen; Burdette, Jennifer a 
Subject: Date: Attachments:  


RE: ACP Well Testing 
Thursday, January 4, 2018 12:54:46 PM image001.png  


Ok, I think I have the comments and edits from both of you resolved. Karen, I made one change to the 
appendices order and double checked the references in the text but no changes to the Appendices other 
than that. I’ve included the well testing language about complaints, added the 500 feet zone around 
blasting, and the cumulative analysis write‐up as well. I think that covers it. I’ve saved the report with 
today’s date. Let me know what you think. Thanks.  


Brian Wrenn 919‐743‐8409 (office) 919‐491‐2616 (cell)  


From: Higgins, Karen 
Sent: Thursday, January 04, 2018 9:47 AM 
To: Burdette, Jennifer a <Jennifer.Burdette@ncdenr.gov>; Wrenn, Brian L <brian.wrenn@ncdenr.gov> 
Subject: Re: ACP Well Testing  


agreed  


Thanks‐ Karen  


Karen Higgins  


401 & Buffer Permitting Branch Supervisor Division of Water Resources 
Department of Environmental Quality  


919 807-6360 office 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







From: Wrenn, Brian L  


To: Higgins, Karen; Burdette, Jennifer 


Subject: a FW: ACP HO report 


Date: Friday, January 5, 2018 9:17:45 AM 


Not sure if either of you got in this am, but I’m at home with one sick child and another out of school 
due to snow. The Secretary’s office wants to review the HO report prior to sending to Linda. I told 
Bridget we would send a copy to them when we send to Jeff. I doing another read through right now. 
When do you think you can finish your review? Thanks!  


Brian Wrenn 919‐743‐8409 (office) 919‐491‐2616 (cell)  


From: Munger, Bridget 
Sent: Friday, January 05, 2018 8:56 AM 
To: Wrenn, Brian L <brian.wrenn@ncdenr.gov> Subject: RE: ACP HO report  


That sounds great. Thanks!  


From: Wrenn, Brian L 
Sent: Friday, January 5, 2018 8:44 AM 
To: Munger, Bridget <bridget.munger@ncdenr.gov> Subject: Re: ACP HO report  


I think the HO report is their focus this am. If it’s ok, we can send the draft to you when we send it to Jeff 
to review. Thanks.  


Sent from my iPhone 
On Jan 5, 2018, at 8:09 AM, Munger, Bridget <bridget.munger@ncdenr.gov> wrote:  


Hi Brian, 
If Karen and Jennifer will be looking at the report today, I can wait for that draft. Please let me know what 
you prefer. 
Thank you! 
Bridget 
(Working at home this morning: 919-268-0069)  


From: Wrenn, Brian L 
Sent: Thursday, January 4, 2018 7:25 PM 
To: Munger, Bridget <bridget.munger@ncdenr.gov> Subject: ACP HO report  


Please make it known that this has not gone through final revisions. Some of the cumulative impact 
language is new and neither Karen nor Jennifer have reviewed it at all. Thanks.  


 


 







From:  


To: Subject: Date:  


Brian‐  


Higgins, Karen  


Wrenn, Brian L; Burdette, Jennifer a RE: ACP HO report 
Friday, January 5, 2018 11:37:00 AM  


Just a few minor suggestions highlighted in yellow. I don’t think Jennifer will review this today 
so please go ahead and send to Jeff and others.  


Since the department is reviewing the documents before going to Linda, I’m not sure that it will 
be ready for her by Monday. Should we try to reschedule for later in the week? We could try for 
after the EMC on Thursday (maybe 3:30) or Friday (maybe 8:45 or 2:00).  


Thanks‐ Karen  


Karen Higgins  


401 & Buffer Permitting Branch Supervisor Division of Water Resources 
Department of Environmental Quality  


(919) 807-6360 office  


karen.higgins@ncdenr.gov  


https://deq.nc.gov/about/divisions/water-resources/water-resources-permits/wastewater-branch/401- 
wetlands-buffer-permits  


512 N. Salisbury Street (Archdale Building), Suite 942-E, Raleigh, NC 27604 1617 Mail Service Center, 
Raleigh, NC 27699-1617  


Email correspondence to and from this address is subject to the North Carolina Public Records Law and 
may be disclosed to third parties.  


From: Wrenn, Brian L 
Sent: Friday, January 05, 2018 9:18 AM 
To: Higgins, Karen <karen.higgins@ncdenr.gov>; Burdette, Jennifer a <Jennifer.Burdette@ncdenr.gov> 
Subject: FW: ACP HO report  


Not sure if either of you got in this am, but I’m at home with one sick child and another out of school 
due to snow. The Secretary’s office wants to review the HO report prior to sending to Linda. I told 
Bridget we would send a copy to them when we send to Jeff. I doing another read through right now. 
When do you think you can finish your review? Thanks!  


Brian Wrenn 919‐743‐8409 (office)  







From: Munger, Bridget 
Sent: Friday, January 05, 2018 8:56 AM 
To: Wrenn, Brian L <brian.wrenn@ncdenr.gov> Subject: RE: ACP HO report  


That sounds great. Thanks!  


From: Wrenn, Brian L 
Sent: Friday, January 5, 2018 8:44 AM 
To: Munger, Bridget <bridget.munger@ncdenr.gov> Subject: Re: ACP HO report  


I think the HO report is their focus this am. If it’s ok, we can send the draft to you when we send it to Jeff 
to review. Thanks.  


Sent from my iPhone 
On Jan 5, 2018, at 8:09 AM, Munger, Bridget <bridget.munger@ncdenr.gov> wrote:  


Hi Brian, 
If Karen and Jennifer will be looking at the report today, I can wait for that draft. Please let me know what 
you prefer. 
Thank you! 
Bridget 
(Working at home this morning: 919-268-0069)  


From: Wrenn, Brian L 
Sent: Thursday, January 4, 2018 7:25 PM 
To: Munger, Bridget <bridget.munger@ncdenr.gov> Subject: ACP HO report  


Please make it known that this has not gone through final revisions. Some of the cumulative impact 
language is new and neither Karen nor Jennifer have reviewed it at all. Thanks.  


Brian L. Wrenn 
Ecosystems Branch Chief Water Sciences Section 
NC Division of Water Resources 919‐743‐8409 (office) 919‐491‐2616 (cell)  


Physical Address:  


4401 Reedy Creek Road Raleigh, NC 27607  


Mailing Address:  


1621 Mail Service Center Raleigh, NC 27699‐1623  


 


 


 


 







From: Wrenn, Brian L  


To: Higgins, Karen; Burdette, Jennifer a 
 
Subject: FW: ACP hearing officer"s report 


Date: Friday, January 5, 2018 12:19:39 PM 


Attachments:  


FYI  


 
ACP_hearing officers rept_01052018.docx 


Brian Wrenn 919‐743‐8409 (office) 919‐491‐2616 (cell)  


From: Wrenn, Brian L 
Sent: Friday, January 05, 2018 12:19 PM 
To: Poupart, Jeff <jeff.poupart@ncdenr.gov> 
Cc: Munger, Bridget <bridget.munger@ncdenr.gov> Subject: ACP hearing officer's report  


Jeff, 
Please find attached the draft hearing officer’s report for the ACP project. If you have any questions, 
please do not hesitate to contact me. I’m at home with kids, so try my cell (919‐491‐2616). Thanks.  


Brian L. Wrenn 
Ecosystems Branch Chief Water Sciences Section 
NC Division of Water Resources 919‐743‐8409 (office) 919‐491‐2616 (cell)  


Physical Address:  


4401 Reedy Creek Road Raleigh, N 19681C 27607  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







From: To: Subject: Date:  


Burdette, Jennifer a  


Wrenn, Brian L  


RE: ACP hearing officer"s report Friday, January 5, 2018 4:15:00 PM  


Sorry for missing your call this morning. I was deep into the draft of the 401. Before I left, I just 
wanted to thank you for all of your help with this project. I enjoyed and learned a lot working 
with you.  


Take care, Jennifer  


Jennifer Burdette  


401/Buffer Coordinator 
Division of Water Resources - 401 & Buffer Permitting Branch Department of Environmental Quality 
919 807 6364 office 
jennifer.burdette@ncdenr.gov  


1617 Mail Service Center Raleigh, NC 27699-1617  


(Physical Address: 512 N. Salisbury St, Raleigh, NC 27604 - 9th Flr Archdale Bldg – Room 942F) Email 
correspondence to and from this address is subject to the  


North Carolina Public Records Law and may be disclosed to third parties.  


From: Wrenn, Brian L 
Sent: Friday, January 05, 2018 12:20 PM 
To: Higgins, Karen <karen.higgins@ncdenr.gov>; Burdette, Jennifer a <Jennifer.Burdette@ncdenr.gov> 
Subject: FW: ACP hearing officer's report  


FYI  


Brian Wrenn 919‐743‐8409 (office) 919‐491‐2616 (cell)  


From: Wrenn, Brian L 
Sent: Friday, January 05, 2018 12:19 PM 
To: Poupart, Jeff <jeff.poupart@ncdenr.gov> 
Cc: Munger, Bridget <bridget.munger@ncdenr.gov> Subject: ACP hearing officer's report  


Jeff, 
Please find attached the draft hearing officer’s report for the ACP project. If you have any questions, 
please do not hesitate to contact me. I’m at home with kids, so try my cell (919‐491‐2616). Thanks.  


Brian L. Wrenn 
Ecosystems Branch Chief Water Sciences Section 
NC Division of Water Resources 919‐743‐8409 (office) 919‐491‐2616 (cell)  







From: Wrenn, Brian L  


To: Higgins, Karen 
Poupart, Jeff 
Cc:  


Subject: Re: ACP - Draft Decision Documents 


 Date: Sunday, January 21, 2018 8:58:42 PM  


Karen, 
I accepted all of the edits on the HO rept. I looked at the 401 one last time. In condition 16, it 
references an exemption from condition #13. should that be #15 instead?  


I'll sign the document and send it to Linda, copying you and Jeff. Thanks for all of your help on 
this.  


From: Higgins, Karen 
Sent: Friday, January 19, 2018 9:26:01 PM To: Wrenn, Brian L 
Cc: Poupart, Jeff 
Subject: Re: ACP ‐ Draft Decision Documents  


Brian‐  


Attached are a revised 401 and HO report. I made the edits to the HO report based on your 
comments in the 401 and reviewed a couple other places as well. I used the HO report I sent 
yesterday with those track changes accepted, so the only track changes you see are those I 
made today.  


I also made the recommended changes to the draft 401. 
Please let me know if you have any further comments/changes for either document.  


Thanks‐ Karen  


Karen Higgins  


401 & Buffer Permitting Branch Supervisor Division of Water Resources 
Department of Environmental Quality  


919 807-6360 office karen.higgins@ncdenr.gov  


 


 


 







From: Higgins, Karen 
Sent: Thursday, January 18, 2018 10:00 PM 
To: Wrenn, Brian L <brian.wrenn@ncdenr.gov>; Poupart, Jeff <jeff.poupart@ncdenr.gov> 
Subject: ACP ‐ Draft Decision Documents  


Attached please find the draft 401 certification for ACP as well as the draft denial letter. Please 
review and send me any edits/comments etc. If you make edits in the document(s) please use 
track changes so I can look at them easily.  


Please send me comments tomorrow if possible, or at least Monday morning.  


Thanks‐ Karen  


Karen Higgins  


401 & Buffer Permitting Branch Supervisor Division of Water Resources 
Department of Environmental Quality  


919 807-6360 office  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







 


From: Wrenn, Brian L  


To: Culpepper, Linda 
Cc: Poupart, Jeff; Higgins, Karen 
 
Subject: ACP Hearing Officer"s report 
Date: Monday, January 22, 2018 8:41:00 AM  


Attachments: ACP_hearing officers rept_01222018.pdf 


Linda, 
Please find attached for your review the Hearing Officer’s report for the Atlantic Coast Pipeline project. I 
am happy to discuss this with you if you have any questions or comments. Thanks!  


Brian L. Wrenn 
Ecosystems Branch Chief Water Sciences Section 
NC Division of Water Resources 919‐743‐8409 (office) 919‐491‐2616 (cell)  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







From: Munger, Bridget  


To: Holman, Sheila; Heyl, Douglas 
 


Subject: Fwd: ACP Hearing Officer"s report 


Date: Monday, January 22, 2018 2:51:28 PM 


Attachments: ACP_hearing officers rept_01222018.pdf ATT00001.htm 


Please see attached. 
Sent from my iPhone Begin forwarded message:  


From: "Higgins, Karen" <karen.higgins@ncdenr.gov> To: "Munger, Bridget" 
<bridget.munger@ncdenr.gov> Subject: FW: ACP Hearing Officer's report  


FYI  


Thanks‐ Karen  


Karen Higgins  


401 & Buffer Permitting Branch Supervisor Division of Water Resources 
Department of Environmental Quality  


(919) 807-6360 office  


karen.higgins@ncdenr.gov https://deq.nc.gov/about/divisions/water-resources/water-resources-
permits/wastewater- branch/401-wetlands-buffer-permits  


512 N. Salisbury Street (Archdale Building), Suite 942-E, Raleigh, NC 27604 1617 Mail Service Center, 
Raleigh, NC 27699-1617  


Email correspondence to and from this address is subject to the North Carolina Public Records Law and 
may be disclosed to third parties.  


From: Wrenn, Brian L 
Sent: Monday, January 22, 2018 8:42 AM 
To: Culpepper, Linda <linda.culpepper@ncdenr.gov> 
Cc: Poupart, Jeff <jeff.poupart@ncdenr.gov>; Higgins, Karen <karen.higgins@ncdenr.gov> 
Subject: ACP Hearing Officer's report  


Linda, 
Please find attached for your review the Hearing Officer’s report for the Atlantic Coast  


Pipeline project. I am happy to discuss this with you if you have any questions or comments. Thanks!  







Brian L. Wrenn 
Ecosystems Branch Chief Water Sciences Section 
NC Division of Water Resources 919‐743‐8409 (office)  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







 


From: Higgins, Karen  


To: Culpepper, Linda  


 
Subject: draft 401 decision documents 


Date: Tuesday, January 23, 2018 1:22:54 PM 


Attachments: 140957v2AtlanticCoastPipeline(Multi)_401_IC_NRB_TAR_2.docx 
140957v2AtlanticCoastPipeline(Multi)_401_IC_NRB_TAR_DENIAL.docx 


Linda‐  


Attached please find an electronic copy of the draft 401 decision documents for ACP. I’m 
working on the bullet points.  


Thanks‐ Karen  


Karen Higgins  


401 & Buffer Permitting Branch Supervisor Division of Water Resources 
Department of Environmental Quality  


(919) 807-6360 office  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







 


Subject: DWR Discussion - ACP 
 


Location: DENR_GS - Rm 5301 - 10 Seats - Morrow Mount 


Start: Wed 1/24/2018 11:30 AM Wed 1/24/2018 12:15 PM Tentative  
End: 
Show Time As:  


Recurrence: Meeting Status:  


Organizer: 
Required Attendees:  


Linda‐  


(none) 
Not yet responded 


Higgins, Karen 
Culpepper, Linda; Wrenn, Brian L; Poupart, Jeff  


We wanted to block some time with you to go over the HO Report and 401 decision documents 
if you had any questions. I gave Bridgette a hard copy of the HO Report, draft 401 certification 
and draft denial.  


Thanks‐ Karen  


127  


Mack, J anet  


 


Subject: Location:  


Start: 
End: 
Show Time As:  


Recurrence: Meeting Status:  


Organizer: 
Required Attendees:  


(none) Accepted  







Canceled: ACP Team Meeting 
DENR_GS - Rm 5212 - 14 seats - Bodie Island Lighthouse  


Mon 1/22/2018 1:00 PM Mon 1/22/2018 1:30 PM Free  
 
Lucey, John D 
Heyl, Douglas; Kritzer, Jamie; Jill Warren Lucas; Munger, Bridget; Leonard, Laura  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







From: Higgins, Karen  


To: Morris-McLawhorn, Bridgette R 
Culpepper, Linda 
 
Cc: 
Subject: ACP - word document 


Date: Thursday, January 25, 2018 3:40:34 PM 


Attachments: 140957v2AtlanticCoastPipeline(Multi)_401_IC_NRB_TAR_3.docx 


Bridgette‐  


I put a paper copy of the 401 certification for ACP on your desk today – there are two places for Linda to sign. I will not be in the office 
tomorrow, so if Linda wants any changes to the 401, I’ve attached the word document to this email so you can edit as needed. If you do make 
any changes to the word document, will you please send me the final word version document for our records?  


Also, on the bottom of page two you’ll see email addresses for Richard Gangle and Spencer Trichell. Once (if) Linda signs the 401, will you 
please email them a scanned copy of the signed document, and cc me as well?  


Thanks‐ Karen  


Karen Higgins  


401 & Buffer Permitting Branch Supervisor Division of Water Resources 
Department of Environmental Quality  


(919) 807-6360 office  


karen.higgins@ncdenr.gov  


https://deq.nc.gov/about/divisions/water-resources/water-resources-permits/wastewater-branch/401- wetlands-buffer-permits  
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P R O C E E D I N G S 1 


  MR. GREENE:  All right.  Today's date is 2 


October 4, 2019.  My name is Kevin Greene.  I am with 3 


Eagle Intel Services.  We've been contracted by the 4 


North Carolina General Assembly subcommittee on the ACP 5 


to gather facts and report those facts and information 6 


back to them.  We're here today to interview you.  And 7 


this interview is being recorded.  And I would like for 8 


each individual present to state your name, position 9 


and acknowledge that you are aware that it's being 10 


recorded.  And I'll start with Tom. 11 


  MR. BEERS:  I'm Tom Beers.  I'm an 12 


investigator with Eagle Intel Services, and I 13 


understand this is being recorded. 14 


  MR. LANE:  Bill Lane, DEQ.  I understand it's 15 


being recorded. 16 


  MS. CULPEPPER:  Linda Culpepper, DEQ, Division 17 


of Water Resources Director.  And I understand that 18 


this is being recorded. 19 


  MR. HARGROVE:  Drew Hargrove with DEQ.  And I 20 


understand this is being recorded. 21 


  MR. GREENE:  Thank you.  And I believe Mr. 22 


Lane would like to add something. 23 


  MR. LANE:  Yes, just a couple of notes.  Based 24 


on an agreement of the parties, this agreement will 25 
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last no long -- I'm sorry, this interview will last no 1 


longer than an hour.  We're beginning at 3:57.  So 2 


we'll finish no later than 4:57. 3 


  And the only questions to be presented to Ms. 4 


Culpepper will be those related to the 401 water 5 


quality certification for the Atlantic Coast Pipeline, 6 


not other projects that she works on or anything in her 7 


personal life.  Thank you. 8 


  MR. GREENE:  Understood.  And thank you.  9 


Thank you for being here.  You've already stated your 10 


name.  Can you just give us a brief background of your 11 


employment history with DEQ? 12 


  MS. CULPEPPER:  Began employment in November 13 


of 1988 in the Division of Water -- excuse me, the 14 


Division of Waste Management, and transitioned over to 15 


the Division of Water Resources in early 2016 and had 16 


been employed since then. 17 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  All right.  And in the 18 


same position, 2016 to current? 19 


  MS. CULPEPPER:  I came into the Division of 20 


Water Resources as a deputy director and then interim 21 


director and then director. 22 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  During 2017, primarily 23 


through 2017 and the beginning of January or the all of 24 


January, what was your official position? 25 
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  MS. CULPEPPER:  Deputy director transitioning 1 


into -- excuse me, interim director transitioning into 2 


director. 3 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  Which, same duties and 4 


responsibilities for those positions? 5 


  MS. CULPEPPER:  Essentially. 6 


  MR. GREENE:  And what would that be? 7 


  MS. CULPEPPER:  As the director? 8 


  MR. GREENE:  Yes, ma'am. 9 


  MS. CULPEPPER:  Policy and implementation of 10 


all of our statutes, rules, responsibilities. 11 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  And did you have the 12 


ultimate authority over 401 water permits? 13 


  MS. CULPEPPER:  The 401 permits are in our 14 


permitting section, led by Jeff Poupart, who's the 15 


section chief.  He reports to the deputy director which 16 


is Jim Gregson. 17 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay. 18 


  MS. CULPEPPER:  And then Jim Gregson reports 19 


to me. 20 


  MR. GREENE:  All right.  During this time 21 


period, 2017, was Jim Gregson the deputy director at 22 


that time? 23 


  MS. CULPEPPER:  I would have to go back and 24 


look at the time when he became deputy director. 25 
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  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  And the chain of command, 1 


who do you answer to? 2 


  MS. CULPEPPER:  Sheila Holman. 3 


  MR. GREENE:  Sheila Holman.  And then Holman 4 


answers to the secretary? 5 


  MS. CULPEPPER:  I assume it's the secretary. 6 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  What primarily was your 7 


involvement with the Atlantic Coast Pipeline permitting 8 


process? 9 


  MS. CULPEPPER:  Once they had the basic 10 


outline of the permit, and I participated in division 11 


or department conversations on the permit, and 12 


meetings, I attended at least one of the listening 13 


sessions, I believe it's down in Robeson County when we 14 


were engaged in public stakeholder… 15 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  All right.  And were you 16 


involved in the daily activities or how much 17 


information was usually relayed to you regarding the 18 


process? 19 


  MS. CULPEPPER:  Typically it was in the 20 


meetings. 21 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  And these meetings 22 


occurred how often? 23 


  MS. CULPEPPER:  I do not recall how often. 24 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  On a regular basis or as 25 
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a… 1 


  MS. CULPEPPER:  Yes, they were on a regular 2 


basis. 3 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  And who is normally 4 


present during these meetings? 5 


  MS. CULPEPPER:  The permitting staff from the 6 


401 and…  7 


  MR. GREENE:  Which are?  Those people would 8 


be? 9 


  MS. CULPEPPER:  Honestly, I cannot recall if 10 


Jeff Poupart himself was there.  Karen Higgins at the 11 


time was the branch head. 12 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  Anyone else?  The hearing 13 


officer… 14 


  MS. CULPEPPER:  At that point in time, when 15 


the hearing officer was engaged in the process and 16 


Brian Wrenn, he works on our water sciences section. 17 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  All right.  And were there 18 


other meetings within the department that you would 19 


come together and discuss the ACP permitting not just 20 


on the 401? 21 


  MS. CULPEPPER:  Honestly I don't recall what -22 


- when I was at the meetings I was focused on the 401 23 


component of the permit, so. 24 


  MR. GREENE:  Right.  But I guess my question 25 
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would be were there other divisions present during 1 


these meetings? 2 


  MS. CULPEPPER:  There were other divisions, 3 


right.  They were involved in permitting. 4 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  And you were an interim or 5 


preparing to be director since 2016.  Were you involved 6 


in the pre-application process for the ACP? 7 


  MS. CULPEPPER:  And when I came in in 2016 I 8 


was the deputy director, and this permitting function 9 


reported to the director, Jay Zimmerman. 10 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay. 11 


  MS. CULPEPPER:  Okay.  So this permitting 12 


program has never been a direct report to me.  But I am 13 


responsible as the division director for all of their 14 


work. 15 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  And in your position 16 


capacity, obviously you've been involved with a lot of 17 


projects.  How would you rate the ACP projects, 18 


specifically the 401 water permitting process compared 19 


to others on a scale basis or information basis? 20 


  MS. CULPEPPER:  I'd have to ask some clarity.  21 


Technically, complexity or -- I don'(cross talk) -- I… 22 


  MR. GREENE:  How would you -- how -- is there 23 


any way that you would categorize projects?  Or are 24 


they categorized? 25 
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  MS. CULPEPPER:  Not in my mind.  I don't 1 


approach it that way. 2 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  All right.  Did this 3 


particular project -- were there any anomalies or 4 


abnormal things going on in the process, the permitting 5 


process that was unusual or different from others? 6 


  MS. CULPEPPER:  I had not gone through very 7 


many 401 processes before, so I don't have a benchmark 8 


for you to, you know, to describe. 9 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  All right.  Just want to 10 


go through just a couple of things briefly and then 11 


we'll get into more specifics.  But we pulled off the 12 


DEQ website where your -- the staff files are located.  13 


And I pulled just a few documents here from yours.  I'm 14 


going to show you -- not yours, this is yours.  15 


Particular document we like -- just want to flip 16 


through that to see if those appear to be your notes.  17 


Sorry. 18 


  MS. CULPEPPER:  That's okay.  I assume you it 19 


wants to go on this page.  They look to be my 20 


handwriting and my notes. 21 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  Do you recall making those 22 


notes? 23 


  MS. CULPEPPER:  I would have to look at each 24 


one, if you want me to respond to each page, but… 25 
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  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  And we -- I will ask just 1 


a couple of questions regarding each one.  There are 2 


some blank spaces on these.  Is that a redaction or 3 


were they submitted that way? 4 


  MS. CULPEPPER:  I do not recall.  I can see 5 


that there are --   6 


  MR. GREENE:  As you can see, yeah, there's… 7 


  MS. CULPEPPER:  -- some other topics spliced 8 


in here -- or put -- copied in here.  So I don't (cross 9 


talk) recall. 10 


  MR. GREENE:  Would -- how would those notes be 11 


entered into the public file?  Right.  Would you do it 12 


-- would you actually redact that like it is?  Or would 13 


someone else do that? 14 


  MS. CULPEPPER:  I don't recall. 15 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  All right.  If I can just 16 


view that. 17 


  MS. CULPEPPER:  Sure. 18 


  MR. GREENE:  Thank you.  All right.  Here is a 19 


note.  And I've got it highlighted.  If you can just 20 


review that particular note and read it into the 21 


record, if you would. 22 


  MS. CULPEPPER:  I am having trouble reading my 23 


writing. 24 


  MR. GREENE:  You're like me. 25 
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  MS. CULPEPPER:  Looks like Wednesday, December 1 


20th.  Cannot read the word.  It looks like adding 2 


cumulative impact.  The next line is, "Meeting with."  3 


And I do not -- I can't read that.  Next words are 4 


hearing officer report, Thursday.  "Final 5 


recommendation next week," is the final line that's 6 


highlighted. 7 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  Do you have any 8 


recollection of making that note and more specifics 9 


regarding that? 10 


  MS. CULPEPPER:  I do not. 11 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  What would be -- how would 12 


-- what would be your inference as to what that means? 13 


  MS. CULPEPPER:  Directly Wednesday the 20th, 14 


it looks like there's additional information or 15 


something related to cumulative impact. 16 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  And cumulative impact is a 17 


-- tell me what cumulative impact is, if you would 18 


please. 19 


  MS. CULPEPPER:  The total impacts of a 20 


project, looking at the totality. 21 


  MR. GREENE:  And is that part of the 401 22 


process for the permitting? 23 


  MS. CULPEPPER:  Right. 24 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay. 25 
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  MS. CULPEPPER:  The second line is hearing 1 


officer report, Thursday. 2 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  And I don't even know what 3 


day the 20th is, but I'm assuming it would be talking 4 


about a upcoming Thursday.  So probably next Thursday 5 


after the 20th, and I did apologize for not looking at 6 


calendar, but that's -- you are expecting to see it at 7 


that point in time? 8 


  MS. CULPEPPER:  My notes seem to indicate, 9 


"Hearing officer report Thursday."  I don't know if I 10 


was anticipating seeing that or if there was going to 11 


be a discussion on it, I don't know from these notes.  12 


  MR. Lane:  Okay.  Is there a date on these 13 


notes?  I don't see a date. 14 


  UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  No. 15 


  MR. GREENE:  No, just the reference to the 16 


December 20th. 17 


  MS. CULPEPPER:  And which says it's Wednesday.  18 


I can read that writing.  19 


  MR. GREENE:  Oh, okay. 20 


  MS. CULPEPPER:  Wednesday the 20th. 21 


  MR. GREENE:  Yes, we were trying to figure 22 


that out, what the… 23 


  MS. CULPEPPER:  But I don't know if Thursday 24 


means the next day or… 25 
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  MR. GREENE:  Right, or the following.  That 1 


may be Christmas… 2 


  MS. CULPEPPER:  Do not know. 3 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  Thank you.  I actually 4 


kind of go forward while we're -- this.  Okay.  If you 5 


can just look at the next one that's highlighted. 6 


  MS. CULPEPPER:  Okay. 7 


  MR. GREENE:  And what does it say? 8 


  MS. CULPEPPER:  "Brian, cumulative impacts, 9 


sufficient response," is the first line.  The second 10 


line, "Send draft to Karen and Jennifer to review."  11 


The third line is, "Comments done tomorrow. " The 12 


fourth line, "Meet Monday." 13 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  And do you recall when 14 


those notes were made? 15 


  MS. CULPEPPER:  No, sir.  I don't see anything 16 


on the sheet that would indicate. 17 


  MR. GREENE:  Would that indicate that your -- 18 


the review of the hearing officer's report was going to 19 


be complete or completed or what… 20 


  MS. CULPEPPER:  It does not reference the 21 


hearing officer report. 22 


  MR. GREENE:  Oh, I'm sorry.  I think there was 23 


a reference to Brian.  What was that reference? 24 


  MS. CULPEPPER:  "Cumulative impact, sufficient 25 
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response." 1 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  And do you know what that 2 


was in response to? 3 


  MS. CULPEPPER:  I don't.  I know we were doing 4 


add info requests. 5 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  And I believe we do have 6 


the fourth ad info request, and that specifically was 7 


talking about the cumulative impact, and that was a 8 


request on that.  So would that indicate that that was 9 


received? 10 


  MS. CULPEPPER:  I cannot tell from the notes. 11 


  MR. BEERS:  Okay.  When you made those notes, 12 


what information were you making these notes from?  Was 13 


someone telling you this information?  Or is this -- do 14 


you… 15 


  MS. CULPEPPER:  I don't -- from reading the 16 


notes, I don't have that context. 17 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  Let's see.  Then there's -18 


- it appears to be a meeting on January 19th.  And if 19 


you can just look at that and kind of review that page.  20 


And first of all, who was present during that meeting, 21 


according to these notes? 22 


  MS. CULPEPPER:  According to the notes, I 23 


typically will document names, so Geoff Gisler 24 


(phonetic), Gudrun Thompson, David Neal (phonetic), 25 
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Secretary Regan, Sheila Holman, Bill Lane, Doug Heyl 1 


are listed. 2 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  And the date on that is… 3 


  MS. CULPEPPER:  January 19, 2018. 4 


  MR. GREENE:  All right.  And if you -- now you 5 


briefly reviewed it a few minutes ago.  What seems to 6 


be -- what's the meeting about? 7 


  MS. CULPEPPER:  So there's information 8 


regarding the ACP.  There's information regarding our 9 


community EJ or engagement conference.  And we're 10 


looking at economic development with the Department of 11 


Commerce in the rural area.  So there seems to be a 12 


variety of topics. 13 


  MR. GREENE:  Would any of those pertain to the 14 


401 permit? 15 


  MS. CULPEPPER:  I have a header listing on 16 


line 4, one update on ACP, and then I have some notes 17 


regarding SELC and Geoff Gisler. 18 


  MR. GREENE:  Are they within the water 19 


resource department?  I'm not familiar with who they 20 


are.  What are their positions? 21 


  MS. CULPEPPER:  I'm listing SELC.  I do -- 22 


Gudrun Thompson, I do not know.  That point of contact 23 


for sure I have a head notes with it for utility/FERC 24 


(phonetic).  David Neal, I have a notation signaling 25 
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air and environmental justice as EJ. 1 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  And do you recall that 2 


meeting on the 19th? 3 


  MS. CULPEPPER:  I do not recall it 4 


specifically, no. 5 


  MR. GREENE:  And I believe the permit was 6 


issued on the 26th of January.  So then a week, one 7 


week prior to that.  Is there any discussion as to when 8 


the permit was going to be issued at that point in 9 


time?  The 401 specifically. 10 


  MS. CULPEPPER:  Let me look through it again.  11 


I did not see it at my first look through.  I do not 12 


see any indication on timing of permit.  What I see are 13 


notes regarding comments made by other participants in 14 


the meeting. 15 


  MR. GREENE:  And when you say other 16 


participants, are those from other divisions? 17 


  MS. CULPEPPER:  The ones that I have read out 18 


loud their names. 19 


  MR. GREENE:  Right.  And what division are 20 


they?  Because I -- I think you made reference to SLE 21 


or something. 22 


  MS. CULPEPPER:  Southern Environmental Law 23 


Center, SELC. 24 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay. 25 
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  MS. CULPEPPER:  Geoff Gisler, Gudrun Thompson, 1 


David Neal, those are not DEQ employees. 2 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  And do you know why they 3 


were present? 4 


  MS. CULPEPPER:  I apologize.  I do not recall 5 


this meeting specifically. 6 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  Okay.  7 


  MR. BEERS:  Thank you.  I'm just going to show 8 


you -- these are some e-mails that came from the DEQ 9 


website as well. 10 


  MS. CULPEPPER:  Okay. 11 


  MR. BEERS:  I'll let you start.  You can 12 


become familiar with those.  And they're mostly 13 


December, January. 14 


  MR. LANE:  Oh, I see.  Do you need them back? 15 


  MR. BEERS:  Yeah, well, I'll just -- this 16 


first page.  It looks like December 14th Karen Higgins 17 


reaches out to Bridgette (phonetic).  Is that your 18 


assistant? 19 


  MS. CULPEPPER:  Those -- we have separate 20 


parts.  That's -- I apologize. 21 


  MR. BEERS:  Okay.  Yeah, there is up here. 22 


  MS. CULPEPPER:  Bridgette Morris-McLawhorn 23 


(phonetic) was our administrative secretary. 24 


  MR. BEERS:  So it looks like she's trying to 25 
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schedule a meeting to review the HO report, the hearing 1 


officer's report, is that…  2 


  MS. CULPEPPER:  Okay. 3 


  MR. BEERS:  Do you recall that?  Of course 4 


not… 5 


  MS. CULPEPPER:  I apologize. 6 


  MR. BEERS:  Yeah.  So I mean that's what it 7 


looks like.  I mean it's… 8 


  MS. CULPEPPER:  It appears she was setting up 9 


the meeting. 10 


  MR. BEERS:  So then in the next e-mail Brian 11 


Wrenn is going to e-mail to Sarah Rice saying that she 12 


-- that Linda has scheduled a meeting to discuss ACP 13 


hearing officer on January 4th.  And I'm finalizing the 14 


HO report, hearing officer's report, I think that 15 


means.  "And I hope to have a draft to Karen Higgins 16 


and Jennifer early next week." 17 


  So she's looking to get some Environmental 18 


Justice statement in this.  But it looks like they're 19 


going forward trying to finalize this hearing officer's 20 


report to give this to you to review on January 4th.  21 


Do you recall that? 22 


  MS. CULPEPPER:  I don't recall the timing but… 23 


  MR. BEERS:  Okay.  Just consistent with what 24 


you would recollect in the overall process? 25 
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  MS. CULPEPPER:  It's consistent with the 1 


permitting process. 2 


  MR. BEERS:  Okay.  So that was in December 3 


they set this up.  Moving onto January 3rd, you saw 4 


these e-mails, where they're -- it looks like Brian 5 


Wrenn, Karen Higgins are basically finalizing this 6 


hearing officer's report.  Does that reflect what that 7 


e-mail -- those e-mails are in January 3rd?  They look 8 


like they're making edits to get ready to review with 9 


you.  That's what it looks like to me. 10 


  MS. CULPEPPER:  They look… 11 


  MR. LANE:  Just note that Ms. Culpepper is not 12 


copied on any -- these are not sent -- none of these e-13 


mails were sent to her. 14 


  MR. BEERS:  Right. 15 


  MR. LANE:  So she's reading other people's e-16 


mails. 17 


  MR. BEERS:  Correct.  And I'm just trying to 18 


put the timeline to refresh her memory of how this 19 


final review process went.  20 


  MS. CULPEPPER:  Okay. 21 


  MR. BEERS:  So January 4th there's an e-mail 22 


chain, Brian Wrenn and Bridget Munger.  And it looks 23 


like she's made a request to Brian Wrenn to get the 24 


hearing officer's report.  Do you recall that before  25 
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You reviewed it. 1 


  MS. CULPEPPER:  I don't recall their exchanges 2 


between each other that (cross talk). 3 


  MR. BEERS:  Do you recall rather than you 4 


review this hearing officer's report it was going to be 5 


reviewed by the secretary's office before you got to 6 


review it?  Do you recall that? 7 


  MS. CULPEPPER:  I don't recall it.  I do see 8 


in these e-mails there's a reference to that. 9 


  MR. BEERS:  So does that refresh your 10 


recollection, the date you were going to review this 11 


report before you? 12 


  MS. CULPEPPER:  I apologize.  It's been long 13 


enough ago.  I don't have recall on that. 14 


  MR. LANE:  Again, Ms. Culpepper did not send 15 


or receive any of these e-mails. 16 


  MR. BEEERS:  Right.  And I didn't say that.  17 


I'm just asking if she remembers that how -- if she 18 


knew the secretary's office reviewed the hearing 19 


officer's report prior to you. 20 


  MS. CULPEPPER:  I do not recall. 21 


  MR. BEERS:  Do you remember when you first got 22 


a copy to review? 23 


  MS. CULPEPPER:  I don't recall a date, no.  I 24 


apologize. 25 
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  MR. BEERS:  Do you recall any conversation 1 


with someone from the secretary's office about 2 


reviewing the hearing officer's report? 3 


  MS. CULPEPPER:  We would -- during our 4 


periodic meetings we would discuss timing for when we 5 


thought we would have the hearing officer's report 6 


ready.  So that was a point of discussion. 7 


  MR. BEERS:  So do you recall the secretary's 8 


office from where you reviewed this?  You don't recall? 9 


  MS. CULPEPPER:  I apologize.  I do not recall. 10 


  MR. BEERS:  In any of your meetings do you 11 


recall any conversations about the secretary's office 12 


being involved with the approval of the 401 permit? 13 


  MS. CULPEPPER:  We would go over items to 14 


understand how close are we, do we have enough 15 


information and what our technical review on that, if 16 


we're moving towards a issuance or a denial.  So those 17 


were points of conversation. 18 


  MR. BEERS:  This is the first -- it looks to 19 


me that January 22nd, that's the first e-mail where I 20 


see you got a copy of the hearing officer's report. 21 


  MS. CULPEPPER:  Okay.  Thank you. 22 


  MR. BEERS:  Do you recall that day, getting it 23 


that day?  That's the date it was signed. 24 


  MS. CULPEPPER:  I don't recall. 25 
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  MR. BEERS:  Okay, you don't.  Okay.  You don't 1 


recall any -- going from having a meeting to review the 2 


hearing officer's report and then finding out you're 3 


not going to review it until the 22nd, you don't recall 4 


that big gap in time and any conversation that would 5 


have taken place, why you're not going to look at this 6 


anymore. 7 


  MS. CULPEPPER:  We were going through 8 


different technical points for the permit, so there 9 


were some time in there where we were looking at do we 10 


have enough information.  So I recall that there were 11 


those iterations.  And there were some gaps in time 12 


gathering information with the staff working on the 13 


project. 14 


  MR. BEERS:  Do you recall any changes that 15 


were made to the hearing officer's report from the 4th 16 


until the 22nd?  I'm just asking if you recall.  This 17 


is a big -- it's quite a gap in time before something 18 


that's -- was going to happen on the 4th.  And then 19 


that's when you were first going to review it.  And 20 


then the 22nd is the first time you see it.  I just 21 


wonder if you recollect any conversation about that. 22 


  MS. CULPEPPER:  Yeah, and I've shared.  What I 23 


recall is… 24 


  MR. BEERS:  Yeah, okay.  I'm just -- I'm 25 
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trying to… 1 


  MS. CULPEPPER:  What I recall is just our 2 


technical issues going through it to make sure dot all 3 


the T -- or dot all the Is, cross the Ts. 4 


  MR. BEERS:  Who at the secretary's office 5 


would have asked for that to see that report?  Who 6 


would have been the person to ask for that?  In your 7 


experience working there, would it have been, in just 8 


the secretary's office who is going to review it, who 9 


they were… 10 


  MR. LANE:  That's speculation in this case. 11 


  MR. BEERS:  Well, in your experience working 12 


with the secretary's office, who has the expertise to 13 


look at something like this?  Anyone? 14 


  MS. CULPEPPER:  I really don't have a lot of 15 


history working on these.  This is one of the earlier 16 


ones in my capacity as the director to even look at.  17 


  MR. BEERS:  Okay.   18 


  MS. CULPEPPER:  So I -- I don't have that 19 


frame of reference for you, but… 20 


  MR. BEERS:  Right.  Okay. 21 


  MR. GREENE:  And going back to this timeframe, 22 


because from your notes on that Wednesday the 20th and 23 


then the -- we were saying hearing officer report on 24 


Thursday.  So that's, you know, a month away, of course 25 
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there is holidays in there too.  And so did you ever 1 


question what's going on where is the hearing officer's 2 


report? 3 


  MS. CULPEPPER:  We have these periodic 4 


meetings to hear those questions that were being asked. 5 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  And so were you apprised 6 


of the steps that were being taken as to this person is 7 


going to review it.  At this point in time this person 8 


is going to review it.  Were you aware of how it's 9 


going to progress? 10 


  MS. CULPEPPER:  I don't recall the logistics 11 


of those review processes or -- I don't know.  I 12 


apologize. 13 


  MR. GREENE:  And once everything was submitted 14 


to you -- 22nd? 15 


  MR. BEERS:  Yeah, the 22nd. 16 


  MS. CULPEPPER:  Yes, it was in again the 22nd. 17 


  MR. GREENE:  22nd.  Do you recall what was 18 


provided to you on the 22nd? 19 


  MS. CULPEPPER:  The attachment indicates ACP 20 


hearing officer's report 01222018., as a PDF file. 21 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay. 22 


  MS. CULPEPPER:  So I assume that's what was 23 


attached. 24 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  And with that attachment 25 
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you have the hearing officer's report.  When everything 1 


typically comes to you for your review, what's in the 2 


package?  Report goes out the doors saying here's your 3 


permit. 4 


  MS. CULPEPPER:  So the ones that I see are 5 


very limited number 401s.  They're the ones that have 6 


had a public hearing or if there's a denial then the 7 


director is the signatore on that.  So there's very few 8 


of those.  So for this, I assume that I got the hearing 9 


officer's report which went through the public comment 10 


and the listening sessions that we had associated with 11 


the application. 12 


  MR. GREENE:  And when you reviewed it -- I'm 13 


assuming you reviewed the hearing officer's report, did 14 


you have any questions or concerns at that time? 15 


  MS. CULPEPPER:  I cannot recall.  I had 16 


questions.  And I cannot recall a distinction between 17 


the actual permit and the hearing officer's report.  18 


But I recall asking questions.  I would assume probably 19 


both documents.  I typically have questions or -- but I 20 


can't recall specifics of what questions did I ask and 21 


in which the permit itself or of the hearing officer's 22 


report. 23 


  MR. GREENE:  So you have -- you had both 24 


documents there at that point in time? 25 
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  MS. CULPEPPER:  I cannot tell you that. 1 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay. 2 


  MS. CULPEPPER:  I don't have recollection on 3 


when I actually had the permit. 4 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  Did you see the draft 5 


denial letter? 6 


  MS. CULPEPPER:  I do recall seeing the draft 7 


denial letter.  They had presented it together at the 8 


same day with -- my recollection is it's presented at 9 


the same day with the approval letter. 10 


  MR. GREENE: Okay.  And do you recall what date 11 


that was? 12 


  MS. CULPEPPER:  I do not recall. 13 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  And have you -- how many 14 


other times have you seen a draft denial letter 15 


presented with the permit and the hearing officer's 16 


report? 17 


  MS. CULPEPPER:  I believe this is the first 18 


one that I had seen, the first 401.  And I believe that 19 


was the first time I had seen the denial and the 20 


approval for a 401. 21 


  MR. GREENE:  The recommendation. 22 


  MS. CULPEPPER:  And when I asked staff about 23 


it, they indicated that they had had a procedure in the 24 


past, that that's what they did to prepare.  At one 25 
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point they had prepared one and not the other and they 1 


just made -- there was a recommendation to move forward 2 


with both when they came to the director's office that 3 


would have both documents. 4 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  Do you recall the draft 5 


denial letter, the contents of it? 6 


  MS. CULPEPPER:  Not the content of it.  I 7 


remember seeing it though with the approval letter.  I 8 


have permitting experience in the other division, 9 


that's… 10 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  Do you have something? 11 


  MR. BEERS:  No, it looks like the -- on the 12 


25th it looks like you got, someone dropped off to 13 


Bridgette in your office the hardcopy of those --  14 


  MS. CULPEPPER:  Okay. 15 


  MR. BEERS: -- those documents.  That was on 16 


the 25th. 17 


  MR. CULPEPPER:  Okay.  Okay, thank you. 18 


  MR. BEERS:  Which is a Thursday, maybe that 19 


corresponds to the note. 20 


  MR. GREENE:  December. 21 


  MR. BEERS:  That was December? 22 


  MR. GREENE:  That was December. 23 


  MR. BEERS:  That was another -- another one 24 


was undated.  So do you recall what happened at that 25 
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point when everything was dropped off? 1 


  MS. CULPEPPER:  I don't recall dates or… 2 


  MR. BEERS:  Right. 3 


  MS. CULPEPPER:  I assume I receive those, but… 4 


  MR. GREENE:  So it was issued on the 26th and 5 


what's the procedures of how that's done? 6 


  MS. CULPEPPER:  We do a final review.  What I 7 


do recall on the day I signed and you're indicating it 8 


was the 26th… 9 


  MR. GREENE:  Yes. 10 


  MS. CULPEPPER:  Okay.  On the day I signed it 11 


there was one lingering edit that I had wanted made.  12 


And I don't recall what that edit was.  But I remember 13 


asking staff to make that edit.  But I apologize.  I do 14 


not remember what it was. 15 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  And obviously it wasn't 16 


significant to the issuance of the permit, was it? 17 


  MS. CULPEPPER:  I have no idea what it… 18 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay. 19 


  MS. CULPEPPER:  I can't recall what it was. 20 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  And who was aware that the 21 


permit was going to be signed on the 26th? 22 


  MS. CULPEPPER:  I do not know in totality who 23 


was involved.  I believe our public information officer 24 


was… 25 
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  MR. GREENE:  And that would be? 1 


  MS. CULPEPPER:  Gosh.  At the time I believe 2 


it would have been Bridget Munger was with us at the 3 


time. 4 


  MR. GREENE:  Any other people or -- I guess 5 


my… 6 


  MS. CULPEPPER:  I assume Brian Wrenn as the 7 


hearing officer and Karen Higgins as the permitting 8 


branch head. 9 


  MR. GREENE:  Would you notify anyone above 10 


your position? 11 


  MS. CULPEPPER:  When we have significant 12 


permits being issued, I do notify Sheila Holman that we 13 


are issuing a permit, same thing sometimes with 14 


enforcement. 15 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  Do you recall that's who 16 


you actually notified? 17 


  MS. CULPEPPER:  I don't recall. 18 


  MR. GREENE:  And would that be typically on 19 


the same day or would it be prior to?  How would that 20 


normally shake out? 21 


  MS. CULPEPPER:  The public information 22 


officers for significant permits do want to know before 23 


the issuance so that they can prepare if they do get 24 


media inquiry.  We try to let them know this is coming 25 
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so that they can have talking points ready.  There's 1 


anything that's controversial… 2 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  Did you notify the 3 


secretary's office that it was… 4 


  MS. CULPEPPER:  I don't recall who I notified, 5 


but I would assume my typical protocol is to let Sheila 6 


know when I'm signing. 7 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  Anything else.  Were you 8 


aware of the mitigation fund that was being negotiated 9 


outside of DEQ, the $57.8 million?  Were you aware of 10 


that at the time of the permit certification? 11 


  MS. CULPEPPER:  I was not aware of that fund 12 


at the time I signed this permit.  I found out about it 13 


through the media afterwards. 14 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  So there was no discussion 15 


about how it could be used for cumulative impact or 16 


whatever? 17 


  MS. CULPEPPER:  No, sir.  I found out after 18 


via the media. 19 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  And did you find anything 20 


unusual about the permitting process?  Or was there 21 


anything, any outside forces creating hurdles for it 22 


that you could see? 23 


  MS. CULPEPPER:  No.  We added additional 24 


listening sessions for the public.  That to me was an 25 
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extra step.  My experience in solid waste management, 1 


with landfills,  we would also try to engage the public 2 


in a very thorough way to try to make sure anyone who 3 


had comments or issues make sure they were heard and we 4 


understood concerns.  So I equated that additional step 5 


to my experience in a different -- in the other 6 


division. 7 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  Is that a decision you 8 


made, to have the listening sessions? 9 


  MS. CULPEPPER:  I don't believe it was me 10 


personally.  I think it was a discussion point during 11 


our meetings. 12 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  Meetings with… 13 


  MS. CULPEPPER:  Our periodic meetings on 14 


pipeline. 15 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  All right.  Would that 16 


have come from the secretary's office or other 17 


individuals within the divisions? 18 


  MS. CULPEPPER:  I believe it was at the 19 


meetings where we had different divisions represented 20 


as well as the secretary's office.  But I do not recall 21 


details of who initiated a conversation on the topic, 22 


but… 23 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay. 24 


  MR. BEERS:  That's all I have. 25 
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  MS. CULPEPPER:  Okay. 1 


  MR. GREENE:  That's all we have. 2 


  MS. CULPEPPER:  All right. 3 


  MR. GREENE:  And we certainly appreciate your 4 


time and thank you for your duties, what you do.  5 


Appreciate it. 6 


  MR. BEERS:  (cross talk). 7 


  MS. CULPEPPER:  Thank you. 8 


  MR. GREENE:  So at this time it is 4:38.  And 9 


I want to take the recorders off. 10 
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From: Doug Heyl  


To: Julia White (julia.white@nc.gov)  
Subject: Date: Attachments:  


Heyl, Douglas  


FW: ACP Update Notes - Jan. 3, 2018 Wednesday, January 3, 2018 1:36:00 PM image001.png  


North Carolina Department of Environmental Quality 919.707.9034 (Office) 
919.812.3415 (Mobile) 
douglas.heyl@ncdenr.gov  


Email correspondence to and from this address is subject to the 
North Carolina Public Records Law and may be disclosed to third parties.  


From: Munger, Bridget 
Sent: Wednesday, January 03, 2018 1:04 PM 
To: Holman, Sheila <sheila.holman@ncdenr.gov> 
Cc: Heyl, Douglas <Douglas.Heyl@ncdenr.gov>; Munger, Bridget <bridget.munger@ncdenr.gov> 
Subject: ACP Update Notes ‐ Jan. 3, 2018  


ACP Weekly Update Notes Jan. 3, 2018  


DAQ: No written response has been received from Dominion following DAQ’s request for 
additional information on the air quality permit application for the Northampton compressor 
station facility. Mike A. has reviewed draft hearing officer’s report; it is in good shape.  


DWR: In response to the fifth add-info request, Dominion submitted a revised cumulative 
analysis report on Dec. 20. Information submitted is under review to ensure that all the 
requested information has been provided. Final edits are being made to the hearing officer’s 
report. Staff is meeting with Linda Culpepper tomorrow to discuss further.  


DEMLR - E&SC: Staff will issue another letter of disapproval to Dominion by Jan. 4, which is the 
15-day deadline date. The letter will include about 19 comments/items, which is down from 34 
on the last letter of disapproval. There is no set deadline for Dominion to respond once the letter 
of disapproval is issued. Staff said the timeline is working out that we may be ready to issue an 
approval for the E&SC and construction stormwater permit application when the 401 certification 
issues are  


 


resolved. Per standard procedures, DEMLR will not issue the E&SC or construction stormwater 
permit approval prior to 401/404 approvals.  







DEMLR - Stormwater: No information has been received from Dominion in response to the 
DEMLR’s requests for more information on the stormwater general permit and stormwater 
individual permit. Options for a public comment period are under discussion.  


Bridget Munger 
Public Information Officer 
N.C. Department of Environmental Quality  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







 


From: Wrenn, Brian L  


To: Higgins, Karen; Burdette, Jennifer a 
Subject: Date: Attachments:  


RE: ACP Well Testing 
Thursday, January 4, 2018 12:54:46 PM image001.png  


Ok, I think I have the comments and edits from both of you resolved. Karen, I made one change to the 
appendices order and double checked the references in the text but no changes to the Appendices other 
than that. I’ve included the well testing language about complaints, added the 500 feet zone around 
blasting, and the cumulative analysis write‐up as well. I think that covers it. I’ve saved the report with 
today’s date. Let me know what you think. Thanks.  


Brian Wrenn 919‐743‐8409 (office) 919‐491‐2616 (cell)  


From: Higgins, Karen 
Sent: Thursday, January 04, 2018 9:47 AM 
To: Burdette, Jennifer a <Jennifer.Burdette@ncdenr.gov>; Wrenn, Brian L <brian.wrenn@ncdenr.gov> 
Subject: Re: ACP Well Testing  


agreed  


Thanks‐ Karen  


Karen Higgins  


401 & Buffer Permitting Branch Supervisor Division of Water Resources 
Department of Environmental Quality  


919 807-6360 office 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







From: Wrenn, Brian L  


To: Higgins, Karen; Burdette, Jennifer 


Subject: a FW: ACP HO report 


Date: Friday, January 5, 2018 9:17:45 AM 


Not sure if either of you got in this am, but I’m at home with one sick child and another out of school 
due to snow. The Secretary’s office wants to review the HO report prior to sending to Linda. I told 
Bridget we would send a copy to them when we send to Jeff. I doing another read through right now. 
When do you think you can finish your review? Thanks!  


Brian Wrenn 919‐743‐8409 (office) 919‐491‐2616 (cell)  


From: Munger, Bridget 
Sent: Friday, January 05, 2018 8:56 AM 
To: Wrenn, Brian L <brian.wrenn@ncdenr.gov> Subject: RE: ACP HO report  


That sounds great. Thanks!  


From: Wrenn, Brian L 
Sent: Friday, January 5, 2018 8:44 AM 
To: Munger, Bridget <bridget.munger@ncdenr.gov> Subject: Re: ACP HO report  


I think the HO report is their focus this am. If it’s ok, we can send the draft to you when we send it to Jeff 
to review. Thanks.  


Sent from my iPhone 
On Jan 5, 2018, at 8:09 AM, Munger, Bridget <bridget.munger@ncdenr.gov> wrote:  


Hi Brian, 
If Karen and Jennifer will be looking at the report today, I can wait for that draft. Please let me know what 
you prefer. 
Thank you! 
Bridget 
(Working at home this morning: 919-268-0069)  


From: Wrenn, Brian L 
Sent: Thursday, January 4, 2018 7:25 PM 
To: Munger, Bridget <bridget.munger@ncdenr.gov> Subject: ACP HO report  


Please make it known that this has not gone through final revisions. Some of the cumulative impact 
language is new and neither Karen nor Jennifer have reviewed it at all. Thanks.  


 


 







From:  


To: Subject: Date:  


Brian‐  


Higgins, Karen  


Wrenn, Brian L; Burdette, Jennifer a RE: ACP HO report 
Friday, January 5, 2018 11:37:00 AM  


Just a few minor suggestions highlighted in yellow. I don’t think Jennifer will review this today 
so please go ahead and send to Jeff and others.  


Since the department is reviewing the documents before going to Linda, I’m not sure that it will 
be ready for her by Monday. Should we try to reschedule for later in the week? We could try for 
after the EMC on Thursday (maybe 3:30) or Friday (maybe 8:45 or 2:00).  


Thanks‐ Karen  


Karen Higgins  


401 & Buffer Permitting Branch Supervisor Division of Water Resources 
Department of Environmental Quality  


(919) 807-6360 office  


karen.higgins@ncdenr.gov  


https://deq.nc.gov/about/divisions/water-resources/water-resources-permits/wastewater-branch/401- 
wetlands-buffer-permits  


512 N. Salisbury Street (Archdale Building), Suite 942-E, Raleigh, NC 27604 1617 Mail Service Center, 
Raleigh, NC 27699-1617  


Email correspondence to and from this address is subject to the North Carolina Public Records Law and 
may be disclosed to third parties.  


From: Wrenn, Brian L 
Sent: Friday, January 05, 2018 9:18 AM 
To: Higgins, Karen <karen.higgins@ncdenr.gov>; Burdette, Jennifer a <Jennifer.Burdette@ncdenr.gov> 
Subject: FW: ACP HO report  


Not sure if either of you got in this am, but I’m at home with one sick child and another out of school 
due to snow. The Secretary’s office wants to review the HO report prior to sending to Linda. I told 
Bridget we would send a copy to them when we send to Jeff. I doing another read through right now. 
When do you think you can finish your review? Thanks!  


Brian Wrenn 919‐743‐8409 (office)  







From: Munger, Bridget 
Sent: Friday, January 05, 2018 8:56 AM 
To: Wrenn, Brian L <brian.wrenn@ncdenr.gov> Subject: RE: ACP HO report  


That sounds great. Thanks!  


From: Wrenn, Brian L 
Sent: Friday, January 5, 2018 8:44 AM 
To: Munger, Bridget <bridget.munger@ncdenr.gov> Subject: Re: ACP HO report  


I think the HO report is their focus this am. If it’s ok, we can send the draft to you when we send it to Jeff 
to review. Thanks.  


Sent from my iPhone 
On Jan 5, 2018, at 8:09 AM, Munger, Bridget <bridget.munger@ncdenr.gov> wrote:  


Hi Brian, 
If Karen and Jennifer will be looking at the report today, I can wait for that draft. Please let me know what 
you prefer. 
Thank you! 
Bridget 
(Working at home this morning: 919-268-0069)  


From: Wrenn, Brian L 
Sent: Thursday, January 4, 2018 7:25 PM 
To: Munger, Bridget <bridget.munger@ncdenr.gov> Subject: ACP HO report  


Please make it known that this has not gone through final revisions. Some of the cumulative impact 
language is new and neither Karen nor Jennifer have reviewed it at all. Thanks.  


Brian L. Wrenn 
Ecosystems Branch Chief Water Sciences Section 
NC Division of Water Resources 919‐743‐8409 (office) 919‐491‐2616 (cell)  


Physical Address:  


4401 Reedy Creek Road Raleigh, NC 27607  


Mailing Address:  


1621 Mail Service Center Raleigh, NC 27699‐1623  


 


 


 


 







From: Wrenn, Brian L  


To: Higgins, Karen; Burdette, Jennifer a 
 
Subject: FW: ACP hearing officer"s report 


Date: Friday, January 5, 2018 12:19:39 PM 


Attachments:  


FYI  


 
ACP_hearing officers rept_01052018.docx 


Brian Wrenn 919‐743‐8409 (office) 919‐491‐2616 (cell)  


From: Wrenn, Brian L 
Sent: Friday, January 05, 2018 12:19 PM 
To: Poupart, Jeff <jeff.poupart@ncdenr.gov> 
Cc: Munger, Bridget <bridget.munger@ncdenr.gov> Subject: ACP hearing officer's report  


Jeff, 
Please find attached the draft hearing officer’s report for the ACP project. If you have any questions, 
please do not hesitate to contact me. I’m at home with kids, so try my cell (919‐491‐2616). Thanks.  


Brian L. Wrenn 
Ecosystems Branch Chief Water Sciences Section 
NC Division of Water Resources 919‐743‐8409 (office) 919‐491‐2616 (cell)  


Physical Address:  


4401 Reedy Creek Road Raleigh, N 19681C 27607  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







From: To: Subject: Date:  


Burdette, Jennifer a  


Wrenn, Brian L  


RE: ACP hearing officer"s report Friday, January 5, 2018 4:15:00 PM  


Sorry for missing your call this morning. I was deep into the draft of the 401. Before I left, I just 
wanted to thank you for all of your help with this project. I enjoyed and learned a lot working 
with you.  


Take care, Jennifer  


Jennifer Burdette  


401/Buffer Coordinator 
Division of Water Resources - 401 & Buffer Permitting Branch Department of Environmental Quality 
919 807 6364 office 
jennifer.burdette@ncdenr.gov  


1617 Mail Service Center Raleigh, NC 27699-1617  


(Physical Address: 512 N. Salisbury St, Raleigh, NC 27604 - 9th Flr Archdale Bldg – Room 942F) Email 
correspondence to and from this address is subject to the  


North Carolina Public Records Law and may be disclosed to third parties.  


From: Wrenn, Brian L 
Sent: Friday, January 05, 2018 12:20 PM 
To: Higgins, Karen <karen.higgins@ncdenr.gov>; Burdette, Jennifer a <Jennifer.Burdette@ncdenr.gov> 
Subject: FW: ACP hearing officer's report  


FYI  


Brian Wrenn 919‐743‐8409 (office) 919‐491‐2616 (cell)  


From: Wrenn, Brian L 
Sent: Friday, January 05, 2018 12:19 PM 
To: Poupart, Jeff <jeff.poupart@ncdenr.gov> 
Cc: Munger, Bridget <bridget.munger@ncdenr.gov> Subject: ACP hearing officer's report  


Jeff, 
Please find attached the draft hearing officer’s report for the ACP project. If you have any questions, 
please do not hesitate to contact me. I’m at home with kids, so try my cell (919‐491‐2616). Thanks.  


Brian L. Wrenn 
Ecosystems Branch Chief Water Sciences Section 
NC Division of Water Resources 919‐743‐8409 (office) 919‐491‐2616 (cell)  







From: Wrenn, Brian L  


To: Higgins, Karen 
Poupart, Jeff 
Cc:  


Subject: Re: ACP - Draft Decision Documents 


 Date: Sunday, January 21, 2018 8:58:42 PM  


Karen, 
I accepted all of the edits on the HO rept. I looked at the 401 one last time. In condition 16, it 
references an exemption from condition #13. should that be #15 instead?  


I'll sign the document and send it to Linda, copying you and Jeff. Thanks for all of your help on 
this.  


From: Higgins, Karen 
Sent: Friday, January 19, 2018 9:26:01 PM To: Wrenn, Brian L 
Cc: Poupart, Jeff 
Subject: Re: ACP ‐ Draft Decision Documents  


Brian‐  


Attached are a revised 401 and HO report. I made the edits to the HO report based on your 
comments in the 401 and reviewed a couple other places as well. I used the HO report I sent 
yesterday with those track changes accepted, so the only track changes you see are those I 
made today.  


I also made the recommended changes to the draft 401. 
Please let me know if you have any further comments/changes for either document.  


Thanks‐ Karen  


Karen Higgins  


401 & Buffer Permitting Branch Supervisor Division of Water Resources 
Department of Environmental Quality  


919 807-6360 office karen.higgins@ncdenr.gov  


 


 


 







From: Higgins, Karen 
Sent: Thursday, January 18, 2018 10:00 PM 
To: Wrenn, Brian L <brian.wrenn@ncdenr.gov>; Poupart, Jeff <jeff.poupart@ncdenr.gov> 
Subject: ACP ‐ Draft Decision Documents  


Attached please find the draft 401 certification for ACP as well as the draft denial letter. Please 
review and send me any edits/comments etc. If you make edits in the document(s) please use 
track changes so I can look at them easily.  


Please send me comments tomorrow if possible, or at least Monday morning.  


Thanks‐ Karen  


Karen Higgins  


401 & Buffer Permitting Branch Supervisor Division of Water Resources 
Department of Environmental Quality  


919 807-6360 office  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







 


From: Wrenn, Brian L  


To: Culpepper, Linda 
Cc: Poupart, Jeff; Higgins, Karen 
 
Subject: ACP Hearing Officer"s report 
Date: Monday, January 22, 2018 8:41:00 AM  


Attachments: ACP_hearing officers rept_01222018.pdf 


Linda, 
Please find attached for your review the Hearing Officer’s report for the Atlantic Coast Pipeline project. I 
am happy to discuss this with you if you have any questions or comments. Thanks!  


Brian L. Wrenn 
Ecosystems Branch Chief Water Sciences Section 
NC Division of Water Resources 919‐743‐8409 (office) 919‐491‐2616 (cell)  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







From: Munger, Bridget  


To: Holman, Sheila; Heyl, Douglas 
 


Subject: Fwd: ACP Hearing Officer"s report 


Date: Monday, January 22, 2018 2:51:28 PM 


Attachments: ACP_hearing officers rept_01222018.pdf ATT00001.htm 


Please see attached. 
Sent from my iPhone Begin forwarded message:  


From: "Higgins, Karen" <karen.higgins@ncdenr.gov> To: "Munger, Bridget" 
<bridget.munger@ncdenr.gov> Subject: FW: ACP Hearing Officer's report  


FYI  


Thanks‐ Karen  


Karen Higgins  


401 & Buffer Permitting Branch Supervisor Division of Water Resources 
Department of Environmental Quality  


(919) 807-6360 office  


karen.higgins@ncdenr.gov https://deq.nc.gov/about/divisions/water-resources/water-resources-
permits/wastewater- branch/401-wetlands-buffer-permits  


512 N. Salisbury Street (Archdale Building), Suite 942-E, Raleigh, NC 27604 1617 Mail Service Center, 
Raleigh, NC 27699-1617  


Email correspondence to and from this address is subject to the North Carolina Public Records Law and 
may be disclosed to third parties.  


From: Wrenn, Brian L 
Sent: Monday, January 22, 2018 8:42 AM 
To: Culpepper, Linda <linda.culpepper@ncdenr.gov> 
Cc: Poupart, Jeff <jeff.poupart@ncdenr.gov>; Higgins, Karen <karen.higgins@ncdenr.gov> 
Subject: ACP Hearing Officer's report  


Linda, 
Please find attached for your review the Hearing Officer’s report for the Atlantic Coast  


Pipeline project. I am happy to discuss this with you if you have any questions or comments. Thanks!  







Brian L. Wrenn 
Ecosystems Branch Chief Water Sciences Section 
NC Division of Water Resources 919‐743‐8409 (office)  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







 


From: Higgins, Karen  


To: Culpepper, Linda  


 
Subject: draft 401 decision documents 


Date: Tuesday, January 23, 2018 1:22:54 PM 


Attachments: 140957v2AtlanticCoastPipeline(Multi)_401_IC_NRB_TAR_2.docx 
140957v2AtlanticCoastPipeline(Multi)_401_IC_NRB_TAR_DENIAL.docx 


Linda‐  


Attached please find an electronic copy of the draft 401 decision documents for ACP. I’m 
working on the bullet points.  


Thanks‐ Karen  


Karen Higgins  


401 & Buffer Permitting Branch Supervisor Division of Water Resources 
Department of Environmental Quality  


(919) 807-6360 office  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







 


Subject: DWR Discussion - ACP 
 


Location: DENR_GS - Rm 5301 - 10 Seats - Morrow Mount 


Start: Wed 1/24/2018 11:30 AM Wed 1/24/2018 12:15 PM Tentative  
End: 
Show Time As:  


Recurrence: Meeting Status:  


Organizer: 
Required Attendees:  


Linda‐  


(none) 
Not yet responded 


Higgins, Karen 
Culpepper, Linda; Wrenn, Brian L; Poupart, Jeff  


We wanted to block some time with you to go over the HO Report and 401 decision documents 
if you had any questions. I gave Bridgette a hard copy of the HO Report, draft 401 certification 
and draft denial.  


Thanks‐ Karen  


127  


Mack, J anet  


 


Subject: Location:  


Start: 
End: 
Show Time As:  


Recurrence: Meeting Status:  


Organizer: 
Required Attendees:  


(none) Accepted  







Canceled: ACP Team Meeting 
DENR_GS - Rm 5212 - 14 seats - Bodie Island Lighthouse  


Mon 1/22/2018 1:00 PM Mon 1/22/2018 1:30 PM Free  
 
Lucey, John D 
Heyl, Douglas; Kritzer, Jamie; Jill Warren Lucas; Munger, Bridget; Leonard, Laura  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







From: Higgins, Karen  


To: Morris-McLawhorn, Bridgette R 
Culpepper, Linda 
 
Cc: 
Subject: ACP - word document 


Date: Thursday, January 25, 2018 3:40:34 PM 


Attachments: 140957v2AtlanticCoastPipeline(Multi)_401_IC_NRB_TAR_3.docx 


Bridgette‐  


I put a paper copy of the 401 certification for ACP on your desk today – there are two places for Linda to sign. I will not be in the office 
tomorrow, so if Linda wants any changes to the 401, I’ve attached the word document to this email so you can edit as needed. If you do make 
any changes to the word document, will you please send me the final word version document for our records?  


Also, on the bottom of page two you’ll see email addresses for Richard Gangle and Spencer Trichell. Once (if) Linda signs the 401, will you 
please email them a scanned copy of the signed document, and cc me as well?  


Thanks‐ Karen  


Karen Higgins  


401 & Buffer Permitting Branch Supervisor Division of Water Resources 
Department of Environmental Quality  


(919) 807-6360 office  


karen.higgins@ncdenr.gov  


https://deq.nc.gov/about/divisions/water-resources/water-resources-permits/wastewater-branch/401- wetlands-buffer-permits  
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P R O C E E D I N G S 1 


  MR GREENE:  All right.  Today's date is 2 


October 4, 2019.  My name is Kevin Greene.  Our company 3 


Eagle Intel Services has been contracted by the North 4 


Carolina General Assembly Subcommittee for the ACP to 5 


gather facts and report those facts back to the 6 


subcommittee. 7 


  We're here today to interview you and we're 8 


going to record this interview.  And I would like to 9 


have each person present to state your name and to 10 


acknowledge -- and your position and to acknowledge 11 


that you understand it's been recorded.  So I'll start 12 


with Tom. 13 


  MR. BEERS:  My name is Tom Beers.  I'm an 14 


investigator for Eagle Intel Services and I understand 15 


this is being recorded today. 16 


  MR. LANE:  I'm Bill Lane with DEQ.  I 17 


understand this is being recorded. 18 


  MR. WRENN:  Brian Wrenn with Division of Water 19 


Resources.  And I understand this is being recorded. 20 


  MR. HARGROVE:  Drew Hargrove with DEQ and I 21 


understand this is being recorded. 22 


  MR GREENE:  Thank you, gentlemen.  And I 23 


believe Mr. Lane, would you like to -- yes, add 24 


something. 25 
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  MR. LANE:  Yes.  Just a couple of things.  By 1 


agreement of the parties this interview will last no 2 


longer than an hour and we're beginning at 2:43, so we 3 


will be over no later than 03:43.  And also, again by 4 


agreement of the parties, the questions to be asked 5 


will be related to Mr. Wrenn's official duties related 6 


to the 401 Water Quality Certification for the Atlantic 7 


Coast Pipeline, not his -- any other projects he has 8 


worked on or anything with his personal life. 9 


  MR GREENE:  Thank you.  All right.  We'll 10 


start by first, you've already stated your name.  Just 11 


give us a brief history of your employment with DEQ? 12 


  MR. WRENN:  I began working with Division of 13 


Water Resources in 1997 in the Wilmington Regional 14 


Office.  I was animal waste facilities inspector.  I 15 


did some work with spray irrigation land application 16 


compliance work.  I have worked with -- on a detail 17 


with the EPA, doing some rule making for CAFO Rules, 18 


confined -- or Concentrated Animal Feeding Operations.  19 


I've also worked with the 401 unit doing transportation 20 


permitting.  I did that for about 8 years.  Four of 21 


those I was the supervisor of the unit.  I've done some 22 


NPDES permitting with Virginia DEQ.  And I --  23 


  MR GREENE:  What is that? 24 


  MR. WRENN:  Virginia -- NPDES?  National 25 
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Pollutant Discharge Elimination System for dischargers 1 


-- point source dischargers. 2 


  MR GREENE:  Okay.  Thank you. 3 


  MR. WRENN:  And then for the last 3 years I've 4 


been with the Water Sciences' Section in the ecosystems 5 


branch.  I'm the supervisor of that branch. 6 


  MR GREENE:  Okay.  Thank you.  During 7 


primarily 2017 and to 2018, I believe you were the 8 


hearing officer.  And can you give us a little bit 9 


background as to how that came to be?  How you were 10 


chosen for that position and your duties as such? 11 


  MR. WRENN:  Karen Higgins who was the 12 


supervisor of the 401 unit at the time asked me if I 13 


would be the hearing officer for this particular 14 


project.  I got involved with it probably late spring.  15 


I think the -- of 2017, I guess, it was the -- I think 16 


the hearings had already been scheduled at that time 17 


and so I came in with -- started -- trying to get up to 18 


speed on that in preparation for the hearings. 19 


  MR GREENE:  Okay.  What are the duties as a 20 


hearing officer? 21 


  MR. WRENN:  So as I understand it, my duties 22 


were to preside over the public meetings that we had.  23 


We had two of those, one in Rocky Mount and one in 24 


Fayetteville.  Is that right?  Yes, Fayetteville.  And 25 
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I was to accept comment during the period -- during the 1 


public meeting.  I 2 


 called people up.  We had people who had provided a 3 


summary of the project, then the permitting process.  I 4 


would take the comments -- any written comments that 5 


people had, I would take those as well.  Once the 6 


hearings were over we collected all comments.  I went 7 


through those comments and we began looking at the 8 


comments and the application that ACP had provided, 9 


plus any additional information letters that have been 10 


put out in the submissions in regards to those 11 


information letters.  And then developed a hearing 12 


officer's report with recommendations for what should 13 


happen as far as whether the 401 certification should 14 


be issued and any conditions that need to be included 15 


in that to address the public comments -- or issues 16 


that had not been covered already. 17 


  MR GREENE:  Okay.  And how closely do you 18 


worked with the individuals making the decisions on the 19 


permit, whether it's approved or disapproved? 20 


  MR. WRENN:  We're in pretty good 21 


communication, because I rely on the documentation that 22 


they're getting from the applicant and any additional 23 


information that's supplied.  I may have some technical 24 


questions.  Although, I have a good knowledge of the 25 
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401 certification process, there are some nuances that 1 


maybe I don't understand completely.  And so I was 2 


working with them very closely from that standpoint.  3 


As in regards to the hearing officer's report, they 4 


helped me with some of the background information with 5 


that regarding the sequence of events and number of 6 


additional information letters and things like that.  7 


But the hearing officer's report is largely my work. 8 


  MR GREENE:  Okay.  And who were you working 9 


with during this time? 10 


  MR. WRENN:  Karen Higgins and Jennifer 11 


Burdette were the two main people that I worked with. 12 


  MR GREENE:  Okay.  And what were their 13 


responsibilities or roles? 14 


  MR. WRENN:  So Karen is the supervisor of 401 15 


unit, so she is very involved with it.  Jennifer 16 


Burdette was the, what I would describe, as the project 17 


manager.  She was more of the technical expert on the 18 


application itself.  The additional information 19 


letters, what was needed to have a complete application 20 


-- that sort of things. 21 


  MR GREENE:  And do you ever served in a role 22 


as a hearing officer prior to that? 23 


  MR. WRENN:  I think I've worked on three other 24 


-- I've been hearing officer for three other particular 25 
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projects. 1 


  MR GREENE:  Okay.  Was -- that was prior to 2 


the --  3 


  MR. WRENN:  Prior to ACP. 4 


  MR GREENE:  Okay.  And were those projects of 5 


the same magnitude or -- I don't know, how would you -- 6 


how would you rate the ACP project compared to others 7 


you've worked on? 8 


  MR. WRENN:  It depends on what criteria you 9 


want to use.  We had 9,600 public comments, so it's 10 


very high profile from that standpoint.  The project 11 


itself is probably not outside the realm of any other 12 


project that we go through with the public hearing, but 13 


it just happened to have a lot more publicity with it. 14 


  MR GREENE:  Okay.  And what causes as a public 15 


hearing to occur? 16 


  MR. WRENN:  Now, it's usually requested by 17 


parties who -- interested parties who may have some 18 


concerns about the project, if it were to be permit -- 19 


I guess, depending on what you're talking about.  If it 20 


was -- in this particular case, if there were going to 21 


be a certification issued they may have concerns about 22 


the impacts of water quality or other things then they 23 


may request a public hearing there.  In this particular 24 


case, we understood that this was going to be a high 25 
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profile case.  It really did not fall under an 1 


individual permit classification, but we chose to send 2 


it through that to make sure that we were, I guess, 3 


transparent with the process, with the public. 4 


  MR GREENE:  Okay.  And would you say those 5 


people that have a voice -- who are we talking about?  6 


What entities or --? 7 


  MR. WRENN:  That could be anybody and I've 8 


worked with some projects where interested parties -- 9 


third parties that may be part of a an NGO or some sort 10 


of a --  11 


  MR GREENE:  Right.  But specifically with the 12 


ACP, we're just going through (cross talk). 13 


  MR. WRENN:  Well, there were too many to name. 14 


There was --  15 


  MR GREENE:  Okay. 16 


  MR. WRENN:  Yes.  I can throw some out, but it 17 


would do disservice to all the others.  I mean, there 18 


was, like I said there was 9,600 comments on --  19 


  MR GREENE:  Right.  More than just individual 20 


landowners, I mean, we go beyond that? 21 


  MR. WRENN:  Individual landowners, there were 22 


organizations, there were -- SELC was involved, some 23 


other --  24 


  MR GREENE:  What facility is that? 25 
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  MR. WRENN:  Southern Environmental Law Center. 1 


  MR GREENE:  Okay.  Any other large ones you 2 


can think of organizations? 3 


  MR. WRENN:  Blue Ridge Environmental Defense 4 


League, I think, was involved.  There was -- a lot of 5 


the rep -- a lot of the groups had cross 6 


representation, so there was different comment letters 7 


from -- that came from multiple groups, so it's hard to 8 


remember. 9 


  MR GREENE:  Okay. 10 


  MR. WRENN:  All of them so --. 11 


  MR GREENE:  What were the primary objections? 12 


  MR. WRENN:  Yes, it's in the hearing officer's 13 


report.  We tried to summarize that pretty well.  A lot 14 


of them had to do with things that were outside the 15 


permitting process such as moving away from fossil 16 


fuels.  Some of them more related to economic -- felt 17 


like the economic stimulation that was being forecasted 18 


with this was inaccurate.  There were some that felt 19 


like the pipelines were dangerous for folks living in, 20 


what they called the blast zone, and there were folks 21 


who were concerned about water quality issues.  There 22 


was a wide range -- environmental justice was a big 23 


one. 24 


  MR GREENE:  Okay.  All right.  And you 25 
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mentioned -- I've got some notes here that were on the 1 


server or on the DEQ website and under the staff files.  2 


And these -- and so I just want to hand you those to 3 


see if you could recognize those as being your notes. 4 


  MR. WRENN:  It looks like the notes that I 5 


submitted, yes. 6 


  MR GREENE:  Okay.  And let's start with -- I 7 


guess, we'll just start with first page here where it -8 


- this public comment e-mail, "Decision by September 9 


18, unless (phonetic) require more info".  What would 10 


that be in reference to? 11 


  MR. WRENN:  The public comment e-mail boxes we 12 


set up a special e-mail account for people to submit 13 


their public comments through electronically.  I assume 14 


and that was a trigger for me to go back and make sure 15 


I had gone through all the comments that we had 16 


received electronically. 17 


  MR GREENE:  9,600 or so -- you say 9,600? 18 


  MR. WRENN:  Roughly yes. 19 


  MR GREENE:  Wow. 20 


  MR. WRENN:  "Decision by September 18th", I 21 


think that was based off of the end of the comment 22 


period.  I think the comment period ended roughly 23 


August 18th, so 30 days -- we have 30 days after that 24 


to get a permit out unless we get more info -- we had 25 
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additional information that we needed.  It's not 1 


considered a complete application until we have all the 2 


information we need.  So, if we asked for additional 3 


information based off of questions we have in the 4 


application then it starts the clock over. 5 


  MR GREENE:  Okay.  And this one doesn't have a 6 


date, but you mentioned Environmental Justice, I'm 7 


assuming that's what "EJ" stands for? 8 


  MR. WRENN:  That's correct. 9 


  MR GREENE:  And, if you could just read your 10 


notes there.  And what do those notes say so for the 11 


record? 12 


  MR. WRENN:  Title is EJ, first note, 13 


"Following department policy for EJ".  Second note, 14 


"Looking at water quality impacts through EJ 15 


communities".  Sub-note, "Not necessarily pipeline 16 


impacts". 17 


  MR GREENE:  And what did you mean by those 18 


notes or comments?  What are you talking about, further 19 


explanation of those please. 20 


  MR. WRENN:  There were lots of comments we had 21 


received from commenters about environmental justice 22 


issues, because this was impacting a lot of socio -- 23 


lot of socioeconomic communities -- communities where 24 


they may have minorities in -- a higher percentage of 25 
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minority populations.  The -- and I can't remember 1 


exactly what this is regards to.  But the first one is 2 


for following department policy for EJ we have a Title 3 


VI program that we follow in regards to evaluating 4 


projects and permitting with respect to environmental 5 


justice issues. 6 


  MR GREENE:  Can you summarize that program? 7 


  MR. WRENN:  I don't think I could do it 8 


justice.  I mean, that we -- it's on our website.  It's 9 


just a process where when we go through, as a agency we 10 


go through looking at the environmental justice issues 11 


that may arise through a permitting process.  It's a 12 


programmatic decision.  It's not on a case by case 13 


basis. 14 


  MR GREENE:  Okay.  Is it required for that 15 


permit itself? 16 


  MR. WRENN:  For this particular project? 17 


  MR GREENE:  Yes. 18 


  MR. WRENN:  No. 19 


  MR GREENE:  Okay. 20 


  MR. WRENN:  Then as part of that they were 21 


looking at water quality impacts to EJ communities and 22 


not necessarily pipeline impacts.  Typically when you 23 


do an EJ analysis you look at a wider scope than maybe 24 


you look for the long, linear proj nature of this then 25 
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may have to look outside of that to --  1 


  MR GREENE:  How so? 2 


  MR. WRENN:  There may be -- and I'm getting 3 


out of my expertise.  There may be EJ communities that 4 


are adjacent to those that extend outside the project 5 


boundaries so they would have to go outside those 6 


boundaries to look at the impacts to those communities. 7 


  MR GREENE:  Okay.  All right.  And, if I can 8 


get you to look at the -- lot of pages these notes.  9 


And I'll let you kind of summarize, I believe, the date 10 


it appears to be -- is that September? 11 


  MR. WRENN:  September 1, 2017. 12 


  MR GREENE:  And if you will just kind of 13 


review those in this -- 14 


  MR. WRENN:  You want me to read them aloud?  15 


Is that what you want? 16 


  MR GREENE:  If you like, yes.  If you don't 17 


mind that will be great. 18 


  MR. WRENN:  September 1, heading, "September 19 


1, 2017 EJ issues for ACP."  First note, "EJ is 20 


procedural informational court decision, D.C. Circuit."  21 


Next note, "Is application being reasoned in decision 22 


as it evaluates or eval EJ". 23 


  MR. LANE:  Do you need him to read this whole 24 


page? 25 
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  MR GREENE:  No, you don't have to.  Just go 1 


ahead and familiarize yourself with it. 2 


  MR. WRENN:  Okay. 3 


  MR GREENE:  And you made reference to a court 4 


decision, D.C. Circuit, do you recall what that was 5 


concerning? 6 


  MR. WRENN:  I do not recall.  That was -- I 7 


remember Jay Osborne was talking about some case law 8 


regarding EJ issues. 9 


  MR GREENE:  Okay.  Did that have an impact on 10 


what you were doing? 11 


  MR. WRENN:  No.  The process of the water 12 


quality certification does not involve environmental 13 


justice issues. 14 


  MR GREENE:  Okay.  All right.  And in your 15 


question here, we're going to consider EJ and then 16 


there is a question mark.  Who was that being addressed 17 


to or was that being addressed to you?  I guess -- I 18 


mean, unfortunately, I don't know who was attending 19 


this.  But if you have a recall of who was attending 20 


that would be wonderful. 21 


  MR. WRENN:  That was more of a note to myself 22 


in the sense that in reaction to some of the 23 


conversation we have -- we had some coordination 24 


meetings that kind of provide a status update of where 25 
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we were in our analysis.  The one where, I think, some 1 


of the Title VI and environmental justice subjects were 2 


being discussed.  That was more of a question to myself 3 


to ask the group if that was something that we were 4 


going to try to consider in this, because I felt like 5 


it was outside the scope of the evaluation. 6 


  MR GREENE:  Okay.  And when you say group, who 7 


would we be -- or who were you referring to? 8 


  MR. WRENN:  As I mentioned Jay Osborne was 9 


providing some case history on that and --  10 


  MR GREENE:  And what's his position? 11 


  MR. WRENN:  He is in the general counsel. 12 


  MR GREENE:  Okay. 13 


  MR. WRENN:  The DEQ's general counsel. 14 


  MR GREENE:  Okay. 15 


  MR. WRENN:  I don't recall everybody who was 16 


there.  Then Jay and -- just referenced to Jay and 17 


Linda, I assume they were not there, but that would be 18 


Jay Zimmerman and Linda Culpepper. 19 


  MR GREENE:  Okay.  And their positions at that 20 


time? 21 


  MR. WRENN:  I think Jay was still the Director 22 


at that and Linda was the interim or the Deputy 23 


Director of Division of Water Resources. 24 


  MR GREENE:  And what reference was they made 25 
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in that note, I'm sorry? 1 


  MR. WRENN:  In what does the note say or why 2 


did I referenced them? 3 


  MR GREENE:  Both. 4 


  MR. WRENN:  I just made the note to remind 5 


myself to speak to them about the EJ issue, if -- to 6 


confirm that that was not something I was going to 7 


evaluate the project on.  So --  8 


  MR GREENE:  Okay.  And this particular meeting 9 


of -- I think the date was September? 10 


  MR. WRENN:  That's correct. 11 


  MR GREENE:  Were those meetings held on a 12 


regular basis? 13 


  MR. WRENN:  That -- yes.  I don't remember the 14 


frequency. 15 


  MR GREENE:  Okay.  And who would normally 16 


attend those meetings? 17 


  MR. WRENN:  It would vary, but typically. 18 


Sheila Holman (phonetic) was there.  Either Jay or 19 


Linda was typically at one of those meetings.  Karen 20 


(phonetic) and/or I would attend that.  For EJ, I think 21 


Sarah Rice (phonetic) at the time was the EJ 22 


coordinator. 23 


  MR GREENE:  Okay.  And what is the EJ 24 


coordinator's role? 25 
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  MR. WRENN:  Basically the programmatic manager 1 


for the Title VI program. 2 


  MR GREENE:  Okay.  And I think there was -- I 3 


think I've seen other references where you were 4 


communicating with her regarding that.  In fact, I 5 


think it was a part of the HO report that you asked for 6 


input on that, do you recall that. 7 


  MR. WRENN:  I do. 8 


  MR GREENE:  Okay.  Was that -- is that 9 


something that was always being -- not always, but 10 


during the process until the end of the final written 11 


project.  Is that -- did you ever have a clear 12 


understanding of what needed to be done regarding 13 


environmental justice and how it was to be included? 14 


  MR. WRENN:  In our -- in my hearing officer's 15 


report is that what you're referring to? 16 


  MR GREENE:  Yes sir. 17 


  MR. WRENN:  I think shortly after this meeting 18 


I was very clear that it was not something that we 19 


needed to consider for our water quality certification 20 


evaluation.  That was -- they were just -- there was a 21 


lot of comments that we got from the public and other 22 


interested parties and we wanted to make sure that we 23 


addressed those.  These coordination meetings were a 24 


broader than just the water quality certification.  25 
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They included there -- again, now when I think about it 1 


there was some folks from air quality, because they 2 


were getting in air quality permit and there were 3 


sometimes some of the DEMLR (phonetic) folks had to -- 4 


we're calling in, because they had to get an erosion 5 


control plan approved and everything like that.  So it 6 


was a broader coordination of how this was happening 7 


outside of just the water quality certification. 8 


  MR GREENE:  Okay.  Thank you for the 9 


explanation there.  I'd like to address the ICA, ICI, 10 


cumulative impacts portion and can you give us a 11 


definition or understanding of what that entails? 12 


  MR. WRENN:  Sure.  Indirect and cumulative 13 


impacts analysis that goes by as several different 14 


monikers.  But that's generally when you have a project 15 


-- and this is more specific to publicly funded 16 


projects or projects that may require a federal permit.  17 


If you have a project there may be impacts associated 18 


with that project that are not directly related to the 19 


project itself.  So what you have to do is consider -- 20 


I'll use an example of a building of road.  If you 21 


build a road and you provide access to areas that have 22 


-- may not have had access in the past it may spur 23 


development.  And that development is spurred there may 24 


be additional water quality impacts from additional 25 
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storm water or septic tanks, if it's out in a rural 1 


area or there may be a more impervious surfaces and 2 


detrimental effects there.  Maybe this particular basin 3 


it has a lot of the impacts already so you have to look 4 


at the cumulative side of it.  How much is going on 5 


there, not just this particular project.  And you have 6 


to determine to the best of your ability what those 7 


secondary and cumulative impacts might be. 8 


  MR GREENE:  Sounds like predicting the future. 9 


  MR. WRENN:  It very much is.  It's a rough 10 


science. 11 


  MR GREENE:  It sounds like it.  Was that an 12 


issue?  I mean, was that a driving part of the 13 


permitting process to determine that? 14 


  MR. WRENN:  It's a very big part of the 15 


process.  From the standpoint of, it is one of the 16 


major points in which we evaluate a -- we evaluate an 17 


application.  The -- for this particular project, 18 


because it is a pipeline that may provide a -- before 19 


then untapped source of gas -- natural gas there may be 20 


more development through industrial or commercial uses 21 


that might impact through secondary impacts of water 22 


quality.  For the most part this project it's not like 23 


you can just walk up to it and throw a tap on the 24 


pipeline and start pulling gas off of it.  So it's 25 
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limited to three main areas, those metering stations.  1 


And so we focused our attention on those three main 2 


areas -- those three metering stations to try to get a 3 


determination of what the secondary and cumulative 4 


impacts would be there. 5 


  MR GREENE:  Okay.  Was that the -- and you 6 


phrased it quite well, the secondary and cumulative 7 


impacts and all that.  Was that something that was, 8 


when you first got involved, was that an issue at the 9 


forefront of the project when the application was 10 


filed?  And did it continue to gravitate were you're 11 


getting answers from the applicant? 12 


  MR. WRENN:  We were getting answers, but not 13 


answers that were completely answering our questions 14 


that we had asked and the information request we had 15 


made to them.  We weren't getting what we needed from 16 


the applicant to feel comfortable about their analysis. 17 


  MR GREENE:  Okay.  So in the -- I think in 18 


this case there were four, do you recall there were 19 


four information requests? 20 


  MR. WRENN:  Four or five something like that. 21 


  MR GREENE:  Okay.  Would that have been 22 


something in the first set or two of these information 23 


requests? 24 


  MR. WRENN:  The very first information 25 
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requested that went out, I'm not sure what was in that 1 


one, because that was -- I was just becoming on board 2 


with that project.  I know that multiple information 3 


requests after that dealt with the information that we 4 


needed with the secondary and cumulative impacts 5 


analysis, but there was also other items that we were 6 


still asking questions about that we needed information 7 


for. 8 


  MR GREENE:  Right.  Okay.  I think the last 9 


request really focused on that, the cumulative impact.  10 


Were you in communication with the applicants or is 11 


that primarily Higgins and Burdette? 12 


  MR. WRENN:  I was involved with some of that 13 


as well. 14 


  MR GREENE:  Okay.  And who did you talk to or 15 


meet with? 16 


  MR. WRENN:  Our conversations were on the 17 


phone.  I don't remember the names that we talked to. 18 


  MR GREENE:  Okay.  But these were the 19 


representatives for the partnership? 20 


  MR. WRENN:  As my -- as I understand it they 21 


were the consultants, then there may have been some ACP 22 


employees, but mainly we were dealing with the 23 


consultants who had done the analysis. 24 


  MR GREENE:  Okay.  Were they -- did they ever 25 
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become, I would say, frustrated about how long it was 1 


taking? 2 


  MR. WRENN:  I think that goes along with water 3 


quality certification process.  People are always -- 4 


want their permit tomorrow.  So I don't remember any 5 


outward frustrations. 6 


  MR GREENE:  Okay.  No expressed concerns about 7 


it taking so long? 8 


  MR. WRENN:  Not that I remember off the top of 9 


my head, nothing that stands out to me. 10 


  MR GREENE:  Okay.  Do you want to start with 11 


these? 12 


  MR. BEERS:  Yes.  Coming back to this 13 


information request, I'm going to give you a copy of 14 


the -- this is I think the final hearing officer's 15 


report that was submitted on January 22, 2018.  And the 16 


second -- is that look like what that is? 17 


  MR. WRENN:  Uh-huh. 18 


  MR. BEERS:  On the second page of that there 19 


is a -- it looks like a schedule that -- I guess, you 20 


put that in?  Did you prepare that schedule for the 21 


dates of? 22 


  MR. WRENN:  I did not prepare this schedule.  23 


This was prepared by Jennifer and Karen.  As I've said 24 


earlier, they did the background part of this to assist 25 
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me with summarizing the project in the chronological 1 


history of some of the --  2 


  MR. BEERS:  Okay.  So they prepared a lot of 3 


the bulk of that schedule as their work? 4 


  MR. WRENN:  Uh-huh. 5 


  MR. BEERS:  As part of that.  Okay.  And then 6 


I also have -- these were -- this is a document, it's 7 


in the notes of Karen Higgins from the DEQ website 8 


public document.  And it's kind of a -- the bottom left 9 


is date 11/20/17 and that looks like somewhat of a 10 


schedule based on some information request and it looks 11 


like a projected schedule of when the permitting 12 


process would occur. 13 


  MR. WRENN:  Uh-huh. 14 


  MR. BEERS:  So going back to the second page 15 


of your hearing officer's report, we're going to just 16 


kind of compares to its date.  I just want to see if 17 


you remember anything that may have occurred.  And this 18 


is November 15th, the last request of information was 19 


received by you by the ACP.  I'm just going to point 20 


you to a document in here.  November 15th and it looks 21 


like these were all numbered to associate with a 22 


additional information. 23 


  MR. WRENN:  Correct. 24 


  MR. BEERS:  It looks like that you're familiar 25 
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with how this is done? 1 


  MR. WRENN:  Uh-huh. 2 


  MR. BEERS:  So November 15th, it looks like 3 


the last piece of information was received in that 4 


request on the 15th. 5 


  MR. WRENN:  Yes.  It looks like it. 6 


  MR. BEERS:  And then this indicates that this 7 


was prepared on the 20th, so five days later.  So based 8 


on that do you recall that having received all the 9 


information necessary to get the permit to prepare your 10 


hearing officer's report or was there more information 11 


that you were discussing at this time to send out 12 


another additional request? 13 


  MR. WRENN:  I'm not -- I'm not sure I 14 


understand the significance of the 20th versus the 15 


15th. 16 


  MR. BEERS:  Okay.  So this looks to me -- and 17 


you can tell me, if I'm wrong.  But October 26th 18 


request for additional permission number three. 19 


  MR. WRENN:  Right. 20 


  MR. BEERS:  Then November 4th and November 21 


15th, it looks like all of the information is being 22 


submitted at this time --  23 


  MR. WRENN:  Correct. 24 


  MR. BEERS:  -- for the request on the 15th. 25 
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  MR. WRENN:  Okay. 1 


  MR. BEERS:  So it looks like at this point in 2 


time everything has been received.  And then this, 5 3 


days later, is a projected schedule of when the permit 4 


would be issued.  Do you recall around that time, 5 


November 20th, of having discussions, "We have what we 6 


need?  We're going to get this permit in process to 7 


going on." 8 


  MR. WRENN: Well, we always had those 9 


discussions. 10 


  MR. BEERS:  Okay. 11 


  MR. WRENN:  So we were -- that was a pretty 12 


continual, do we have everything we need?  Is there 13 


anything else we need to have, to make sure that we're 14 


making an informed decision?  The way that a lot of 15 


this worked, we were trying to provide multiple avenues 16 


for the permitee to provide information to us.  17 


Sometimes it was e-mail, sometimes it was a hard copy, 18 


sometimes we would take the e-mails and say -- and log 19 


those in and, all right, once we get the hard copy, 20 


we'll start looking in.  Because there were some things 21 


that they could give us quickly and other things that 22 


they need to work on.  So we -- I don't remember the 23 


details of why this was -- what the schedule was set up 24 


on based off of this piece.  And I just remember the, 25 
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how we came out with this one. 1 


  MR BEERS:  I'll ask a more, I guess, a 2 


straightforward question.  Was there at any point, 3 


including this date November 20th when you, Higgins, 4 


Burdette said we have what we need we're going to get 5 


this permit going? 6 


  MR. WRENN:  No. 7 


  MR BEERS:  And then someone for some reason 8 


came in did and did a another request for information 9 


that --  10 


  MR. WRENN:  No. 11 


  MR BEERS:  -- that you weren't prepared for? 12 


  MR. WRENN:  No. 13 


  MR BEERS:  Okay.  All right. 14 


  MR. WRENN:  So I do remember that during this 15 


time we were working hard to get the information from 16 


the applicant.  We had spelled out very clearly the 17 


things that we wanted.  We had provided some examples 18 


for them on how to do the -- and I think this was 19 


related to the secondary and cumulative impacts 20 


analysis.  We had even provided some guidance that DOT 21 


uses to develop their analyses, because they're both 22 


long linear projects and with nodes to potential 23 


development.  And I would say at this point we were 24 


pretty frustrated by what we were getting from the 25 
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applicants despite multiple phone calls and written 1 


request kind of walking them through the process. 2 


  MR BEERS:  Okay.  Let me -- so let me put this 3 


back.  Whose decision is it to make a written request 4 


conformation, additional information?  Who would have 5 


decided to do that? 6 


  MR. WRENN:  It was multiple parties as far as 7 


-- usually Jennifer, she was the project manager.  Like 8 


I said, she was the technical expert here.  She had the 9 


ability to request any of information she needed at 10 


that time.  There were things -- there was -- I'm 11 


probably more familiar with secondary and cumulative 12 


impacts analysis through my prior work with Department 13 


of Transportation projects than maybe Karen or Jennifer 14 


were at that time.  So I provided probably more advice 15 


on what we needed to have a good idea of what those 16 


impacts were going to be than most hearing officers 17 


would. 18 


  MR BEERS:  Okay.  Let's go back to this -- I 19 


think at November 28th, I think the last request for 20 


information went out November 28th. 21 


  MR. WRENN:  November 28th, okay. 22 


  MR BEERS:  And that was -- I've looked at 23 


this, it looked like more of a cumulative impact 24 


requests for information.  Do you recall that to be the 25 
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case in that last form, I mean --? 1 


  MR. WRENN:  To the best of my knowledge --  2 


  MR BEERS:  Yes.  To the best of your knowledge 3 


here as we sit. 4 


  MR. WRENN:  Yes. 5 


  MR BEERS:  Was that your decision, Jennifer 6 


and Higgins' decision or did someone else above them 7 


would make this request to make this -- or was it done 8 


from you discussing these facts? 9 


  MR. WRENN:  We didn't discuss the details of 10 


the application as far as what we have, what we need, 11 


what we don't have with anyone other than ourselves.  12 


It was Jennifer, Karen and myself evaluating the 13 


application and looking at the data we have and 14 


determine whether we had an adequate amount of 15 


information to make a decision.  We -- I would say that 16 


we knew that this would be happening and so we tried to 17 


be as diligent and as thorough as possible in this.  So 18 


--  19 


  MR BEERS:  Right.  So that was your decision.  20 


It didn't come down from that there are some other 21 


office and say, hey do this, you can sure (cross talk). 22 


  MR. WRENN: At no point I had any directives 23 


from anyone other than Jennifer, Karen and myself. 24 


  MR BEERS:  Okay.  Let's just move on to --  25 
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  MR. GREENE:  Do you recall the time that you 1 


were notified or told that any correspondence with the 2 


applicant -- the secretary's office needed to be 3 


briefly prior to some correspondence with them? 4 


  MR. WRENN:  No, I don't recall anything. 5 


  MR BEERS:  Okay.  I'm going to move toward the 6 


-- just toward the end of the timeframe of the ACP 7 


permit process.  This would be in early January 2018. 8 


  MR. WRENN:  Okay. 9 


  MR BEERS:  And we have some e-mails that we 10 


got from the website.  And it looks like -- you look at 11 


some of these -- I want you look at some of these.   12 


  MR. WRENN:  This? 13 


  MR BEERS:  Yes.  Look at these, was that 16 or 14 


19644? 15 


  MR. GREENE:  Yes, 19644. 16 


  MR. WRENN:  Are these separate documents or 17 


(cross talk). 18 


  MR BEERS:  They are -- with him, they all have 19 


multiple e-mails on it, because that's the way -- they 20 


are kind of e-mail strings so, some are duplicates, 21 


some are -- this is just more of the -- I don't know, 22 


if they're all included with that.  It's all part of 23 


the same -- it's all part of that same exchange.  So 24 


it's -- tell me, if I'm wrong, but it looks like it's 25 
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in the process of Higgins and Burdette or you are 1 


involved with reviewing your hearing officer's report 2 


and you're getting ready to send it to or where would 3 


you normally sent that do you know? 4 


  MR. WRENN:  The -- because of the high profile 5 


of this case I sent it to Karen and Jennifer to review 6 


my report, make sure that my references -- technical 7 


references and the things that I've put in there were 8 


accurate.  They have a much better grasp of the 9 


statutes.  We sent it to Jeff who had -- I think, in 10 


that reference its Jeff Poupart (phonetic).  He is 11 


Karen's boss so he could see the report.  The 12 


secretary's office had requested to get a brief on that 13 


prior to us sending it to Linda. 14 


  MR BEERS:  Okay.  So do you recall the 15 


conversation with -- did you a have conversation with 16 


Bridget Munger asking to get a copy of that report?  Do 17 


you recall a conversation or do you (cross talk)? 18 


  MR. WRENN:  To get a copy of what report? 19 


  MR BEERS:  That hearing officer's report? 20 


  MR. WRENN:  Whether she had asked me? 21 


  MR BEERS:  Yes.  So it looks like -- well, let 22 


me put that together.  23 


  MR. WRENN:  May be I missed that. 24 


  MR BEERS:  Yes.  I'm going to (cross talk).  25 
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Is this is the one?  If you recall who requested --  1 


  MR. WRENN:  Oh, here I guess. 2 


  MR BEERS:  Secretary's office officer to get a 3 


copy? 4 


  MR. WRENN:  I think that --  5 


  MR BEERS:  Yes, this is the -- this is the --  6 


  MR. WRENN:  It may have gone through 7 


Bridgette.  She was very involved with that -- the 8 


whole hearing process, because it's a fairly high 9 


profile case.  She was the PIO officer at the time. 10 


  MR BEERS:  So that wasn't unusual for her to 11 


ask for copy that and ask -- did she ask that she was 12 


taken it before it went to Linda Culpepper, do you 13 


remember that conversation? 14 


  MR. WRENN:  I don't know that -- I remember 15 


that particular conversation that she was going to -- I 16 


don't remember. 17 


  MR BEERS:  Okay. 18 


  MR. WRENN: You're talking about 2 years ago so  19 


  MR BEERES:  Right. 20 


  MR. WRENN:  So I can't remember the specifics 21 


of that conversation. 22 


  MR BEERS:   What is the usual process for 23 


review and approving the HO report?  And then 24 


submitting or approving the permit based on that.  25 
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Where does the chain of review usually fall? 1 


  MR. WRENN:  The typical process goes through 2 


whatever group is responsible for either the permit or 3 


the certification.  They would take a look at it to 4 


make everything -- make sure everything is accurate.  5 


Often the supervisor, depending on their level of 6 


involvement with the project, would want to see that 7 


particular report as well just for knowledge purposes.  8 


And then I have had other situations where the director 9 


has looked at the hearing officer's report prior to a -10 


- an official sign off on it.  But I have not had a 11 


situation where the director or the secretary has 12 


requested it.  But I've never worked on a project that 13 


is this high profile either so. 14 


  MR BEERS:  Okay.  So just because haven't -- 15 


has haven't part of does it mean it wasn't 16 


inappropriate for in this case, because it's a high 17 


profile case --  18 


  MR. WRENN:  I'm sure that there was a lot of 19 


interest for them to see it, because of the profile of 20 


it. 21 


  MR BEERS:  Do you when -- from conversations 22 


between yourself and Higgins and Burdette during that 23 


timeframe before you were told to send it to 24 


secretary's office when you thought the permit would 25 
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probably be issued, if that -- if it was sent up on 1 


normal channels? 2 


  MR. WRENN:  I don't -- we were working as hard 3 


as we could to get it out the door, that's we saw from 4 


the prior e-mails we were hoping for September. 5 


  MR BEERS:  Right. 6 


  MR. WRENN:  So, but because the -- because of 7 


lack of information that we were getting from the 8 


applicant we weren't able to do that.  But I -- if 9 


you're and maybe you can ask me a more direct question. 10 


  MR BEERS:  How long does it usually take after 11 


you submit the hearing officer's report to get the 12 


permit? 13 


  MR. WRENN:  Usually once you submit the 14 


hearing officer's report to the division director for 15 


signature, the decision is made fairly quickly after -- 16 


within a matter of days.  Sometimes, if the director is 17 


familiar with the project and it's pretty simple, it 18 


can be issued right there.  Sometimes it takes -- they 19 


want to take some time to take a look at it and feel 20 


comfortable with the recommendations. 21 


  MR BEERS:  Okay.  And in this case it went to 22 


another level of review to secretary's office so -- 23 


  MR. WRENN:  They -- my understanding of that 24 


review was just to be informed on what we're going to 25 
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do.  But I don't know of -- 1 


  MR BEERS:  Do you remember having a meeting 2 


with Secretary Regan (phonetic) about this -- the 3 


hearing officer's report? 4 


  MR. WRENN:  I do. 5 


  MR BEERS:  Okay.  What happened in that 6 


meeting? 7 


  MR. WRENN:  We just walked through the 8 


application process.  We walked through the things that 9 


we evaluated during that process, provided our -- went 10 


through the recommendations that I had made in hearing 11 


officer's report to make sure they understand or 12 


understood why we were requiring or recommending those.  13 


And there may be some technical pieces that the 14 


secretary maybe didn't understand quite as well so we 15 


want to make sure that he understood that as well -- 16 


those pieces. 17 


  MR BEERS:  Do you think he understood 18 


everything after the meeting? 19 


  MR. WRENN:  He didn't have any more questions, 20 


so I can only assume he understood. 21 


  MR BEERS:  Okay.  Understood.  Did he ask when 22 


it was going to be issued? 23 


  MR. WRENN:  I don't recall. 24 


  MR BEERS:  Do you know when the permit was 25 
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actually issued? 1 


  MR. WRENN:  I know the hearing officer's 2 


report was signed in like 22nd of January.  I can't 3 


remember the exact date of the actual 401 when it was 4 


signed. 5 


  MR BEERS:  So that was on 26, so again like 6 


you said, it's within days so --  7 


  MR. WRENN:  That's a reasonable amount of 8 


time. 9 


  MR BEERS:  That's right once it's signed.  Do 10 


you know if why they were -- would have been a delay 11 


from your meeting with the secretary, if he understood 12 


it to -- us signing it till the 22nd -- just 10 days 13 


after -- you remember the 12th --  14 


  MR. WRENN:  Which area are you referring to? 15 


  MR BEERS:  Oh you met with the secretary on 16 


January 12th --  17 


  MR. WRENN:  I don't remember the date that we 18 


met. 19 


  MR BEERS:  Well, there was a note that says 20 


that.  I believe Ms. Higgins' notes. 21 


  MR. GREENE:  Yes.  There is a -- (cross talk) 22 


--  23 


  MR BEERS:  Made a reference to that meeting. 24 


  MR. WRENN:  Okay. 25 
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  MR BEERS:  So, if in fact it was the 12th you 1 


signed the hearing officer's report on the 22nd do you 2 


recall that's --? 3 


  MR. WRENN:  I don't know why there was a delay 4 


from there.  We had -- so we had a draft.  I know that 5 


Karen was working on the 401 certification.  I don't 6 


recall if the 401 certification was completed at that 7 


time.  Typically you have a hearing officer report and 8 


you have a certification and then you have a denial 9 


letter.  And you take all three of those pieces, I 10 


don't know, if any of those were -- all of those were 11 


completed at that time.  I don't have any information 12 


on why it took that long. 13 


  MR GREENE:  Had you ever seen a denial letter 14 


prior to ACP? 15 


  MR. WRENN:  Through -- from a public here -- 16 


or public comment and public meeting standpoint? 17 


  MR GREENE:  I'm assuming a draft. 18 


  MR. WRENN:  Had I seen the actual draft for 19 


this particular one? 20 


  MR GREENE:  Yes. 21 


  MR. WRENN:  I don't -- I think I saw a draft 22 


of it, but I never really looked at it.  It's -- it is 23 


procedural we have been beat up in the past for -- if 24 


we just bring a permit to be signed to the table people 25 
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have said that's pre-decisional, so we've started 1 


bringing both so that we can say that we considered 2 


both options. 3 


  MR GREENE:  As you guys were the experts and 4 


have the technical background to make that decision. 5 


  MR. WRENN:  I'm sorry. 6 


  MR BEERS:  So it's basically a formality so 7 


that you --  8 


  MR. WRENN:  It's form -- yes. 9 


  MR BEERS:  You're not making decisions for the 10 


director (cross talk)  11 


  MR. WRENN:  I'm making a recommendation, but 12 


the director can take my recommendation and throw it in 13 


the trash and do whatever they want to do.  So we 14 


didn't want to -- we wanted to be transparent again, so 15 


we brought both options. 16 


  MR BEERS:  Okay.  Do you recall any sense of 17 


urgency prior to signing this hearing officer's report, 18 


like, "Hey, we need to have this done by the next day" 19 


or a rush to get this signed after it was -- after that 20 


delay? 21 


  MR. WRENN:  A sense of urgency from --  22 


  MR BEERS:  Like a call and just like a late in 23 


December or January saying, hey, we need to get this 24 


report out by tomorrow.  And you need to get it signed 25 
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and get it out.  Do you remember any of that --  1 


  MR. WRENN:  I don't remember anybody calling 2 


me specifically to say that.  I know that Karen and 3 


Jennifer and I were interested in getting this out the 4 


door before the holidays, but --  5 


  MR BEERS:  Okay.  That was --  6 


  MR. WRENN:   -- we didn't want to have to come 7 


back to it. 8 


  MR BEERS:  But --  9 


  MR. WRENN:  But I don't recall a specific call 10 


from anybody other than between Karen, Jennifer and I 11 


about schedule at any time. 12 


  MR GREENE:  Okay.  I think the e-mails refer 13 


back to some Friday evening, some Sunday evenings, 14 


exchanges regarding this and reviews of it on the 19th 15 


and 21st before it went to -- does Wrenn e-mail Higgins 16 


back with the final HO report that was on a Sunday 17 


evening at 8:58? 18 


  MR. WRENN:  What day? 19 


  MR GREENE:  That was 21st of January.  So this 20 


is right before the 22nd. 21 


  MR. WRENN:  Okay. 22 


  MR. WRENN:  Yes.  So you send it her that 23 


night Sunday evening. 24 


  MR. WRENN:  Yes. 25 
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  MR GREENE:  Is it common to work on Sundays? 1 


  MR. WRENN:  No, it's not common, but I was -- 2 


like I said, we've been working on this for several 3 


months.  It's been a long process.  We were ready to be 4 


-- have the details.  We had the application.  We were 5 


ready to have the document wrapped up and ready to go. 6 


  MR BEERS:  Here is the e-mail on the Sunday 7 


19th.  It was to Brian -- from Karen to you and 19th.  8 


This is Friday 9:26.  It looks like you're working on 9 


it for late Friday.  Did anyone give you a deadline to 10 


have it completed by that Monday? 11 


  MR. WRENN:  No.  We were just trying to get it 12 


-- taken care of as quickly as possible. 13 


  MR BEERS:  So I'd come back to January 29 at 14 


9:26, where she is -- you're obviously working on it 15 


getting it out --  16 


  MR. WRENN:  January 19th --  17 


  MR. GREENE:  19th. 18 


  MR BEERS:  19th, excuse me, 19th. 19 


  MR. WRENN:  Okay. 20 


  MR BEERS:  So you worked at -- it looks like 21 


you're working to get it out maybe for a Monday or 22 


something -- I don't know, why Friday night at 9:26, 23 


I'm not sure.  But have you -- these were -- this is a 24 


document that was submitted by the governor's office to 25 
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the public back in December.  So it's an e-mail from 1 


Ken Eudy (phonetic) from the governor's office where he 2 


outlines, kind of schedule what's going to happen with 3 


ACP. 4 


  MR. WRENN:  Okay. 5 


  MR BEERS:  You notice on the 19th DEQ staff 6 


begins process of making 401.  That e-mail went out a 7 


day before on the 18th, did you recall any 8 


conversations with anyone about we need to get this out 9 


per the request of the governor's office? 10 


  MR. WRENN:  Again, nobody -- we didn't have 11 


any directives from anybody as far schedule. 12 


  MR BEERS:  Okay. 13 


  MR. WRENN:  We were trying to get it out from 14 


our standpoint of it had been a long drawn out process.  15 


We had always set goals. 16 


  MR BEERS:  So you're not familiar with this? 17 


  MR. WRENN:  I'm not familiar with that, no. 18 


  MR BEERS:  Okay. 19 


  MR. WRENN:  What was the date of the --  20 


  MR BEERS:  Of the schedule? 21 


  MR. WRENN:  No, the hearing officer's report -22 


- the last received information request? 23 


  MR BEERS:  Last received. 24 


  MR. WRENN:  Uh-huh, the hearing officer. 25 
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  MR BEERS:  That would have been the 18th 1 


report. 2 


  MR. WRENN:  So we were working close to having 3 


a 30 --  4 


  MR BEERS:  Right.  You were working on that. 5 


  MR. WRENN:  Yes.  We had not -- yes, well we 6 


weren’t in the situation where we had a 30 day problem 7 


there as --  8 


  MR BEERS:  No -- your --  9 


  MR. WRENN:  (cross talk) I just wanted to make 10 


sure. 11 


  MR BEERES:  I'm just wonder why the -- it 12 


looks like there is rough -- for Friday night at 9:20 13 


to get this out.  It looks like there was some kind of 14 


deadline --  15 


  MR. GREENE:  Deadline. 16 


  MR. WRENN:  Right. 17 


  MR BEERS:  Some kind of a deadline imposed on 18 


somebody at your office to get this out. 19 


  MR. WRENN:  I don't recall anybody providing a 20 


deadline to us regarding this.  This was, again, 21 


something we have been working on.  We were -- we had a 22 


-- we've been working to get the additional information 23 


for quite a while.  We finally got it.  We wanted to 24 


get it out the door.  We were working towards that 25 
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effort. 1 


  MR GREENE:  Okay.  Anything? 2 


  MR. BEERS:  No. 3 


  MR GREENE:  I'll just -- did anyone ever 4 


discuss with you the mitigation fund outside of the 5 


DEQ?  The mitigation fund -- the $57.8 million fund?  6 


Were you aware that there was negotiations or separate 7 


mitigation fund going on outside of DEQ? 8 


  MR. WRENN:  I have no information on that.  I 9 


found out in the news that whenever the date broke. 10 


  MR GREENE:  Right. 11 


  MR. BEERS:  It was not something that you were 12 


focused on as to how this can help with the impact -- 13 


the cumulative impact or anything like that? 14 


  MR. WRENN:  No, I have no information about 15 


the fund regarding -- like I said, other than when it -16 


- the day it came out I had no information there. 17 


  MR BEERS:  Well, let's -- if you had known 18 


about a fund that would provide mitigation fund for a 19 


cumulative impacts, would that be something you would 20 


consider in your report? 21 


  MR. WRENN:  That's speculative. 22 


  MR BEERS:  Well, it is speculative, but it was 23 


-- if you had access to -- maybe would that -- if 24 


that's information that would have been helpful in the 25 
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report in anyway?  I mean, it is speculative --  1 


  MR. WRENN:  Yes, that would be new territory.  2 


We would have to sit down and talk about how that would 3 


be incorporated into the process.  I don't -- I can't 4 


recall of any situation before where I've dealt with 5 


that. 6 


  MR BEERS:  Well, clearly you -- the applicant 7 


didn't mention it to you. 8 


  MR. WRENN:  Right. 9 


  MR BEERS:  Right.  So it was never brought up 10 


to your attention? 11 


  MR. WRENN:  Correct. 12 


  MR BEERS:  Okay. 13 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  Well we're at our time 14 


limit.  So at 3:41 -- first of all, thank you for your 15 


time.  We're going to discontinue the interview and I 16 


want to cut the recorders off. 17 


  MR. WRENN:  Okay. 18 


 19 


 20 
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 22 


 23 


 24 
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From: Doug Heyl  


To: Julia White (julia.white@nc.gov)  
Subject: Date: Attachments:  


Heyl, Douglas  


FW: ACP Update Notes - Jan. 3, 2018 Wednesday, January 3, 2018 1:36:00 PM image001.png  


North Carolina Department of Environmental Quality 919.707.9034 (Office) 
919.812.3415 (Mobile) 
douglas.heyl@ncdenr.gov  


Email correspondence to and from this address is subject to the 
North Carolina Public Records Law and may be disclosed to third parties.  


From: Munger, Bridget 
Sent: Wednesday, January 03, 2018 1:04 PM 
To: Holman, Sheila <sheila.holman@ncdenr.gov> 
Cc: Heyl, Douglas <Douglas.Heyl@ncdenr.gov>; Munger, Bridget <bridget.munger@ncdenr.gov> 
Subject: ACP Update Notes ‐ Jan. 3, 2018  


ACP Weekly Update Notes Jan. 3, 2018  


DAQ: No written response has been received from Dominion following DAQ’s request for 
additional information on the air quality permit application for the Northampton compressor 
station facility. Mike A. has reviewed draft hearing officer’s report; it is in good shape.  


DWR: In response to the fifth add-info request, Dominion submitted a revised cumulative 
analysis report on Dec. 20. Information submitted is under review to ensure that all the 
requested information has been provided. Final edits are being made to the hearing officer’s 
report. Staff is meeting with Linda Culpepper tomorrow to discuss further.  


DEMLR - E&SC: Staff will issue another letter of disapproval to Dominion by Jan. 4, which is the 
15-day deadline date. The letter will include about 19 comments/items, which is down from 34 
on the last letter of disapproval. There is no set deadline for Dominion to respond once the letter 
of disapproval is issued. Staff said the timeline is working out that we may be ready to issue an 
approval for the E&SC and construction stormwater permit application when the 401 certification 
issues are  


 


resolved. Per standard procedures, DEMLR will not issue the E&SC or construction stormwater 
permit approval prior to 401/404 approvals.  







DEMLR - Stormwater: No information has been received from Dominion in response to the 
DEMLR’s requests for more information on the stormwater general permit and stormwater 
individual permit. Options for a public comment period are under discussion.  


Bridget Munger 
Public Information Officer 
N.C. Department of Environmental Quality  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







 


From: Wrenn, Brian L  


To: Higgins, Karen; Burdette, Jennifer a 
Subject: Date: Attachments:  


RE: ACP Well Testing 
Thursday, January 4, 2018 12:54:46 PM image001.png  


Ok, I think I have the comments and edits from both of you resolved. Karen, I made one change to the 
appendices order and double checked the references in the text but no changes to the Appendices other 
than that. I’ve included the well testing language about complaints, added the 500 feet zone around 
blasting, and the cumulative analysis write‐up as well. I think that covers it. I’ve saved the report with 
today’s date. Let me know what you think. Thanks.  


Brian Wrenn 919‐743‐8409 (office) 919‐491‐2616 (cell)  


From: Higgins, Karen 
Sent: Thursday, January 04, 2018 9:47 AM 
To: Burdette, Jennifer a <Jennifer.Burdette@ncdenr.gov>; Wrenn, Brian L <brian.wrenn@ncdenr.gov> 
Subject: Re: ACP Well Testing  


agreed  


Thanks‐ Karen  


Karen Higgins  


401 & Buffer Permitting Branch Supervisor Division of Water Resources 
Department of Environmental Quality  


919 807-6360 office 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







From: Wrenn, Brian L  


To: Higgins, Karen; Burdette, Jennifer 


Subject: a FW: ACP HO report 


Date: Friday, January 5, 2018 9:17:45 AM 


Not sure if either of you got in this am, but I’m at home with one sick child and another out of school 
due to snow. The Secretary’s office wants to review the HO report prior to sending to Linda. I told 
Bridget we would send a copy to them when we send to Jeff. I doing another read through right now. 
When do you think you can finish your review? Thanks!  


Brian Wrenn 919‐743‐8409 (office) 919‐491‐2616 (cell)  


From: Munger, Bridget 
Sent: Friday, January 05, 2018 8:56 AM 
To: Wrenn, Brian L <brian.wrenn@ncdenr.gov> Subject: RE: ACP HO report  


That sounds great. Thanks!  


From: Wrenn, Brian L 
Sent: Friday, January 5, 2018 8:44 AM 
To: Munger, Bridget <bridget.munger@ncdenr.gov> Subject: Re: ACP HO report  


I think the HO report is their focus this am. If it’s ok, we can send the draft to you when we send it to Jeff 
to review. Thanks.  


Sent from my iPhone 
On Jan 5, 2018, at 8:09 AM, Munger, Bridget <bridget.munger@ncdenr.gov> wrote:  


Hi Brian, 
If Karen and Jennifer will be looking at the report today, I can wait for that draft. Please let me know what 
you prefer. 
Thank you! 
Bridget 
(Working at home this morning: 919-268-0069)  


From: Wrenn, Brian L 
Sent: Thursday, January 4, 2018 7:25 PM 
To: Munger, Bridget <bridget.munger@ncdenr.gov> Subject: ACP HO report  


Please make it known that this has not gone through final revisions. Some of the cumulative impact 
language is new and neither Karen nor Jennifer have reviewed it at all. Thanks.  


 


 







From:  


To: Subject: Date:  


Brian‐  


Higgins, Karen  


Wrenn, Brian L; Burdette, Jennifer a RE: ACP HO report 
Friday, January 5, 2018 11:37:00 AM  


Just a few minor suggestions highlighted in yellow. I don’t think Jennifer will review this today 
so please go ahead and send to Jeff and others.  


Since the department is reviewing the documents before going to Linda, I’m not sure that it will 
be ready for her by Monday. Should we try to reschedule for later in the week? We could try for 
after the EMC on Thursday (maybe 3:30) or Friday (maybe 8:45 or 2:00).  


Thanks‐ Karen  


Karen Higgins  


401 & Buffer Permitting Branch Supervisor Division of Water Resources 
Department of Environmental Quality  


(919) 807-6360 office  


karen.higgins@ncdenr.gov  


https://deq.nc.gov/about/divisions/water-resources/water-resources-permits/wastewater-branch/401- 
wetlands-buffer-permits  


512 N. Salisbury Street (Archdale Building), Suite 942-E, Raleigh, NC 27604 1617 Mail Service Center, 
Raleigh, NC 27699-1617  


Email correspondence to and from this address is subject to the North Carolina Public Records Law and 
may be disclosed to third parties.  


From: Wrenn, Brian L 
Sent: Friday, January 05, 2018 9:18 AM 
To: Higgins, Karen <karen.higgins@ncdenr.gov>; Burdette, Jennifer a <Jennifer.Burdette@ncdenr.gov> 
Subject: FW: ACP HO report  


Not sure if either of you got in this am, but I’m at home with one sick child and another out of school 
due to snow. The Secretary’s office wants to review the HO report prior to sending to Linda. I told 
Bridget we would send a copy to them when we send to Jeff. I doing another read through right now. 
When do you think you can finish your review? Thanks!  


Brian Wrenn 919‐743‐8409 (office)  







From: Munger, Bridget 
Sent: Friday, January 05, 2018 8:56 AM 
To: Wrenn, Brian L <brian.wrenn@ncdenr.gov> Subject: RE: ACP HO report  


That sounds great. Thanks!  


From: Wrenn, Brian L 
Sent: Friday, January 5, 2018 8:44 AM 
To: Munger, Bridget <bridget.munger@ncdenr.gov> Subject: Re: ACP HO report  


I think the HO report is their focus this am. If it’s ok, we can send the draft to you when we send it to Jeff 
to review. Thanks.  


Sent from my iPhone 
On Jan 5, 2018, at 8:09 AM, Munger, Bridget <bridget.munger@ncdenr.gov> wrote:  


Hi Brian, 
If Karen and Jennifer will be looking at the report today, I can wait for that draft. Please let me know what 
you prefer. 
Thank you! 
Bridget 
(Working at home this morning: 919-268-0069)  


From: Wrenn, Brian L 
Sent: Thursday, January 4, 2018 7:25 PM 
To: Munger, Bridget <bridget.munger@ncdenr.gov> Subject: ACP HO report  


Please make it known that this has not gone through final revisions. Some of the cumulative impact 
language is new and neither Karen nor Jennifer have reviewed it at all. Thanks.  


Brian L. Wrenn 
Ecosystems Branch Chief Water Sciences Section 
NC Division of Water Resources 919‐743‐8409 (office) 919‐491‐2616 (cell)  


Physical Address:  


4401 Reedy Creek Road Raleigh, NC 27607  


Mailing Address:  


1621 Mail Service Center Raleigh, NC 27699‐1623  


 


 


 


 







From: Wrenn, Brian L  


To: Higgins, Karen; Burdette, Jennifer a 
 
Subject: FW: ACP hearing officer"s report 


Date: Friday, January 5, 2018 12:19:39 PM 


Attachments:  


FYI  


 
ACP_hearing officers rept_01052018.docx 


Brian Wrenn 919‐743‐8409 (office) 919‐491‐2616 (cell)  


From: Wrenn, Brian L 
Sent: Friday, January 05, 2018 12:19 PM 
To: Poupart, Jeff <jeff.poupart@ncdenr.gov> 
Cc: Munger, Bridget <bridget.munger@ncdenr.gov> Subject: ACP hearing officer's report  


Jeff, 
Please find attached the draft hearing officer’s report for the ACP project. If you have any questions, 
please do not hesitate to contact me. I’m at home with kids, so try my cell (919‐491‐2616). Thanks.  


Brian L. Wrenn 
Ecosystems Branch Chief Water Sciences Section 
NC Division of Water Resources 919‐743‐8409 (office) 919‐491‐2616 (cell)  


Physical Address:  


4401 Reedy Creek Road Raleigh, N 19681C 27607  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







From: To: Subject: Date:  


Burdette, Jennifer a  


Wrenn, Brian L  


RE: ACP hearing officer"s report Friday, January 5, 2018 4:15:00 PM  


Sorry for missing your call this morning. I was deep into the draft of the 401. Before I left, I just 
wanted to thank you for all of your help with this project. I enjoyed and learned a lot working 
with you.  


Take care, Jennifer  


Jennifer Burdette  


401/Buffer Coordinator 
Division of Water Resources - 401 & Buffer Permitting Branch Department of Environmental Quality 
919 807 6364 office 
jennifer.burdette@ncdenr.gov  


1617 Mail Service Center Raleigh, NC 27699-1617  


(Physical Address: 512 N. Salisbury St, Raleigh, NC 27604 - 9th Flr Archdale Bldg – Room 942F) Email 
correspondence to and from this address is subject to the  


North Carolina Public Records Law and may be disclosed to third parties.  


From: Wrenn, Brian L 
Sent: Friday, January 05, 2018 12:20 PM 
To: Higgins, Karen <karen.higgins@ncdenr.gov>; Burdette, Jennifer a <Jennifer.Burdette@ncdenr.gov> 
Subject: FW: ACP hearing officer's report  


FYI  


Brian Wrenn 919‐743‐8409 (office) 919‐491‐2616 (cell)  


From: Wrenn, Brian L 
Sent: Friday, January 05, 2018 12:19 PM 
To: Poupart, Jeff <jeff.poupart@ncdenr.gov> 
Cc: Munger, Bridget <bridget.munger@ncdenr.gov> Subject: ACP hearing officer's report  


Jeff, 
Please find attached the draft hearing officer’s report for the ACP project. If you have any questions, 
please do not hesitate to contact me. I’m at home with kids, so try my cell (919‐491‐2616). Thanks.  


Brian L. Wrenn 
Ecosystems Branch Chief Water Sciences Section 
NC Division of Water Resources 919‐743‐8409 (office) 919‐491‐2616 (cell)  







From: Wrenn, Brian L  


To: Higgins, Karen 
Poupart, Jeff 
Cc:  


Subject: Re: ACP - Draft Decision Documents 


 Date: Sunday, January 21, 2018 8:58:42 PM  


Karen, 
I accepted all of the edits on the HO rept. I looked at the 401 one last time. In condition 16, it 
references an exemption from condition #13. should that be #15 instead?  


I'll sign the document and send it to Linda, copying you and Jeff. Thanks for all of your help on 
this.  


From: Higgins, Karen 
Sent: Friday, January 19, 2018 9:26:01 PM To: Wrenn, Brian L 
Cc: Poupart, Jeff 
Subject: Re: ACP ‐ Draft Decision Documents  


Brian‐  


Attached are a revised 401 and HO report. I made the edits to the HO report based on your 
comments in the 401 and reviewed a couple other places as well. I used the HO report I sent 
yesterday with those track changes accepted, so the only track changes you see are those I 
made today.  


I also made the recommended changes to the draft 401. 
Please let me know if you have any further comments/changes for either document.  


Thanks‐ Karen  


Karen Higgins  


401 & Buffer Permitting Branch Supervisor Division of Water Resources 
Department of Environmental Quality  


919 807-6360 office karen.higgins@ncdenr.gov  


 


 


 







From: Higgins, Karen 
Sent: Thursday, January 18, 2018 10:00 PM 
To: Wrenn, Brian L <brian.wrenn@ncdenr.gov>; Poupart, Jeff <jeff.poupart@ncdenr.gov> 
Subject: ACP ‐ Draft Decision Documents  


Attached please find the draft 401 certification for ACP as well as the draft denial letter. Please 
review and send me any edits/comments etc. If you make edits in the document(s) please use 
track changes so I can look at them easily.  


Please send me comments tomorrow if possible, or at least Monday morning.  


Thanks‐ Karen  


Karen Higgins  


401 & Buffer Permitting Branch Supervisor Division of Water Resources 
Department of Environmental Quality  


919 807-6360 office  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







 


From: Wrenn, Brian L  


To: Culpepper, Linda 
Cc: Poupart, Jeff; Higgins, Karen 
 
Subject: ACP Hearing Officer"s report 
Date: Monday, January 22, 2018 8:41:00 AM  


Attachments: ACP_hearing officers rept_01222018.pdf 


Linda, 
Please find attached for your review the Hearing Officer’s report for the Atlantic Coast Pipeline project. I 
am happy to discuss this with you if you have any questions or comments. Thanks!  


Brian L. Wrenn 
Ecosystems Branch Chief Water Sciences Section 
NC Division of Water Resources 919‐743‐8409 (office) 919‐491‐2616 (cell)  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







From: Munger, Bridget  


To: Holman, Sheila; Heyl, Douglas 
 


Subject: Fwd: ACP Hearing Officer"s report 


Date: Monday, January 22, 2018 2:51:28 PM 


Attachments: ACP_hearing officers rept_01222018.pdf ATT00001.htm 


Please see attached. 
Sent from my iPhone Begin forwarded message:  


From: "Higgins, Karen" <karen.higgins@ncdenr.gov> To: "Munger, Bridget" 
<bridget.munger@ncdenr.gov> Subject: FW: ACP Hearing Officer's report  


FYI  


Thanks‐ Karen  


Karen Higgins  


401 & Buffer Permitting Branch Supervisor Division of Water Resources 
Department of Environmental Quality  


(919) 807-6360 office  


karen.higgins@ncdenr.gov https://deq.nc.gov/about/divisions/water-resources/water-resources-
permits/wastewater- branch/401-wetlands-buffer-permits  


512 N. Salisbury Street (Archdale Building), Suite 942-E, Raleigh, NC 27604 1617 Mail Service Center, 
Raleigh, NC 27699-1617  


Email correspondence to and from this address is subject to the North Carolina Public Records Law and 
may be disclosed to third parties.  


From: Wrenn, Brian L 
Sent: Monday, January 22, 2018 8:42 AM 
To: Culpepper, Linda <linda.culpepper@ncdenr.gov> 
Cc: Poupart, Jeff <jeff.poupart@ncdenr.gov>; Higgins, Karen <karen.higgins@ncdenr.gov> 
Subject: ACP Hearing Officer's report  


Linda, 
Please find attached for your review the Hearing Officer’s report for the Atlantic Coast  


Pipeline project. I am happy to discuss this with you if you have any questions or comments. Thanks!  







Brian L. Wrenn 
Ecosystems Branch Chief Water Sciences Section 
NC Division of Water Resources 919‐743‐8409 (office)  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







 


From: Higgins, Karen  


To: Culpepper, Linda  


 
Subject: draft 401 decision documents 


Date: Tuesday, January 23, 2018 1:22:54 PM 


Attachments: 140957v2AtlanticCoastPipeline(Multi)_401_IC_NRB_TAR_2.docx 
140957v2AtlanticCoastPipeline(Multi)_401_IC_NRB_TAR_DENIAL.docx 


Linda‐  


Attached please find an electronic copy of the draft 401 decision documents for ACP. I’m 
working on the bullet points.  


Thanks‐ Karen  


Karen Higgins  


401 & Buffer Permitting Branch Supervisor Division of Water Resources 
Department of Environmental Quality  


(919) 807-6360 office  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







 


Subject: DWR Discussion - ACP 
 


Location: DENR_GS - Rm 5301 - 10 Seats - Morrow Mount 


Start: Wed 1/24/2018 11:30 AM Wed 1/24/2018 12:15 PM Tentative  
End: 
Show Time As:  


Recurrence: Meeting Status:  


Organizer: 
Required Attendees:  


Linda‐  


(none) 
Not yet responded 


Higgins, Karen 
Culpepper, Linda; Wrenn, Brian L; Poupart, Jeff  


We wanted to block some time with you to go over the HO Report and 401 decision documents 
if you had any questions. I gave Bridgette a hard copy of the HO Report, draft 401 certification 
and draft denial.  


Thanks‐ Karen  


127  


Mack, J anet  


 


Subject: Location:  


Start: 
End: 
Show Time As:  


Recurrence: Meeting Status:  


Organizer: 
Required Attendees:  


(none) Accepted  







Canceled: ACP Team Meeting 
DENR_GS - Rm 5212 - 14 seats - Bodie Island Lighthouse  


Mon 1/22/2018 1:00 PM Mon 1/22/2018 1:30 PM Free  
 
Lucey, John D 
Heyl, Douglas; Kritzer, Jamie; Jill Warren Lucas; Munger, Bridget; Leonard, Laura  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







From: Higgins, Karen  


To: Morris-McLawhorn, Bridgette R 
Culpepper, Linda 
 
Cc: 
Subject: ACP - word document 


Date: Thursday, January 25, 2018 3:40:34 PM 


Attachments: 140957v2AtlanticCoastPipeline(Multi)_401_IC_NRB_TAR_3.docx 


Bridgette‐  


I put a paper copy of the 401 certification for ACP on your desk today – there are two places for Linda to sign. I will not be in the office 
tomorrow, so if Linda wants any changes to the 401, I’ve attached the word document to this email so you can edit as needed. If you do make 
any changes to the word document, will you please send me the final word version document for our records?  


Also, on the bottom of page two you’ll see email addresses for Richard Gangle and Spencer Trichell. Once (if) Linda signs the 401, will you 
please email them a scanned copy of the signed document, and cc me as well?  


Thanks‐ Karen  


Karen Higgins  


401 & Buffer Permitting Branch Supervisor Division of Water Resources 
Department of Environmental Quality  


(919) 807-6360 office  


karen.higgins@ncdenr.gov  


https://deq.nc.gov/about/divisions/water-resources/water-resources-permits/wastewater-branch/401- wetlands-buffer-permits  
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P R O C E E D I N G S 1 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  All right.  Today's date 2 


is October 4, 2019.  My name is Kevin Greene.  Our 3 


company Eagle Intel Services is contracted with the 4 


North Carolina General Assembly subcommittee on the ACP 5 


for purpose of gathering and reporting information back 6 


to the subcommittee.  We are recording this interview.  7 


I would like to have each person state their name, 8 


their current position, and also acknowledge that you 9 


understand it's being recorded.  So I'll start with 10 


Tom. 11 


  MR. BEERS:  Tom Beers, I understand it's being 12 


record. 13 


  MR. LANE:  Bill Lane, DEQ.  I understand it's 14 


being recorded. 15 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  And Jay Zimmerman.  I 16 


understand it's being recorded.  I'm with the Division 17 


of Water Resources. 18 


  MR. HARGROVE:  Drew Hargrove.  I'm with DEQ.  19 


I understand it's being recorded. 20 


  MR. GREENE:  Thank you, gentlemen.  And I 21 


believe Mr. Lane would have to like to add something. 22 


  MR. LANE:  Yes, for the record these are the 23 


terms of the interview that have been agreed upon by 24 


the parties.  This interview is beginning at 10:15 and 25 
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will be concluded no later than 11:15.  The questions 1 


presented to Mr. Zimmerman will be related to his 2 


official duties related to the 401 water quality 3 


certification for the Atlantic Coast Pipeline project.  4 


They will not cover other projects or anything related 5 


to his personal life.  Thank you. 6 


  MR. GREENE:  Thank you.  And thank you Mr. 7 


Zimmerman for being here. 8 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Uh-huh. 9 


  MR. GREENE:  I have a few words just -- you 10 


already stated your name, but would just please provide 11 


a brief history of your employment with DEQ, when you 12 


started and positions that you served in? 13 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  So I started with DEQ or the 14 


predecessor department in July of 1987.  I started as a 15 


hydro geological technician until January of 1990, at 16 


which point I was promoted to the regional supervisor 17 


position or program supervisor.  And I held that 18 


position as supervisor for one of our field offices in 19 


the Raleigh area.  We have a Raleigh field office - 20 


until September of 2012. 21 


  At which point, I was promoted to section 22 


chief for the -- at the time, it was the aquifer 23 


protection section.  I held that position until March 24 


of 2015, at which point I was promoted to division 25 
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director for the Division of Water Resources.  In 1 


November of 2017 I took on the role of the lead program 2 


manager for coal ash, so I no longer was the division 3 


director. 4 


  And then I think it was June of 2018.  So less 5 


than a year, I took over the position that I currently 6 


have, which is section chief for the water quality 7 


regional operation section. 8 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  You've worn a lot of hats 9 


and been here a while. 10 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Thank you. 11 


  MR. GREENE:  I appreciate your service.  12 


During 2000 -- well, let's just start.  When did you 13 


first become involved in the Atlantic Coast Pipeline 14 


project? 15 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  I think it was early 2017.  At 16 


which point, we had a kickoff meeting with a number of 17 


stakeholders that were interested in or concerned 18 


about, you know, the pipeline. 19 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  And when you say 20 


stakeholders, who are you referring to? 21 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Most of the people were 22 


environmental groups, some of the river keepers, other 23 


state agencies.  Our own staff, you know, that would be 24 


involved in that project. 25 
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  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  And that was early 2017?  1 


And you were at that point, division director? 2 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Yes. 3 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  And can you give me a 4 


chain of command as to who worked under you and who you 5 


answered to? 6 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.  So I answered to Sheila 7 


Holman, who was the assistant secretary for the 8 


environment.  I was responsible for all of the division 9 


of water resource activities.  So in the context of the 10 


401 certification, my immediate subordinate was Jeff 11 


Poupart, who was the section chief for the water 12 


quality permitting section.  And that's the section 13 


under which the 401 certification staff are housed. 14 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  So just under you would 15 


have been… 16 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Poupart. 17 


  MR. GREENE:  Jeff Poupart and then above you 18 


would have been Holman. 19 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Holman.  Yes. 20 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  At -- you said, it was a 21 


kickoff with the stakeholders in early 2017.  When was 22 


the application filed?  Do you recall? 23 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  I do not. 24 


  MR. GREENE:  I believe, we've got a timeline.  25 
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I believe it was May of 2017.  Let me show you a 1 


document, but roughly, I think it was early May 2017. 2 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay. 3 


  MR. GREENE:  Can you kind of go through the 4 


process of how that evolves before the application and 5 


then after the application is filed.  What's the 6 


process or steps that are normally taken? 7 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  To be honest, I don't really 8 


know.  You know, I -- the 401 program is the program 9 


that I've probably in all my career have had the least 10 


involvement, almost no involvement.  So I have -- I had 11 


deferred to Jeff Poupart and then his immediate direct 12 


report Karen Higgins to help steer us through that 13 


process. 14 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  All right.  Do you know 15 


what factors play into the 401 permitting process?  16 


What has to be met for the applicant to receive a 17 


certification or a certificate? 18 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  In a general sense.  I mean, 19 


we have to ensure that at least that we're convinced 20 


that the projects going to protect water resources in a 21 


general sense.  And the rules and regulations that 22 


apply to that, that part of the program are geared 23 


towards ensuring that that happens. 24 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  So the primary goal is to 25 
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protect the water resources? 1 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Protect water resources. 2 


  MR. GREENE:  As a result of the project. 3 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Uh-huh. 4 


  MR. GREENE:  Do you know what other factors 5 


are -- played into the decision for the certificate? 6 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Outside of what's in the rules 7 


and, you know, brief discussions I might have had with 8 


Karen and or Jeff, no. 9 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  Can you refer back to -- 10 


you initially got involved in the kickoff with the 11 


stakeholders? 12 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Right. 13 


  MR. GREENE:  And can you go through what 14 


actions or what roles you played and your authority, 15 


what decisions were made during the timeframe, you were 16 


in the division director's position? 17 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Mainly since I was the senior 18 


management member for the division, and I participated, 19 


A, to learn a little bit about the process that was 20 


really my first exposure to a big project.  To make 21 


sure that I understood from the division's perspective, 22 


what concerns the general public had during that 23 


kickoff meeting.  I don't even recall that I spoke 24 


other than just to introduce myself and welcome people 25 
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to the meeting.  But that was really my main function 1 


and then ultimately as the division director, once that 2 


certification decision was made, whether it was to 3 


approve it or deny it, then as the division director it 4 


would be my responsibility to sign that certification. 5 


  MR. GREENE:  I want to show you some notes 6 


dated 5/25/2017.  I believe, these were pulled off the 7 


public site or the DEQ public staff or -- sorry, staff 8 


files.  Is that the meeting you would have been 9 


referring to? 10 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  No.  I think, it was prior to 11 


this, probably some time in March or April. 12 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  This particular meeting, 13 


do you recall it? 14 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Not specifically, we had a 15 


number of meetings internally between staff, myself and 16 


the department, during which time we were trying to 17 


navigate the process and understand or make sure we 18 


understood what all the pieces were that needed to be 19 


considered as part of issuance of the 401.  And so -- 20 


did you have a question about the highlighted section? 21 


  MR. GREENE:  Yes, sir. 22 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay. 23 


  MR. GREENE:  If you can read that.  If you 24 


don't mind, read it out loud. 25 







 
 


Page 10 


 


 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay. 1 


  MR. GREENE:  I can kind of see over there. 2 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay. 3 


  MR. GREENE:  For the record. 4 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.  It says cumulative 5 


impact - how deficient and did we communicate 6 


expectation? Did they look at other pipeline projects? 7 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  And I'll go back to this 8 


meeting date, I believe, it's 5… 9 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  25, May 25 of 2017. 10 


  MR. GREENE:  Do you recall who was 11 


participating in that meeting? 12 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Not specifically, unless I -- 13 


sometimes I'll make a note in the margins of who might 14 


have attended. 15 


  MR. GREENE:  Uh-huh. 16 


  MR. Lane:  Can I just clarify one thing, are 17 


these your notes? 18 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Yes.  That looks like my 19 


writing. 20 


  MR. Lane:  Yeah.  Thank you. 21 


  MR. GREENE:  Very good.  All right.  And the 22 


highlighted section that you just read. 23 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Uh-huh. 24 


  MR. GREENE:  Can you explain what that note is 25 
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about? 1 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Well, I learned through this 2 


process, that it's not simply -- the 401 certification, 3 


not simply about water quality protection, that's a 4 


major focus.  But also cumulative impacts that might 5 


come about as a result of -- say, growth, for example, 6 


associated with a given project.  And what impacts they 7 


might have on water quality.  And so that was sort of a 8 


note to myself just kind of asking a question, you 9 


know, was that -- is that something that's important?  10 


Was it deficient?  Have we communicated expectations 11 


upfront?  What the expectations are? 12 


  MR. GREENE:  Do you know the answer to that 13 


question whether you communicated them upfront? 14 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Normally no, not specifically. 15 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  And so when we're talking 16 


about communicated them upfront we are talking about to 17 


the applicant, in this case, the ACP… 18 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Presumably, that's who we 19 


would be communicating with.  And it would be an 20 


expectation of staff to make sure. 21 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay. 22 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  That that communication 23 


occurred. 24 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  That (inaudible) you know 25 
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what document it is.  And you stated that you are 1 


learning the process of the 401 certification. 2 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Correct. 3 


  MR. GREENE:  Were you involved in any other 4 


401 certification projects? 5 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  I was.  One was the -- the 6 


first one that I recall was back when I was a regional 7 


supervisor was the former Tiger Woods golf course out 8 


in the Western part of the state.  And there were some 9 


implications associated with filling in, you know, some 10 


wetlands and some trout streams.  So that was my first 11 


experience in evaluating, you know, a 401 project.  The 12 


bulk of that evaluation actual heavy lifting the work 13 


was performed by the 401 staff, not myself. 14 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  During this time, we're 15 


talking 2017 as the division director.  How many 401 16 


applications were being reviewed at that time? 17 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  I would have no idea. 18 


  MR. GREENE:  Do you have a ballpark idea of 19 


would we be talking hundreds? 20 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  I don't know.  You know, that 21 


would be information I would have to get from a 22 


database.  That would -- that's something that as a 23 


division director, I'm not -- at least me when I was 24 


division director, I wasn't keeping tabs on how many 25 
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applications we're receiving in a given month, year, 1 


not just 401 program, but any program, you know, I let 2 


the program staff manage that workload. 3 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  All right.  Would, was the 4 


ACP 401 one of the larger projects at this time? 5 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  As far as I know, because it 6 


was one of -- the only one at the time that I was asked 7 


to be involved in and to sit in on meetings. 8 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay. 9 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Which isn't, you know, typical 10 


for every project.  So I presume that it was probably -11 


- using that as the metric was probably one of the 12 


larger projects. 13 


  MR. GREENE:  That was going to be my next 14 


question.  Why was there a need for these meetings?  15 


And from what I can gather were these meetings held on 16 


a weekly basis, do you recall? 17 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  I don't know, if they were 18 


held every week and typically, if we schedule meetings 19 


internally we'll have a regular schedule that everybody 20 


can plan around.  I'd have to look at my outlook 21 


calendar to see, you know, what was actually scheduled 22 


and when and with whom though. 23 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  And typically who attended 24 


these meetings? 25 
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  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  If it was with the department, 1 


which a lot of them were.  It would typically be 2 


myself, Sheila Holman, might include somebody from the  3 


office of general counsel, program staff, certainly.  4 


Jeff Poupart and or Karen Higgins and sometimes both. 5 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay. I've got.  Again, this is 6 


from the staff notes.  And this is a meeting dated 7 


September 8. 2017.  And at the top it says ACP meeting. 8 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Uh-huh. 9 


  MR. GREENE:  And as you  said earlier, you put 10 


-- who attended on the side over there on the margins.  11 


So I'll let you just review that.  Primarily, I'm 12 


interested, if you can just read who was attending at 13 


that point in time.   14 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  This meeting September 8th of 15 


2017.  My notes indicate secretary -- and these are my 16 


notes.   17 


  MR. GREENE:  Thank you. 18 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  I can -- again from my 19 


handwriting.  Secretary Reagan, Deputy Secretary 20 


Nicholson, Assistant Secretary Holman, Sheila Holman, 21 


Jeff Poupart, Karen Higgins, Sarah Rice, Toby Vinson 22 


(phonetic), Michael Abraczinskas-- Michael Pjetraj 23 


(phonetic) Jennifer Mundt (phonetic) and Bridget 24 


Munger. 25 
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  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  And what were some of the 1 


topics there initially at the top that are highlighted 2 


that are your notes?  What, if you can read those? 3 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  The highlighted notes are… 4 


  MR. GREENE:  And those are my highlights.  5 


They're not yours.  I'll clarify that. 6 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Right.  Correct. 7 


  MR. GREENE:  Are what is our role and what is 8 


happening nationally?  And what can we do to address 9 


disproportionate impacts? 10 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.  And what is our role 11 


and what is happening nationally?  Is that something… 12 


  MR. GREENE:  How was that brought up in the 13 


meeting? 14 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  My general recollection was 15 


just how does this project compare with what other 16 


projects -- similar projects that might be going on.  17 


And some general discussion about, well what are other 18 


states doing what are they faced with?   19 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  And then the second 20 


highlighted note there. 21 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  So what can we do to address 22 


disproportionate impacts? 23 


  MR. GREENE:  What does that mean, 24 


disproportionate impacts? 25 
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  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Well, by this time there -- 1 


there had been some concern expressed about the impacts 2 


of the pipeline to the surrounding communities.  And 3 


some of those impacted individuals or entities felt 4 


that they were shouldering. I guess, for lack of a 5 


better word, more of an impact than they felt was 6 


appropriate. 7 


  And so this is sort of a note that, you know, 8 


my attempt to summarize, well, is that an issue?  And 9 


if it is, is there anything we can do about it?  Is it 10 


outside the scope of the 401 permit?  Not to say that 11 


it might not be true, but we're constrained by what's 12 


in the 401 regulations.  That's what we're looking at.  13 


So some of these things may or may not fall within the 14 


scope of what those regulations allow us to do or 15 


control. 16 


  MR. GREENE:  In meetings such as this, and 17 


which it was a topic were there varying opinions on 18 


that? 19 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Not -- well, I'm sure there 20 


are like any meeting that, I don't know, I've been to 21 


many meetings, unless I'm sitting by myself, where I'm 22 


in total agreement with what other people are saying.  23 


I don't recall anything specifically.  Nothing that 24 


stands out where somebody, you know, said something 25 
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that was significantly counter to what the rest of the 1 


group might have felt. 2 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay. 3 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Or expressed. 4 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  And looking at a lot of 5 


these staff file notes.  It seems like this cumulative 6 


impact was a regularly discussed item.  Do you recall 7 


discussing them at the majority of the meetings? 8 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Not a majority.  Initially, 9 


you know, although I knew or I had heard that 10 


cumulative impacts had to be considered, I didn't 11 


necessarily know in what context.  And for me, it was 12 


really an exercise in trying to filter out what's a 13 


true cumulative impact in the context of 401?  And me 14 


trying to understand that versus somebody alleging that 15 


something's an impact and should be considered, that 16 


maybe falls outside of the rules. 17 


  MR. GREENE:  Right.  And what was the 18 


department's position at that time?  How it relates?  19 


Like you just said someone, was it outside the rules?  20 


Do we need to really focus on this, at what cost or at 21 


what time consumption I would say?   22 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Well in, you know, in all of 23 


the meetings that I sat in.  The department, I guess, 24 


staff or management wanted us to make sure that we were 25 
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following the rules, you know, stick with the rules.  1 


You know, to the extent that there might be something 2 


that was a little bit of a gray area, then we'd want to 3 


– they’d  want to discuss that with us, or hear our 4 


opinion.  Let's say (cross talk). 5 


  MR. GREENE:  What's a gray area? 6 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  I think only in the context 7 


of, you know, and remember, there's a lot of discussion 8 


about jobs.  And does the pipeline really bring in the 9 


number of jobs that that it's alleged to bring in.  You 10 


know, the amount of money that it would bring in, you 11 


know, to the state and then there's some questions 12 


people were -- the public in particular, and some of 13 


the environment groups were questioning whether or not 14 


that was real. 15 


  My communication with staff was -- we just 16 


need to stick with the rules.  If that something that 17 


we would consider as part of a 401 then fine, let's 18 


consider it.  I don't know how it's considered.  I 19 


mean, I don't have the experience of other 401 permits.  20 


So I don't know.  But if it's something that falls 21 


outside the scope of a traditional 401 certification.  22 


And then, you know, people are entitled to their 23 


opinion.  But it may not be something we can really 24 


address through that 401 certification process.  25 
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  MR. GREENE:  Okay.   1 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  So stick to the rules of how 2 


this is to be determined, the certificate. 3 


  MR. GREENE:  Right. Were there any people 4 


above you that had a different viewpoint on how that 5 


would be addressed? 6 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  How -- what would be 7 


addressed? 8 


  MR. GREENE:  The cumulative impact and how 9 


that factored into the permitting process or the depth 10 


involved in determining it? 11 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Not to my recollection.  I 12 


think my -- in the meetings I was in -- it was repeated 13 


a number of times to follow the rules.  We need to be 14 


consistent, you know, with what we've done in other 15 


cases.  And again, so I don't know what we've done in 16 


other cases.  So I don't have that as a benchmark 17 


against which to compare this.  But the general 18 


communications that we'd received is, you know, we need 19 


to be thorough, we need to follow the rules, and we 20 


need to be consistent with what we've done in other 21 


presumably other 401 cases.  I defer to staff like 22 


Karen Higgins, Jennifer Burdette and even to some 23 


extent, Jeff as the section chief to make sure that 24 


that we were doing just that. 25 
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  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  And they had been in those 1 


positions or roles and had more of a knowledge base 2 


regarding the 401 permitting process? 3 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Absolutely. 4 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  Were the ACP meetings like 5 


this, were there other projects that had these type 6 


meetings during this time period? 7 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Oh, no (cross talk). 8 


  MR. GREENE:  On a weekly basis or on a regular 9 


basis did you have other projects outside the ACP that 10 


you would meet with say these individuals that you're 11 


meeting with? 12 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Other 401 project? 13 


  MR. GREENE:  Yes, sir.  Sorry.   14 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  I don't recall during my 15 


tenure, which was about eight months.  My -- to the 16 


best of my recollection, my time was spent on the only 17 


401 project that -- of any significance that I spent -- 18 


that I spent time on -- the only one that I spent time 19 


on that I can recall was ACP. 20 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  Here is another note dated 21 


September 29, 2017.  And it's -- I believe, is that 22 


your handwriting? 23 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Yes.  And I actually signed 24 


this one at the top. 25 
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  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  And we started talking 1 


about environmental groups. 2 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Uh-huh. 3 


  MR. GREENE:  If you can read that? 4 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  The highlighted section? 5 


  MR. GREENE:  Yes, sir. 6 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  So it's dated September 29 of 7 


2017.  And it's the third bullet, environmental groups 8 


have requested second public hearing, discussing with 9 


Secretary Regan when possible. 10 


  MR. GREENE:  Was that done? 11 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  I don't know.  I mean, that 12 


would be a question, you would have, you'd have to ask 13 


Karen Higgins.  14 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  And so how much 15 


interaction did your division have or that the 401 16 


water or the water quality division have with 17 


environmental groups? 18 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  You'd really have to ask 19 


Karen, you know, I know that conversations occurred, 20 


people had concerns that they would express.  But as 21 


far as the frequency and duration of whether or not 22 


there were other meetings that maybe I didn't attend 23 


that I don't really have a good feel for. 24 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  And the public hearings 25 
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that you've referred to, that's what an opportunity for 1 


the environmental groups and people that are affected 2 


to come to these and express their concerns.  Is that 3 


the primary purpose of a public hearing? 4 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Yes, that's correct. 5 


  MR. GREENE:  And then can you explain as a 6 


result, what takes place from those comments? 7 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  So if it's a true public 8 


hearing versus a public meeting.  And both are intended 9 


to provide the public information.  But a hearing is -- 10 


I would say more formal, and oftentimes a regulatory 11 


requirement for certain types of permits.  So for a 12 


public hearing then the staff would collect the 13 


information that was provided during the hearing, and 14 


then determine how that information, how those comments 15 


were germane to the issuance of the permit or the 16 


certification.  And then -- and make decisions about 17 


those comments and whether or not any changes to the 18 


certification or permit should be made to be responsive 19 


to the comments.  Were any comments outside of the 20 


rules, something that the public might have been truly 21 


concerned about?  But again, like my last statement, 22 


not something that wasn't necessarily consistent with 23 


what we're required by rule to consider.  So the staff 24 


would have to sift through those comments.  And 25 
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incorporate any changes that they felt were appropriate 1 


into the certification or permit prior to its issuance. 2 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay. 3 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  That's a very general overview 4 


of the process. 5 


  MR. GREENE:  Well, that's good news.  Good 6 


explanation.  Thank you.  There was also -- I think, 7 


was referred to as a listening session.  That's not a 8 


formal public hearing, is that correct in my 9 


understanding? 10 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  There was a listening session 11 


that I would characterize more of a public meeting, 12 


where we just want to hear what people think about a 13 


project or something that is before the agency. 14 


  MR. GREENE:  And what was the primary topic 15 


for that meeting? 16 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  It was the ACP pipeline. 17 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  Was that the one that 18 


involved environmental justice? 19 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  The one I'm thinking of, that 20 


I recall was at a community college and off the top my 21 


head I can't remember  whether it was (inaudible).  22 


That involved a number of staff that were there to 23 


listen to the public.  And then the public was invited.  24 


It was after normal working hours.  I think it started 25 
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around, I don't know, maybe 6:00 or 7:00.  And so the 1 


purpose of that was, again, to hear what the public's 2 


concerns were. 3 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  So during this process, 4 


there's obviously a clock that starts when the 5 


application is filed.  And how's the timing of all this 6 


affected by that?  How's the timeframe?  I believe its 7 


60 days, unless there's otherwise information requests.  8 


Can you explain the timing of the application process? 9 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  So typically, and I think to 10 


the best of my knowledge, the 401 certification is the 11 


same as how we handle other permits.  The clock starts 12 


once we receive a complete application.  So presumably 13 


once the application was received, the clock would 14 


start, staff would begin their review of the document.  15 


If there were deficiencies in that document, those 16 


deficiencies are communicated to the applicant, and the 17 


clock stops.  And traditionally, it would start over at 18 


60 days once we got that information, because it's 60 19 


days from receipt of a complete application.  So if 20 


it's incomplete, you know, we don't pick up where we 21 


left off.  So it's not 60 days total.  It's 60 days 22 


from receipt of a complete application.  And so it's 23 


incumbent on the applicant to make sure the application 24 


is complete if they want to ensure that it'll be issued 25 
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say within 60 days. 1 


  MR. GREENE:  And I suppose this is why it's 2 


important in that note, we referred to that you 3 


communicate the expectations to the applicant.  So they 4 


can include (cross talk) this notation? 5 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  You are referring to something 6 


specifically? 7 


  MR. GREENE:  No, no, that one, sorry. 8 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  The cumulative impact, how 9 


deficient and did we communicate expectation that they 10 


look at other pipeline projects.  So, yes, so what I 11 


typically would make sure that staff understood, and 12 


they did understand, is that if we determine something 13 


is deficient, you know, we're communicating to them 14 


clearly what is needed to make that project complete.  15 


And traditionally there's a lot of back and forth.  I 16 


mean, that's -- that is typical of virtually every 17 


permit we issue as an agency.  So I don't even know 18 


that I can ever recall an application that came in that 19 


was complete from the get-go. 20 


  MR. GREENE:  So then you'd have these 21 


additional information request.  Do you know how many 22 


were having additional information requests were 23 


involved with the ACP during your tenure? 24 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  I do not. 25 
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  MR. GREENE:  Do you recall reviewing the 1 


additional information request? 2 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  I didn't specifically.  I do 3 


recall having some impromptu meetings where I'd stepped 4 


into Karen's office, ask her if we got the information.  5 


And that's my typical style, if I know something's 6 


pending to go to staff and ask did we get it and how 7 


did it look. 8 


  MR. GREENE:  Who typically submits those to 9 


the applicant? 10 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Who would sign of on 11 


them(phonetic)? 12 


  MR. GREENE:  Yes. 13 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Typically it would -- the 14 


letters are drafted by staff, reviewed by and then 15 


signed by the supervisor of that program. 16 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  So at this point it would, 17 


be who issuing those? 18 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  It would likely be the staff 19 


reviewer that I recall was Jennifer Burdette and her 20 


supervisor was Karen Higgins.  So either would have 21 


been -- Karen signing the letter, although it may have 22 


been Jennifer.  But Karen or possibly even Jeff 23 


Poupart. 24 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  Would it ever go above 25 
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those? 1 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  I guess it could.  You said 2 


ever.  I don't recall… 3 


  MR. GREENE:  I'm sorry, he does.  In your 4 


tenure did you ever see it go above those? 5 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Not that I recall.  It's 6 


possible.  I just don't recall signing off on it, what 7 


we would call an additional information letter. 8 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  Would it be common that 9 


the director -- I'm sorry, the secretary's office asked 10 


to be notified or review any of these request? 11 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  That does occur.  In my 12 


experience, at least during my tenure as division 13 


director with both administrations, the one prior to 14 


this one and the current one, there's varying degrees 15 


of involvement by the department, and things that they 16 


indicate to me and then to by extension the staff that 17 


they want to be aware of or be made aware of.  And it 18 


will either involve a brief conversation, maybe a 19 


meeting or review of the document, that's not unusual. 20 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  And referring back to the 21 


9/29 notes. 22 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Yes. 23 


  MR. GREENE:  The highlighted point down there 24 


next to the bottom.  You can read that. 25 
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  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  The high -- the last bullet? 1 


  MR. GREENE:  Yes sir. 2 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Just the highlighted section 3 


or the entire… 4 


  MR. GREENE:  Just the highlighted be fine. 5 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.  The highlighted section 6 


is "expect to complete review by end of October." 7 


  MR. GREENE:  And what are you referring to in 8 


that note? 9 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  I probably have to read the 10 


entire document --  11 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  (Cross talk). 12 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  -- to get --  have the right 13 


context. 14 


  MR. GREENE:  Yes sir. 15 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.  And what was the 16 


question again? 17 


  MR. GREENE:  If you can't -- I think it was 18 


expected the information to receive, what was it, 19 


October? 20 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Says expect to complete review 21 


by end of October. 22 


  MR. GREENE:  And what would that be pertaining 23 


to, the review? 24 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  So this meeting was to discuss 25 
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some of the deficiencies that existed to-date.  And one 1 


of the previous bullets indicates most issues concern 2 


lack of specificity, which is not unusual for 3 


applications.  Somebody will respond to something that 4 


is in the application or in the rules in a generic 5 


sense.  And that doesn't necessarily tell us what we 6 


need to know to make the decisions we need to make.  7 


And so we were telling them that we still need more 8 


information and it needs to be more specific.  That 9 


most of the issues we had with their application 10 


involved the lack of specificity. 11 


  So we are constantly going back to the 12 


applicant to get more information.  They just wouldn't 13 


completely answer the question.  And they indicated 14 


that hope to get it to us by mid-October.  And if at 15 


all possible, we would try and complete it by the end 16 


of October, our review. 17 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  So you left in November? 18 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  November 1st of 2017.  So 19 


through October. 20 


  MR. GREENE:  So through October.  And at that 21 


time, it was still not complete? 22 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  That is correct. 23 


  MR. GREENE:  Do you know at what stage it was 24 


at or you -- did you anticipate it being completed at 25 
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any other time outside of obviously that note? 1 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  I don't know when it was 2 


completed.  I started working full-time in other 3 


responsibilities that the department really wanted me 4 


to focus on. 5 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay. 6 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  So I don't -- beyond -- 7 


  MR. GREENE:  Well, I guess --  8 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  -- about late October-9 


November. 10 


  MR. GREENE:  -- I guess your last day as the 11 


division director, did you have -- was there discussion 12 


regarding the anticipated completion date? 13 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Not that I recall 14 


specifically.  There was discussion and concerns 15 


expressed, and probably is reflected in my notes about, 16 


you know, windows of time that they had to start 17 


conducting certain phases of the project.  But which is 18 


not -- again, not unusual for applicants if there are 19 


things whether it's related to weather or other things 20 


that they kind of want to make sure we're aware of.  21 


From my perspective, that's fine, but we need to have a 22 


complete application, that's what drives the process. 23 


  Outside of that, not to sound ugly, I don't 24 


really care, you know, if it's getting close to winter 25 
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or through some window that we're going to miss if we 1 


don't issue the permit.  It's about issuing the permit 2 


or certification consistent with the rules, consistent 3 


with our guidance, and consistent with past 4 


certifications.  To me that's what drives our 5 


decisions, and not much else. 6 


  MR. GREENE:  How often would you say you met 7 


with the secretary's office, I mean, within the 8 


secretary's office regarding the project? 9 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay.  Could you clarify 10 


secretary's office?  I mean you're talking assistant 11 


secretary Holman or the secretary himself? 12 


  MR. GREENE:  Assistant secretary and the 13 


secretary himself, both. 14 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Well, just about every meeting 15 


if it involved the department in an environmental issue 16 


such as this pipeline here specifically, would have 17 


likely involved Sheila -- Sheila Holman is our 18 


assistant secretary -- and depending upon the purpose 19 


of the meeting, myself and then some program staff, 20 


Jeff Poupart, Karen Higgins more than likely.  There 21 


were a couple meetings that the secretary was involved 22 


in, higher level meetings, but those typically then 23 


would involve typically more staff than just me and 24 


Jeff.  It might involve other divisions as well and 25 
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people within the department that might have a role in 1 


helping us formulate, you know, decisions. 2 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  This is an e-mail coming 3 


from Chief Deputy Secretary Nicholson. 4 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay. 5 


  MR. GREENE:  And if you could just -- it is -- 6 


the portion that's highlighted, it's not highlighted on 7 


there, but it's darkened. 8 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Right. 9 


  MR. GREENE:  Could you just review that e-mail 10 


briefly?  Then I'll ask you some -- couple of 11 


questions.  Basically my question first is what is 12 


being asked for you to do? 13 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  The question? 14 


  MR. GREENE:  Yes sir. 15 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  The question specifically says 16 


"From each of your respective divisions what is our 17 


drop dead/response requirements on ACP?  I'm trying to 18 


determine how much time we might have to make some 19 


internal adjustments related to ACP, and what our 20 


counterparts in other departments are doing/thinking 21 


that might impact our thought process."  So the 22 


question again? 23 


  MR. GREENE:  Well, then the question will be 24 


did you have any further discussion with Deputy 25 
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Nicholson or anyone else regarding that question? 1 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  I may have.  Traditionally Mr. 2 


Nicholson would send a request for information.  I 3 


would communicate to staff, get that information, and 4 


then pass it along to management.  And there may or may 5 


not be a follow-up meeting or conversation. 6 


  MR. GREENE:  So what's your interpretation of 7 


what he was asking for? 8 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Based on what I'm reading 9 


here, it appears to be sort of chronology of events, 10 


you know, when did things come in, you know, what major 11 


milestones.  Typically to me, a major milestone in the 12 


context of a certification or permit would be when did 13 


we send add info letters, when did we get a response, 14 


things of that nature to help understand, you know, in 15 


other words the drop dead deadline, which I'm going to 16 


presume he means the statutory deadline or the 17 


regulatory deadline for issuance, where are we in that 18 


process. 19 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  And you had requested that 20 


information and we've got some follow-up e-mails and 21 


you did get it, but we're not going to go into that.  22 


One other thing, how did -- in your position, I'm 23 


trying to determine how much time we would have to make 24 


some internal adjustments related to ACP, do you know 25 
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what the reference to that statement is? 1 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Not specifically.  I don't 2 


recall Secretary Nicholson -- or Deputy Secretary 3 


Nicholson discussing those with me.  You'd have to talk 4 


to him because I don't really know, you know, what that 5 


means. 6 


  MR. GREENE:  Right.  Okay.  This was September 7 


6, and I think like I said you did receive that 8 


information.  It was a table.  I don't know if we have 9 


that particular table, but… 10 


  MR. BEERS:  Which ones is that? 11 


  MR. GREENE:  We don't really need to go into 12 


that, I don't think.  At that point in time, do you 13 


recall when you thought it was going to -- what the 14 


drop dead date was going to be? 15 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  No, not at that particular 16 


time.  Again, you know, Karen is very good, very 17 


thorough and very sensitive to the deadlines.  We don't 18 


want something to go statutory. 19 


  MR. GREENE:  Right. 20 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  And so I just really relied on 21 


her to ensure that we would meet deadlines and we could 22 


defend any request that we made which would then stop, 23 


you know, the clock so to speak. 24 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  Were you familiar with the 25 
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draft denial letter? 1 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Not that I recall.  A draft 2 


denial letter? 3 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay. 4 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  No. 5 


  MR. GREENE:   Did you ever see a draft denial 6 


letter in your position during the tenure of the 7 


division director? 8 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Not that I can recall. 9 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  So you do not recall ever 10 


seeing or have seen one issued during that timeframe? 11 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Specific to ACP? 12 


  MR. GREENE:  Specific to any project. 13 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  I may have seen a denial 14 


letter for a 401 certification, but I can't tell you, 15 


you know, what timeframe -- I mean over that 2-1/2-plus 16 


years that I was director, I believe I'd signed denials 17 


before, permit denials.  I don't remember if any were 18 


401 certifications.  They may have.  I don't know. 19 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  Were there any concerns in 20 


your position as the division director as to the time 21 


it was taking to issue or deny this permit? 22 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Any concerns that I had with 23 


respect?  No. 24 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  Did anyone outside your 25 
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division express any concerns about the time it was 1 


taking? 2 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Not that I recall.  Are you -- 3 


may I ask a clarifying question? 4 


  MR. GREENE:  Sure. 5 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  When you ask anyone outside of 6 


our division, are you talking about other divisions or 7 


you're talking about the general public? 8 


  MR. GREENE:  Well, within the administration, 9 


how's that? 10 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay. 11 


  MR. GREENE:  In the administration. 12 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Not that I recall. 13 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  Would you recall anyone 14 


ever saying that the department was trying to put up 15 


barriers regarding the permitting process? 16 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  No, I don't recall anything 17 


like that, no comments. 18 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  And did -- at this point 19 


in time you went through I think you said the end of 20 


October as the division director.  Did your change in 21 


positions have anything -- position have anything to do 22 


with the 401 process for the ACP? 23 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Not that I'm aware of, not 24 


that has been communicated to me.  I was spending about 25 
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75 percent of my time on coal ash related duties.  And 1 


we had a lot of projects or milestones that had to be 2 


met.  And what was expressed to me is they wanted some 3 


of the folks 100 percent on coal ash duty.  So a 4 


manager, senior level manager to focus on coal ash.  5 


And so I was asked to handle the coal ash program. 6 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  Did you object to that? 7 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  No.  Matter of fact I think I 8 


said -- I think I expressed in an e-mail that I'd do 9 


anything I could to support the department. 10 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  Do you have… 11 


  MR. BEERS:  Yeah.  So I just want to follow up 12 


on that.  So you said the -- not that you're aware of -13 


- is it -- did you think there's a possibility that 14 


could happen that they -- you were removed from that 15 


position because of your work with the ACP permitting 16 


process or that you were following the rules and could 17 


have been moved because of that? 18 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Not that I'm aware of.  You 19 


know, I, you know, in that capacity you kind of work at 20 


the pleasure of the administration.  It was an 21 


appointed position.  I was appointed by the previous 22 


administration.  When there's a change in 23 


administration, some of the division directors were I 24 


guess asked to move on.  I was not.  And at some point, 25 







 
 


Page 38 


 


 


you know, I guess there's an assessment by the 1 


administration to decide what they want to do, the 2 


direction they want the program to go. 3 


  The way it was explained to me is they needed 4 


somebody to focus  100 percent on coal ash because 5 


there are lot of timelines that had to be met, some 6 


statutory requirements that had to be met, and they 7 


wanted somebody to focus on  100 percent of their time 8 


on those activities.  And so I was asked -- I was told 9 


they're going to make a change in the division.  And 10 


they really wanted me to focus all my energies on coal 11 


ash. 12 


  MR. BEERS:  Had you pushed back in any way to 13 


redirect your efforts to follow just the rules to 14 


anyone above you prior to being removed from your 15 


position? 16 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  When you say push back --  17 


  MR. BEERS:  Well… 18 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  -- what are you talking about? 19 


  MR. BEERS:  Someone may have suggested that 20 


you do things a different way that may have been 21 


slightly outside of the rules of the 401 permit, and 22 


you were adhering to the rules strictly.  Do you 23 


remember having any conversations with anyone about 24 


your position of following the rules and someone 25 
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superior to you? 1 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  No. 2 


  MR. BEERS:  In any shape or even similar to 3 


that? 4 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  No.  The -- you know, the 5 


comments that I had heard is we need to make sure we 6 


follow the rules.  And you know, my nature is that's 7 


what I'm going to do in particular if the rules are 8 


clear, you know.  When they aren't, we have discussions 9 


within the division, sometimes with a department to 10 


figure out, well, what is this -- what does a 11 


particular rule mean.  You know, what’s our policy that 12 


we use to implement it.  And I may agree or disagree 13 


with that.  But at the end of the day, you know, I'm 14 


going to follow the rules.  And to me, it's just that 15 


simple. 16 


  MR. BEERS:  Do you remember any discussions 17 


where there was a difference of opinion on how this -- 18 


of how a certain rule applied? 19 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Not specifically.  There were 20 


discussions, you know, with the applicant, you know, 21 


where they may have felt that they provided the 22 


information we needed and we weren't satisfied with the 23 


information they provided.  And I would defer to the 24 


staff, you know, to Karen Higgins in particular and 25 
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Jennifer.  You know, they've reviewed a lot of 401 1 


certifications.  They are the subject matter experts.  2 


And I was comfortable that both Karen and Jennifer were 3 


following the rules and weren't treating the ACP 4 


applicant or applicants, the involved individuals any 5 


differently than they would any other applicants. 6 


  MR. BEERS:  I'm just going down the little 7 


timeline.  This is the hearing officer's report. 8 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Uh-huh. 9 


  MR. BEERS:  You may have seen one of these 10 


before.  This -- and here's the -- basically a timeline 11 


of the application -- I guess the additional request 12 


for information. 13 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay. 14 


  MR. BEERS:  And when it was received.  Look at 15 


this timeline, it looks like this number 2, additional 16 


information requests on September 14th.  Looks like 17 


you're receiving information on October 13 and that -- 18 


and that kind of fits the timeline of when you believe 19 


something was going to be reviewed, going to be 20 


complete by the end of October.  They sent the 21 


submission of that additional information, do you 22 


remember? 23 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  So in the earlier notes that 24 


I'd taken where there was an expectation that we would 25 
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issue certification by the end of October.  Again, you 1 


know, my recollection of that meeting was we 2 


consistently were not getting the information that we 3 


wanted.  And you know, if that information is provided, 4 


you know, do we think we can issue it by the end of 5 


October.  You know, there's an expectation.  And so, 6 


well, yeah, if we get everything we ask for, that's not 7 


unreasonable.  It really depends on the staff workload. 8 


  MR. BEERS:  Right. 9 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  If we don't because we have 10 


other projects, then, you know, that's the way it is. 11 


  MR. BEERS:  So it looks like the last 12 


information request came in October 13th related to 13 


this information request number 2.  And then on the 14 


26th another request for information went out. 15 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Okay. 16 


  MR. BEERS:  Do you recall any conversations 17 


about this request being put out there at the end of 18 


October right before you were taken from the division 19 


or your position? 20 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  No.  No, I don't. 21 


  MR. BEERS:  Okay.  Do you recall at the end of 22 


October having any understanding that the permit could 23 


have been issued at that time while you were still in 24 


your position? 25 
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  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Well, when I was in my 1 


position, in the conversations I had with Karen, there 2 


was a level of frustration by her and Jennifer that, 3 


you know, we would ask for something, we would have a 4 


meeting, we would explain our needs, and we'd get the 5 


information in, and it might answer part of what we 6 


asked for, and not all of it.  So there's this constant 7 


back and forth where we didn't get the information we 8 


needed.  Maybe there'd be a subsequent meeting, you 9 


know, where somebody would explain -- we would explain 10 


in greater level of detail again what we want to -- and 11 


that's really, I think that was my sense.  And up until 12 


the point I left, I didn't have any information or 13 


knowledge to suggest that it was imminent, issuance was 14 


imminent, it was still in the here we go again stage. 15 


  MR. BEERS:  Okay.  Do you -- at the point when 16 


you left, do you recall the -- what the primary 17 


information that was needed or need to be clarified, 18 


what those issues were pertaining to? 19 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  My recollection was we still 20 


had some questions related to the cumulative impact.  21 


We had some questions that I believe I recall a meeting 22 


to talk about the drilling activities, when they're 23 


going to drill under a stream and the mud that would be 24 


generated as a result of that drilling process.  So you 25 
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have to advance the borehole; you fill it with mud to 1 


stabilize it; you put in a pipe, and you've got to 2 


evacuate that mud, that drilling mud and to ensure it 3 


wasn't getting into surface waters or it didn't get 4 


spilled. 5 


  So towards the end of my tenure, the 6 


conversations we were having revolved around how 7 


they're going to handle the drilling activities, and 8 


making sure that any cumulative impact were thoroughly 9 


vetted and considered. 10 


  MR. GREENE:  So cumulative impact seems to be 11 


ongoing, it was at the beginning of those notes and 12 


ongoing.  So is that something that was on a regular 13 


basis discussed, you just weren't receiving the 14 


information from the applicant or… 15 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  No, I think it was just the 16 


difference of opinion which again isn’t atypical, you 17 


know, with the applicant whether we're talking a 401 18 


applicant or any other applicant for any other permits.  19 


Sometimes there's a difference of opinion with respect 20 


to what is needed.  And we hold meetings to discuss 21 


that.  And you know, at some point, as an agency, we 22 


have to draw the line and say this is what we need, and 23 


if we don't get it, then we will not issue a permit or 24 


certification.  I don't recall that we ever had that 25 
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kind of a conversation with the pipeline people.  But 1 


again, it was just this back and forth of discussing 2 


what we needed and why we needed it and then them 3 


agreeing to provide it in some fashion.  And then we 4 


would get the information and it wouldn't quite answer 5 


the question, and then we would send another letter.  6 


So there's a lot of that throughout the whole process. 7 


  MR. LANE:  We're at 2 minutes. 8 


  MR. GREENE:  Yes sir.  Thank you.  And I can't 9 


recall if I asked these questions.  If I did, I 10 


apologize.  Did you ever have any contact with the 11 


governor's office or people working in the governor's 12 


office regarding the ACP? 13 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Me personally? 14 


  MR. GREENE:  Yes sir.  As director? 15 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  As director, not that I did.  16 


I was never called to the governor's office or never 17 


met with the governor, any of his staff --  18 


  MR. GREENE:  Staff. 19 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  -- specifically.  There may 20 


have been somebody there that I didn't know in one of 21 


our bigger meetings.  But I don't recall that. 22 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  Was it ever relayed down 23 


to you that there was -- the governor was involved in 24 


the permitting process? 25 
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  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  No, that was not --  1 


  MR. GREENE:  Did you ever… 2 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  -- communicated to me. 3 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  And anything else with 20 4 


seconds to go? 5 


  MR. BEERS:  This is the last question.  Did 6 


anyone at any time above you, either Sheila Holman or 7 


anyone above, give you direction as to make additional 8 


information requests that you didn't agree with? 9 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  No. 10 


  MR. GREENE:  We certainly appreciate your 11 


time. 12 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Thank you. 13 


  MR. GREENE:  We appreciate --  14 


  MR. ZIMMERMAN:  Sure. 15 


  MR. GREENE:  -- all you do for the state.  And 16 


I'm going to -- the time is 11:15, and I'm going to 17 


stop. 18 


 19 


 20 


 21 
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 23 


 24 


 25 
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P R O C E E D I N G S 1 


  MR. GREENE:  I'm going to turn the recorders 2 


on. 3 


  MS. HIGGINS:  Sorry. 4 


  MR. Lane:  No, I'm just -- wherever you want.  5 


On the floor next to you. 6 


  MS. HIGGINS:  That takes care of it. 7 


  MR. GREENE:  Yeah, exactly.  Okay.  All right.  8 


Today's date is October 4, 2019.  My name is Kevin 9 


Greene.  My company is Eagle Intel Services.  And we've 10 


been contracted by the North Carolina General Assembly 11 


Subcommittee on the ACP for the purpose of gathering 12 


and reporting information back to the subcommittee.  We 13 


are recording this interview.  I would like to have 14 


each person present to state their names, their 15 


position and that you acknowledge that we are recording 16 


this interview.  I'll start with Tom. 17 


  MR. BEERS:  My name is Tom Beers.  I'm a 18 


investigator with Eagle Intel Services and I understand 19 


this is being recorded. 20 


  MR. LANE:  Bill Lane from DEQ.  I understand 21 


this is being recorded. 22 


  MS. HIGGINS:  Karen Higgins, division of Water 23 


Resources.  I understand this is being recorded. 24 


  MR. HARGROVE:  Drew Hargrove, DEQ.  I 25 
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understand this is being recorded. 1 


  MR. GREENE:  Thank you.  And I believe Mr. 2 


Lane, would you like to add something? 3 


  MR. LANE:  Yes.  So this interview is 4 


beginning at 11:30 -- 11:31.  I will -- based upon 5 


agreement of the parties, it will last no longer than 6 


an hour, so we will conclude no later than 12:31.  Also 7 


by agreement of the parties the questions that will be 8 


presented today will deal with Ms. Higgins' official 9 


duties related to the 401 water quality certification 10 


for the Atlantic Coast Pipeline.  There won't be any 11 


questions related to her other projects or to anything 12 


in her personal life.  Thank you. 13 


  MR. GREENE:  Thank you.  And thank you for 14 


being here.  You've already stated your name.  Would 15 


just -- would you give just a brief history of your 16 


employment within the department or within government? 17 


  MS. HIGGINS:  Sure.  So as of August 2019 I 18 


became the water planning section chief within the 19 


division of Water Resources.  Prior to that I was the 20 


401 & Buffer Permitting Branch supervisor.  I took that 21 


position in I think May of 2011.  Prior to that I was a 22 


training coordinator within the division and an 23 


environmental specialist with the division.  I started 24 


working for the state in August of 2005. 25 
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  MR. GREENE:  So the position that you were in 1 


beginning of 2011 through 2019 was -- what was that 2 


position one more time? 3 


  MS. HIGGINS:  My current position? 4 


  MR. GREENE:  Is it -- that's the current 5 


position? 6 


  MS. HIGGINS:  My current position, yes.  So I 7 


changed positions in August of 2019 and I'm now the 8 


Water Planning Section chief. 9 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  All right.  During 2017-10 


2018, during the ACP permitting process, what was your 11 


position at that time? 12 


  MS. HIGGINS:  My position at the time was the 13 


401 & Buffer Permitting Branch supervisor. 14 


  MR. GREENE:  And who did you supervise? 15 


  MS. HIGGINS:  So I have eight staff.  Do you 16 


want me to… 17 


  MR. GREENE:  Who was involved in the ACP 18 


permitting process that you supervised? 19 


  MS. HIGGINS:  So the primary staff that I 20 


supervised was Jennifer Burdette.  She was the 21 


environmental specialist. 22 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  And then the authorities 23 


above you, what was the chain of command above you? 24 


  MS. HIGGINS:  So when I was 401 branch 25 
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supervisor, my direct supervisor is Jeff Poupart.  He 1 


is the section chief. 2 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  And above him? 3 


  MS. HIGGINS:  Above him is Jim Gregson, the 4 


deputy director. 5 


  MR. GREENE:  Was he deputy director in 2017? 6 


  MS. HIGGINS:  I don't remember. 7 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  And can you explain your 8 


involvement with specifically the ACP, Atlantic Coast 9 


Pipeline permitting process? 10 


  MS. HIGGINS:  So we were -- we received an 11 


application requesting issuance of a 401 water quality 12 


certification and buffer authorization.  And those 13 


tasks on that application was reviewed by my staff and 14 


myself to recommend a decision. 15 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  Do you recall when you 16 


received that application? 17 


  MS. HIGGINS:  It was in May of -- I forget the 18 


year, but it was in May of… 19 


  MR. GREENE:  2017.  It really kind of reminds 20 


of that, 2017.  Did you have -- prior to receiving the 21 


application, did you have contact or discussions with 22 


the applicant? 23 


  MS. HIGGINS:  I did not have any discussions 24 


with the applicant prior to May. 25 
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  MR. GREENE:  Are you aware that other people 1 


within that division had conversations with the 2 


applicant? 3 


  MS. HIGGINS:  Are you asking about --  4 


  MR. GREENE:  Prior? 5 


  MS. HIGGINS:  -- my division? 6 


  MR. GREENE:  Yes. 7 


  MS. HIGGINS:  Yes. 8 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  And what were those 9 


regarding? 10 


  MS. HIGGINS:  That was regarding the 401 11 


application and buffer process. 12 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  Do you know when that 13 


began, when those conversations began or that process 14 


began? 15 


  MS. HIGGINS:  I don't have a date. 16 


  MR. GREENE:  All right.  And what would be 17 


your role or involvement in the process, the 401 18 


permitting process specifically with the ACP? 19 


  MS. HIGGINS:  So my job is to support my 20 


staff, help respond to questions that they may have.  21 


If we sent requests for additional information, I may 22 


be the one asked to sign that letter and inform 23 


management if there are questions that require their 24 


decision. 25 
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  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  And do you recall how many 1 


requests for additional information they received, the 2 


applicant received or that you requested? 3 


  MS. HIGGINS:  Without looking at it, I don't 4 


remember the specific number. 5 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  We'll get into that in 6 


just a few minutes.  At that particular time, were you 7 


dealing with other 401 applicants outside of the ACP? 8 


  MS. HIGGINS:  Yes. 9 


  MR. GREENE:  Do you have any idea how many? 10 


  MS. HIGGINS:  No. 11 


  MR. GREENE:  Would it be tens, hundreds? 12 


  MS. HIGGINS:  I mean, without reviewing our 13 


database, I don't want to speculate. 14 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  Were there any projects 15 


similar to the ACP that you were having to deal with? 16 


  MS. HIGGINS:  Can you clarify? 17 


  MR. GREENE:  Yes. 18 


  MS. HIGGINS:  Similar in what way? 19 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  Let's break it down into 20 


how would you categorize the ACP 401 permitting process 21 


compared to every other ones you receive within your 22 


division? 23 


  MS. HIGGINS:  It was a large project to 24 


review. 25 
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  MR. GREENE:  Did you have other large 1 


projects? 2 


  MS. HIGGINS:  Again, I mean, I don't remember 3 


every project we had in-house to review.  We did -- 4 


have any -- did we have any at the exact scale of ACP, 5 


no. 6 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  Had you ever worked on or 7 


supervised individuals working on a permitting project 8 


at the scale of the ACP? 9 


  MS. HIGGINS:  Yes, I have worked on similarly 10 


scaled projects. 11 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  And roughly how many? 12 


  MS. HIGGINS:  It would be a guess, so I -- 13 


several.  I couldn't really give a number. 14 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  Okay.  Were those before 15 


or after the ACP? 16 


  MS. HIGGINS:  Again, I don't -- before, yes.  17 


After, I'd have to review our files. 18 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  So you were experienced in 19 


dealing with large projects such as the ACP prior to 20 


the ACP permitting project? 21 


  MS. HIGGINS:  Yes.  Yes, I was. 22 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  And of those did the ACP 23 


project permitting differ from any -- in any way the 24 


procedures differ than those that you'd previously been 25 







 
 


Page 10 


 


 


dealing with at the same magnitude? 1 


  MS. HIGGINS:  They did not differ. 2 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  Did those projects receive 3 


the same type of scrutiny as the ACP? 4 


  MS. HIGGINS:  So I mean, I'm giving a broad 5 


general answer without --  6 


  MR. GREENE:  I understand. 7 


  MS. HIGGINS:  -- getting into the details, but 8 


we scrutinize every project thoroughly. 9 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  And what are some of the 10 


factors that you consider in issuing a permit? 11 


  MS. HIGGINS:  So the 401 rules spell out six 12 


criteria that we have to evaluate to issue our 13 


decision.  So we follow those six criteria. 14 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  And for the ACP project, 15 


out of those six criteria, were there any ones that you 16 


had more difficulty, or it was I guess more difficult 17 


to receive the information or to get the information 18 


from the applicant? 19 


  MS. HIGGINS:  Sorry, I'm just going through 20 


the six to see.  So I would say there were two factors 21 


that were relatively straightforward to receive the 22 


information from the applicant.  The rest were not as 23 


straightforward. 24 


  MR. GREENE:  And what would you say the most 25 
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significant one was? 1 


  MS. HIGGINS:  I don't think I could pick one 2 


specifically. 3 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  What of those four factors 4 


are we talking about -- well, name those four factors. 5 


  MS. HIGGINS:  Oh, this is a test. 6 


  MR. GREENE:  I'm sorry. 7 


  MS. HIGGINS:  So I don't have the rules in 8 


front of me. 9 


  MR. GREENE:  What about cumulative impact? 10 


  MS. HIGGINS:  So that -- the -- that was one 11 


of the four.  That is one of the criteria. 12 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  During the 401 processing, 13 


was there anything out of the norm of how you proceeded 14 


with the permitting process, how you would normally 15 


proceed with the process? 16 


  MS. HIGGINS:  There was nothing out of the 17 


norm. 18 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  At any time were you asked 19 


to have staff meetings on a regular basis? 20 


  MS. HIGGINS:  With my -- is the question was I 21 


asked to have meetings with my staff or with who do you 22 


mean? 23 


  MR. GREENE:  With other divisions coming 24 


together, I'm assuming other divisions on a regular 25 
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basis? 1 


  MS. HIGGINS:  Yes. 2 


  MR. GREENE:  We have notes that there's 3 


meetings on it seems like a weekly basis.  Do you 4 


recall that? 5 


  MS. HIGGINS:  I do recall the weekly meetings, 6 


yes. 7 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  And can you give us a 8 


brief summary of what those entailed and who 9 


participated? 10 


  MS. HIGGINS:  So without having a list of 11 


attendees, the -- my understanding the intent of those 12 


meetings was to provide updates on our status of our 13 


application review to management so they were aware of 14 


what we were doing. 15 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  Was that a common practice 16 


with the other large-scale applications that you'd 17 


previously processed? 18 


  MS. HIGGINS:  I did not have weekly meetings 19 


with previous projects. 20 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  How often did you 21 


communicate with the secretary's office regarding the 22 


ACP project permitting process? 23 


  MS. HIGGINS:  I mean, I don't have a record of 24 


every communication in front of me, so I'm not sure I 25 
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could answer that accurately. 1 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  And you previously stated 2 


that I believe the application was submitted in May of 3 


-- we determined '17, it is '17? 4 


  MS. HIGGINS:  I believe you. 5 


  MR. GREENE:  So thank you. 6 


  MS. HIGGINS:  2017. 7 


  MR. GREENE:  At that point in time, there were 8 


numerous requests for additional informations.  Was 9 


there a point during 2017 that you thought the permit 10 


was going to be issued or could have been issued? 11 


  MS. HIGGINS:  With -- can you clarify? 12 


  MR. GREENE:  Well, we'll get into -- we'll get 13 


into that --  14 


  MS. HIGGINS:  Okay. 15 


  MR. GREENE:  -- a little bit more.  In fact 16 


let's just go to kind of a little timeline of events 17 


that took place.  There were four requests for 18 


additional information that we have seen the letters. 19 


  MS. HIGGINS:  Okay. 20 


  MR. GREENE:  And do you want to go over  21 


MR. BEERS-- I can -- I'm going to show you, 22 


this is a copy of the hearing officer's report.  23 


Are you familiar with these with the process, 24 


right, the… 25 
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  MS. HIGGINS:  Yes, I'm familiar with the 1 


hearing officer's report. 2 


  MR. BEERS:  And who was the hearing officer? 3 


  MS. HIGGINS:  Brian Wrenn. 4 


  MR. BEERS:  And did he work kind of under you, 5 


with you, how did that relationship as hearing officer, 6 


what is that relationship? 7 


  MS. HIGGINS:  Sure.  So the hearing officer is 8 


often not within the decision-making chain so that we 9 


have an independent entity to hear public comments and 10 


provide recommendation to the department. 11 


  MR. BEERS:  Okay. 12 


  MS. HIGGINS:  So Brian does not work for me 13 


and never has. 14 


  MR. BEERS:  Okay.  Thank you. 15 


  MR. BEERS:  This is the final approved hearing 16 


officer's report.  It's dated January 22nd signed by 17 


Brian Wrenn.  I think this is from the files from DEQ.  18 


Second page there's a -- basically a table that shows 19 


dates of additional information requested and received.  20 


So I assume that's all the information that was 21 


requested, the dates when you asked for information to 22 


supplement the application and then the dates you 23 


received that? 24 


  MS. HIGGINS:  Yes. 25 
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  MR. BEERS:  And how is that usually requested, 1 


the additional information? 2 


  MS. HIGGINS:  Sure.  So additional information 3 


is requested -- for this particular project we issued 4 


letters.  We sent e-mails and then if we had a meeting 5 


or a phone call with the applicant and there were 6 


questions raised, they may have provided additional 7 


information in response to questions at meetings. 8 


  MR. BEERS:  Okay.  So is there official 9 


request that's followed up by letter than just other 10 


supplemental more informal receipts and requests?  Or 11 


is it all formalized through a letter or documentation 12 


somehow? 13 


  MS. HIGGINS:  It's primarily formalized 14 


through a letter.  If in the process we have just a 15 


quick question, we may have e-mailed the applicant for 16 


a small point to clarify and they may have responded 17 


via e-mail. 18 


  MR. BEERS:  Okay.  Okay.  So going with that 19 


timeline, this is a schedule of timing events that was 20 


from your notes from the ACP or section of the DEQ 21 


webpage. 22 


  MS. HIGGINS:  Okay. 23 


  MR. BEERS:  I'm just going to show it you, 24 


then I'm going to ask for it back so I can ask a couple 25 
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of questions. 1 


  MS. HIGGINS:  Okay. 2 


  MR. BEERS:  Okay.  Well, so on the hearing 3 


officer's report we see November 15th.  On that date I 4 


think there's request number 11/15, additional info 5 


number three (phonetic) received related to request 6 


number 3.  So there was a request number 3 on October 7 


26.  It looks like the final additional information 8 


received on November 15th.  So in your notes it look -- 9 


this is dated 11/20, so 5 days after that receipt of 10 


information.  You have a timeline that kind of breaks 11 


down when you received that final information.  And it 12 


looks like you plan on getting the additional 13 


information and you're actually making some plans for 14 


issuing the hearing officer's report and working 15 


towards the final permit.  Do you recall that timeframe 16 


when you were -- it looks like you had an understanding 17 


that the review was nearing completion and you're 18 


working towards a permit at that timeframe? 19 


  MS. HIGGINS:  I'm sorry, can you ask your 20 


question again? 21 


  MR. BEERS:  Yeah. 22 


  MS. HIGGINS:  I was reading and listening. 23 


  MR. BEERS:  Yeah, I understand. 24 


  MS. HIGGINS:  I'm sorry, I apologize. 25 
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  MR. BEERS:  Yeah.  I have had a chance to look 1 


at all this stuff ahead of time.  I understand it's 2 


been a while.  So that's -- that was your notes.  It 3 


looks like it's kind of a draft anticipated schedule of 4 


what may occur with the permit process.  It looks like 5 


there's some projected dates of when the hearing 6 


officer's report could be submitted. 7 


  MS. HIGGINS:  Yes.  It was a projected… 8 


  MR. BEERS:  Projected, right, projected.  So -9 


- and that date -- that's dated 11/20. 10 


  MS. HIGGINS:  Okay. 11 


  MR. BEERS:  And it's after that final 12 


information was received.  I guess the question is at 13 


that point in time did you have an understanding that 14 


you had received all the information that you would 15 


need at that time and were you trying to work towards 16 


the scheduling of the permit approval? 17 


  MS. HIGGINS:  So I mean, I don't remember on 18 


October 20th what I had reviewed or not.  We --  19 


  MR. BEERS:  November 20. 20 


  MS. HIGGINS:  -- I'm sorry, November.  Thank 21 


you.  November 20th.  We did not have adequate 22 


information to complete our review, so we asked for 23 


more information and that protracted the schedule that 24 


we thought we would be able to meet. 25 
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  MR. BEERS:  So you hadn't finished your review 1 


of the additional information received at that time? 2 


  MS. HIGGINS:  I don't know if we had reviewed 3 


all of it on this date.  It was 5 days after according 4 


to this.  I don't know if there was a weekend or not, 5 


so I don't know if we had completed our review at that 6 


time. 7 


  MR. BEERS:  Okay.  So I guess the question is, 8 


it looks like you're projecting out an approval 9 


process, but you don't recall if you had -- actually 10 


had the understanding that this permit they had 11 


satisfied all of the requirements at this point, you 12 


don't recall because you asked for more information? 13 


  MS. HIGGINS:  We asked for more information 14 


because they didn't sufficiently respond to our 15 


request.  I cannot recall on October -- I keeping 16 


saying that, November 20th, if we had reviewed all of 17 


the information provided. 18 


  MR. BEERS:  Okay.  Okay.  Let's move on to the 19 


next -- I think the next request for information was 20 


November 28th, is that the next one? 21 


  MS. HIGGINS:  That is the next one on this 22 


table, yes. 23 


  MR. BEERS:  So do you recall -- and that was -24 


- is that the final request for information at that 25 
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point? 1 


  MS. HIGGINS:  It was the final letter. 2 


  MR. BEERS:  The final official request written 3 


-- in a written letter? 4 


  MS. HIGGINS:  In a written letter, yes. 5 


  MR. BEERS:  Here it is, yeah.  So this -- 6 


that's the written letter on November 20th asking for 7 


that information.  I know it's a long letter, we don't 8 


have a lot of time.  So --  9 


  MS. HIGGINS:  Sure. 10 


  MR. BEERS:  -- it looks like it's looking for 11 


cumulative impacts information, does that ring a bell? 12 


  MS. HIGGINS:  Yes. 13 


  MR. BEERS:  Okay. 14 


  MS. HIGGINS:  It does ring a bell. 15 


  MR. BEER:  Okay.  So could you explain that 16 


final request, why that was made? 17 


  MS. HIGGINS:  Yes.  So we had several 18 


iterations of the analysis submitted to us by ACP.  19 


Each iteration got a little closer to answering our 20 


question, but it was either not sufficient or not 21 


correct and so we kept having to ask for additional 22 


information so that we could say they have completed 23 


the process.  So the version that we received prior to 24 


this letter did not sufficiently resolve the question 25 
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about cumulative impacts.  We had remaining questions 1 


and that's what this letter details. 2 


  MR. BEERS:  Unanswered questions that they 3 


didn't supply in their previous answers up until I 4 


guess November 15th? 5 


  MS. HIGGINS:  Correct. 6 


  MR. BEERS:  Okay.  Well, whose decision was it 7 


to prepare that letter and send it out? 8 


  MS. HIGGINS:  So Jennifer was the primary 9 


reviewer.  She and I met and we also discussed with 10 


Brian as the hearing officer as to whether the three of 11 


us had sufficient information to recommend a decision 12 


to the director and we did not. 13 


  MR. BEERS:  And that was the decision made by 14 


the three of you speaking? 15 


  MS. HIGGINS:  Yes. 16 


  MR. BEERS:  It was -- it didn't come from 17 


anywhere above you telling you to do this, it was your 18 


decision, the three of you? 19 


  MS. HIGGINS:  It was our decision. 20 


  MR. BEERS:  And some of this is based on 21 


information from the hearing officer's public comments, 22 


is that what Brian Wrenn was involved with this because 23 


he is involved in that aspect? 24 


  MS. HIGGINS:  Correct.  So as in the hearing 25 
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officer's report, so I'm going to flip to later in the 1 


report, Brian provides -- I'm trying to get the V&A 2 


(phonetic), so this Section 5 where Brian talks about 3 


the criteria with which to make a decision and a 4 


recommendation as to whether it's met.  As we discussed 5 


previously, one of those is cumulative impacts.  And 6 


so, you know, Brian made a conclusion in his report and 7 


recommendation based on the information in the 8 


application and throughout the hearing process.  So 9 


that's why he was involved. 10 


  MR. BEERS:  Okay.  Okay.  So moving to later 11 


dates… 12 


  MS. HIGGINS:  Do you want this back? 13 


  MR. BEERS:  Yeah, I'll take that back so I 14 


don't lose it all. 15 


  SPEAKER:  And he will lose it. 16 


  MR. BEERS:  Yeah. 17 


  MS. HIGGINS:  Oh, sorry, didn't know if you 18 


still needed the table. 19 


  MR. BEERS:  I know, I might need it again.  20 


I'll just keep it here and I'll just play… 21 


  MS. HIGGINS:  Okay. 22 


  MR. BEERS:  So there's some e-mails that we 23 


pulled from the DEQ website.  It's your -- you could 24 


have a -- I'll tell you what, you can look at these 25 
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reports.  Because we are rushed for time, you can scan 1 


these.  I have a little summary that I can talk to you 2 


about these, that first e-mail is December 14th, looks 3 


like you're attempting to schedule a meeting with Linda 4 


Culpepper who I think was the division -- it's like 5 


division chief? 6 


  MS. HIGGINS:  Director --  7 


  MR. BEERS:  Director --  8 


  MS. HIGGINS:  -- or acting director. 9 


  MR. BEERS:   -- acting director.  And you're 10 


looking to try to schedule a meeting to speak with her 11 


about the hearing officer's report and you're trying to 12 


set that up for January 4th or 5th.  So I guess at that 13 


time you're anticipating -- at least on 12/14 you're 14 


anticipating that you're going to get what you need? 15 


  MS. HIGGINS:  Yes. 16 


  MR. BEERS:  You're anticipating that, but you 17 


haven't got it yet? 18 


  MS. HIGGINS:  Anytime we send a request for 19 


additional information, we anticipate a full and 20 


complete response from the applicant.  Whether we get 21 


it is up to the applicant. 22 


  MR. BEERS:  Because that's what they're 23 


supposed to do, right?  Okay.  So that's on the 14th.  24 


So there you're trying to I guess get this on the 25 
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schedule to work to get this approved and you're 1 


scheduling that.  Moving through some of those e-mails, 2 


there's a January 3rd.  It looks like you and I think 3 


Ms. Burdette are reviewing the hearing officer's 4 


report. 5 


  MR. GREENE:  January 4th. 6 


  MR. BEERS:  January 4th with Brian Wrenn.  7 


Your -- this communication… 8 


  MR. LANE:  I think that's -- hold on. Let’s 9 


slow down. Just be clear we're looking -- all looking 10 


at the same page. 11 


  MR. BEERS:  Okay.  I have a summary, so if 12 


she's going to -- I can pull those up. 13 


  MR. LANE:  Yeah.  Yeah, let’s do that. 14 


  MR. BEERS:  Okay.  So here's the e-mail from 15 


Brian Wrenn.  It looks like he has incorporated some of 16 


your changes into the hearing officer's report. 17 


  MS. HIGGINS:  Okay. 18 


  MR. BEERS:  Okay.  And it looks like you're 19 


getting ready for this meeting that was set up with Ms. 20 


Culpepper to review the hearing officer's report.  21 


There's some e-mail that -- where Bridget Munger is 22 


communicating with Mr. Wrenn where he agrees to send 23 


her the hearing officer's report to her rather than go 24 


directly to Ms. Culpepper.  Do you recall the hearing 25 
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officer's report going to the secretary's office rather 1 


than to the division director? 2 


  MS. HIGGINS:  I was not copied on these 3 


messages and I don't recall if I was aware that there 4 


was an exchange between Brian and Bridget. 5 


  MR. BEERS:  Okay.  Is it normal for the 6 


secretary's office to review hearing officer's report 7 


rather than the division director? 8 


  MR. LANE:  Let's clarify we're not talking 9 


about -- this is not an e-mail to the secretary's 10 


office.  This is an e-mail to Bridget Munger. 11 


  MR. BEERS:  No.  I think there's a -- well, if 12 


she doesn't recall that was -- those e-mails at that 13 


timeframe. 14 


  MS. HIGGINS:  Well, I was not --  15 


  MR. BEERS:  Yeah. 16 


  MS. HIGGINS:  -- part of this e- mail 17 


exchange. 18 


  MR. BEERS:  You weren't part of that exchange.  19 


Did you -- so the question I have, would it be a normal 20 


-- who normally approves the hearing officer's report, 21 


signs and sends it on? 22 


  MS. HIGGINS:  The hearing officer's report 23 


comes from the hearing officer.  I don't know if I 24 


would phrase it that there's an approval of it.  It's a 25 
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working draft and becomes final by the hearing officer.  1 


It's not uncommon to get review and feedback from 2 


others. 3 


  MR. BEERS:  So when you set up the meeting 4 


back in December to try to meet with Linda Culpepper to 5 


review the hearing officer's report, is that normal for 6 


you to review this report with the director? 7 


  MS. HIGGINS:  So the e-mail was anticipating 8 


that we would have a final report with a recommendation 9 


for the director.  It's common that we sit down with 10 


the director and review the final report.  So this was 11 


not to review and the director to modify a draft 12 


report.  The intent was to review the final report and 13 


go over any questions that she may have after reviewing 14 


the report. 15 


  MR. GREENE:  And I guess his question, is it 16 


common for the report to go to the secretary's office 17 


prior to that review with the director? 18 


  MS. HIGGINS:  So… 19 


  MR. LANE:  Again, this doesn't -- this is an 20 


e-mail to Bridget Munger, it was not to the secretary's 21 


office. 22 


  MR. BEERS:  Right.  You can answer that -- is 23 


that common? 24 


  MR. LANE:  Yeah, you can answer the question.  25 







 
 


Page 26 


 


 


I'm just clarifying that the e-mail… 1 


  MS. HIGGINS:  Sure.  So this -- I am aware 2 


that it has happened on previous 401 applications.  I 3 


can't speak to hearing officer's reports and other 4 


programs.  The 401 program is not the only program 5 


within DWR that has hearing officer's reports.  So I 6 


can't speak to the other programs --  7 


  MR. GREENE:  Right. 8 


  MS. HIGGINS:  -- but I'm aware of other 401 9 


hearing officer reports that were reviewed by 10 


individuals within -- outside of the division of Water 11 


Resources or Water Quality at the time. 12 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  So just read that top -- 13 


that top e-mail there.  That's the one that… 14 


  MS. HIGGINS:  Okay. 15 


  MR. GREENE:  So that's yours -- you had 16 


communicated with that e-mail, correct? 17 


  MS. HIGGINS:  I was. 18 


  MR. GREENE:  And what does it reflect? 19 


  MS. HIGGINS:  So the e-mail states someone is 20 


home with a sick child and out of school due to snow.  21 


The secretary's office wants to review the HO report 22 


prior to sending to Linda.  I told Bridget we would 23 


send a copy to them when we send it to Jeff.  I am 24 


doing another read-through right now, when do you think 25 
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you can finish your review?  The message is from Brian 1 


to myself and to Jennifer. 2 


  MR. BEERS:  So what did you understand from 3 


that e-mail? 4 


  MS. HIGGINS:  I don't recall this e-mail, you 5 


know.  So I -- not -- I don't -- if I said anything I'd 6 


be speculating on my memory. 7 


  MR. BEERS:  Right.  So, well, what is the body 8 


-- what is -- do you -- his message to you that you 9 


believe that to be true what he'd told you that he's -- 10 


the secretary's office is going to review it? 11 


  MS. HIGGINS:  I mean, I can't speak for Brian 12 


as to, you know, whether --  13 


  MR. BEERS:  Right. 14 


  MS. HIGGINS:  -- someone communicated that to 15 


him or not. 16 


  MR. BEERS:  Right.  But that is -- that's -- 17 


if that is truly an e-mail that he sent to you to tell 18 


you that the secretary's office wants to review it, in 19 


your experience is that a normal process for the 401 20 


hearing officer's reports? 21 


  MS. HIGGINS:  It doesn't happen with every 22 


one, but it certainly has happened on previous ones.  23 


So we don't have that many hearing officer's reports in 24 


401 land, so it's hard to speak in broad generalities 25 
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about what's normal when it's a very small handful of 1 


projects.  So I -- that's why I'm being a bit reluctant 2 


to speak in broad generalities when the sample size is 3 


so small. 4 


  MR. BEERS:  Okay.  Okay.  So for your 5 


recollection at that time you don't recall this being a 6 


big thing that you -- it was something that you 7 


remember today that this happening --  8 


  MS. HIGGINS:  I… 9 


  MR. GREENE:  -- or conversation like why are 10 


they doing this?  This is out of the ordinary, do you 11 


recall why they're… 12 


  MS. HIGGINS:  I do not remember being alarmed 13 


or any sort of red flags being raised --  14 


  MR. BEERS:  Okay. 15 


  MS. HIGGINS:  -- by this. 16 


  MR. BEERS:  That's in? 17 


  MR. GREENE:  This is just the follow up. 18 


  MR. BEERS:  Okay. 19 


  MR. GREENE:  Your follow-up, and I'll show you 20 


this in just a second I want to  – read it -- this is a 21 


e-mail.  “Just a few minor suggestions highlighted in 22 


yellow(inaudible).”  "I don't think Jennifer reviewed 23 


this today, so please go ahead and send to Jeff and 24 


others.  Since the department is reviewing the 25 
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documents before going to Linda, I'm sure that it will 1 


be ready for her by Monday.  Should we try to 2 


reschedule for later in the week?  We could try to try 3 


for after the EMC (phonetic) on Thursday maybe 3:30 or 4 


Friday."  And this is an e-mail dated January 5th -- 5 


Friday, January, 11:37. 6 


  MS. HIGGINS:  Okay. 7 


  MR. GREENE:  So at that point you're trying to 8 


still schedule to meet with Linda Culpepper and for her 9 


to review the hearing officer's report? 10 


  MS. HIGGINS:  For her to review the final. 11 


  MR. GREENE:  The final? 12 


  MS. HIGGINS:  Yes. 13 


  MR. GREENE:  The final.  And once she reviews 14 


the final, what typically happens? 15 


  MS. HIGGINS:  So the hearing officer's report 16 


has a recommendation and the director can agree with 17 


the recommendation from the hearing officer's report or 18 


not.  Staff may or may not have a different 19 


recommendation than the hearing officer.  We present 20 


all that to the director.  The director considers it 21 


and they ultimately make the final decision. 22 


  MR. GREENE:  Whether a permit will be issued 23 


or not? 24 


  MS. HIGGINS:  Yes. 25 
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  MR. BEERS:  Okay.  In your experience there 1 


was hearing officer's report submitted at that final 2 


stage with all the effort that went into working on the 3 


hearing officer's report, is it typical for that to be 4 


approved or it's sometimes denied at that point, the 5 


director? 6 


  MS. HIGGINS:  Do you mean is the 7 


recommendation denied or is the project denied? 8 


  MR. BEERS:  The project denied, would it be 9 


denied? 10 


  MS. HIGGINS:  I have been involved in a 401 11 


review where at that stage the director determined to 12 


deny the project. 13 


  MR. BEERS:  Which one was that, do you recall? 14 


  MS. HIGGINS:  I do.  It was the Alcoa 401 15 


certification associated with their FERC license. 16 


  MR. BEERS:  Did -- was that similar 17 


circumstances as to this -- was there any other 18 


circumstances that may have been involved with that 19 


that would differ from this one?  Like do you recall 20 


the reason for that denial? 21 


  MS. HIGGINS:  I do.  I remember the reason for 22 


the denial.  It was related to the department of 23 


administration filing a lawsuit about ownership of the 24 


riverbed.  That was not related to the ACP.  That was 25 
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not a --  1 


  MR. BEERS:  Right. 2 


  MS. HIGGINS:  -- point of question in this 3 


particular project review. 4 


  MR. BEERS:  So in this particular project did 5 


you have any expectations that this would not have been 6 


approved? 7 


  MS. HIGGINS:  We did not expect it to not be 8 


approved.  Our recommendation was to approve.  And at 9 


no point were we told something different. 10 


  MR. BEERS:  Okay.  Had this been delivered to 11 


the director rather than going first another layer of 12 


review, how long would it take for that permit to be 13 


issued after it was reviewed by the director typically? 14 


  MS. HIGGINS:  It -- I don't know that I could 15 


give you a definitive date.  It's usually a short 16 


amount of time.  The clock is very tight and so we're 17 


usually recommending it to the director with not a lot 18 


of time before we run out of the clock.  So it's 19 


usually a shorter window. 20 


  MR. BEERS:  Like within a week or -- you mean 21 


a short window like you're talking weeks, months, days? 22 


  MS. HIGGINS:  Oh, I mean the ones I'm thinking 23 


of a couple days to probably not more than a week. 24 


  MR. BEERS:  Okay.  So a few days, an average 25 
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that you expect it, wouldn’t have been weeks typically?  1 


So I'm -- we're just talking about --  2 


  MS. HIGGINS:  Sure. 3 


  MR. GREENE:  -- what you would expect. 4 


  MS. HIGGINS:  Right.  So I can't think of any 5 


examples where it was several weeks. 6 


  MR. BEERS:  Okay.  In this case there was 7 


another layer of review.  Rather than anticipating 8 


going to Culpepper for review, it went to secretary's 9 


office for another layer of review.  The permit in this 10 


case was issued January 26th.  So that was 20 -- 11 


roughly 20 days later.  Is that extended that -- well, 12 


let me ask you a different question.  Do you know what 13 


came of the review from the secretary's office?  Were 14 


you informed what they found from that review with the 15 


report? 16 


  MS. HIGGINS:  So I… 17 


  MR. GREENE:  Can I interject right here? 18 


  MR. BEERES:  Yeah. 19 


  MS. HIGGINS:  I was… 20 


  MR. GREENE:  Hold on. 21 


  MS. HIGGINS:  I just -- I would… 22 


  MR. GREENE:  I'll show you a document. 23 


  MS. HIGGINS:  Sure.  So I wouldn't quite agree 24 


with your characterization of the review steps, but I 25 
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don't recall whether I saw any edits from the -- from 1 


Bridget to Brian.  I don't recall if I saw that or not. 2 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  Let me ask the question 3 


then, if it was going to this -- Mr. Brian's words in 4 


his e-mail that the secretary's office, would Bridget 5 


have been the person to review the document or would 6 


there be someone else at the secretary's office that 7 


would actually -- looking at the document for accuracy 8 


or what would they be looking at? 9 


  MS. HIGGINS:  You would have to ask the 10 


secretary's office who reviewed it.  I -- someone spoke 11 


to Brian, which is why he made the statement.  That was 12 


not conveyed to me, so I can't speak for who in the 13 


secretary's office may or may not have looked at that. 14 


  MR. GREENE:  So you don't know how he was 15 


notified or… 16 


  MS. HIGGINS:  I do not. 17 


  MR. BEERS:  Okay.  And you don't know the 18 


result of that review with the secretary, if it was 19 


reviewed or who reviewed it, you weren't informed of 20 


that? 21 


  MS. HIGGINS:  So what I can say is that I 22 


don't remember seeing like a track changes or redlined 23 


version of edits from the secretary's office.  I can 24 


say that the hearing officer's recommendation was not 25 
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changed. 1 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  Do you recall meeting with 2 


the secretary regarding this? 3 


  MS. HIGGINS:  Yes.  I've met with the 4 


secretary and others on those, yes. 5 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  Do you recall a -- this is 6 


your -- I'll let you identify them, but these were 7 


taken off the staff files.  Are these your notes? 8 


  MS. HIGGINS:  Yes, those look like my notes. 9 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  And what -- I have 10 


actually highlighted that top thing.  And I believe 11 


there's a date up there 1/12? 12 


  MS. HIGGINS:  Yes. 13 


  MR. GREENE:  And if you can just read what 14 


your notes state there? 15 


  MS. HIGGINS:  Sure.  So it says it's a meeting 16 


with Secretary Regan, with Sheila, Linda and Brian.  17 


Questions regarding -- do you just want me to read the 18 


highlighted… 19 


  MR. GREENE:  Yes ma'am. 20 


  MS. HIGGINS:  Okay.  Sorry.  Questions 21 


regarding cumulative analysis, what info does commerce 22 


have?  Send the summary of conclusions.  And then it 23 


says "Hearing officer recommendations." 24 


  MR. GREENE:  Can you add a little more context 25 
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to what that meeting was about in reference to your 1 


notes there? 2 


  MS. HIGGINS:  Sure.  So as I stated 3 


previously, meetings -- the weekly meetings as well as 4 


this meeting was to provide a status update on where we 5 


were on the review of the application and responses to 6 


additional information requests we had sent. 7 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  And so is this regarding -8 


- what issues were being addressed this time? 9 


  MS. HIGGINS:  So I -- we provided an update to 10 


the secretary that some of the challenges we felt as 11 


staff we were having with the applicant was trying to 12 


reconcile the information they were portraying in the 13 


cumulative impacts analysis that there wouldn't be any 14 


with their website and commercials we were hearing on 15 


the radio about all the economic development that was 16 


going to result from this project.  So we were reading 17 


information that there was going to be all this 18 


economic development and then they were telling us 19 


there was nothing foreseeable happening.  And so we 20 


were having a challenge kind of reconciling those two 21 


pieces of information coming from the applicant.  And 22 


so that's what we talked about at the meeting. 23 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  So this would have been 24 


after you reviewed the hearing officer's report I 25 
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believe we got the 4th or 5th, whatever timeframe that 1 


was.  And then you met on the 12th.  So as -- per your 2 


review of the hearing officer report with Brian -- 3 


well, Brian's, you know, the report, were those 4 


concerns addressed to him, Brian, prior to meeting with 5 


the secretary? 6 


  MS. HIGGINS:  The concerns about the 7 


information from the applicant --  8 


  MR. GREENE:  Yes.  And the --  9 


  MS. HIGGINS:  -- is that your question? 10 


  MR. GREENE:  -- impact, yes ma'am. 11 


  MS. HIGGINS:  Okay.  Yes, Brian was involved 12 


in all the discussions we were having with the 13 


applicant.  He was -- I don't -- I shouldn't say that.  14 


I can't remember if he was at every single phone call 15 


and meeting, but he was certainly involved in the broad 16 


discussion about cumulative -- the cumulative impact 17 


analysis and the information contained therein. 18 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  So when you reviewed his 19 


work product I believe on the 5th and you were looking 20 


to set up a meeting with Culpepper, what changed in 21 


between that timeframe that now this -- it's -- this 22 


was becoming an issue, the impact has become -- 23 


cumulative impact is becoming an issue? 24 


  MS. HIGGINS:  It did not become an issue 25 
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between the 5th and the 12th.  It had been an issue 1 


throughout the entire application review. 2 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  In your review of the 3 


hearing officer's report, did you make recommendations 4 


that we needed more information on that? 5 


  MS. HIGGINS:  No.  It was in response -- the 6 


add info request came from that review of information 7 


in the application.  At the same time we were reviewing 8 


the application, Brian was also working on the hearing 9 


officer's report and putting that information together. 10 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay. 11 


  MR. BEERS:  The hearing officer's report was 12 


complete with all those answers presumably in the 13 


report.  This is after it's been sent to the 14 


secretary's office for review that you're having this 15 


discussion about these impacts.  Were -- was someone at 16 


the secretary's office asking to revisit the hearing 17 


officer's report, make edits to it, is this what the 18 


purpose… 19 


  MS. HIGGINS:  No.  The purpose of the meeting 20 


was not -- it was information seeking, status update 21 


from staff.  It was not providing directions on how we 22 


were to proceed with review. 23 


  MR. BEERS:  There was no request to go compare 24 


any documents or to reconcile what the ACP commercials 25 
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were saying versus what you were finding?  They didn't 1 


-- was there a request to do that at that point? 2 


  MS. HIGGINS:  There was not a request from 3 


Secretary Regan or Sheila to do that at this meeting, 4 


no. 5 


  MR. BEERS:  That was basically you giving them 6 


the status of what's going on? 7 


  MS. HIGGINS:  Yes. 8 


  MR. BEERS:  Okay.  That meeting? 9 


  MS. HIGGINS:  Yes.  It was us explaining where 10 


we were at in the process and what the back and forth 11 


was with the applicant. 12 


  MR. BEERS:  At that meeting do you recall 13 


getting information that the hearing officer's report 14 


is approved and that they're moving towards the permit? 15 


  MS. HIGGINS:  That was not -- I have no 16 


recollection of that being discussed at the meeting.  17 


Based on my notes, we discussed the questions we had 18 


had on the cumulative impact analysis and provided an 19 


update on that to the secretary.  And then we discussed 20 


the recommendations that Brian was going to put forth 21 


in the hearing officer's report. 22 


  MR. BEERS:  Which he already did put in, 23 


right? 24 


  MS. HIGGINS:  He had -- it was a discussion of 25 
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what are the recommendations.  So if you read the 1 


hearing officer's report, it provides recommendations 2 


on if 401 is issued how it should be conditioned.  And 3 


so that's the subject that we discussed, were some of 4 


those details of recommendations that Brian had 5 


regarding if it was issued, how it should be 6 


conditioned. 7 


  MR. BEERS:  Okay. 8 


  MR. GREENE:  Did the secretary's office ask 9 


you to contact commerce and get additional information 10 


from commerce?  Go ahead. 11 


  MS. HIGGINS:  They did not ask us to contact 12 


commerce. 13 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  And going back to -- and 14 


this is your notes from the 4th, "We've got to give the 15 


HO report decisions to Linda on Monday.  Bridget will 16 


talk with Doug (phonetic) about news release decision."  17 


So what is that pertaining to, the news release 18 


decision? 19 


  MS. HIGGINS:  So the department, when there is 20 


a decision that has a lot of public interest, they may 21 


issue a news release regarding the decision so that the 22 


public is aware. 23 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  So on the 4th it was -- it 24 


appears it's apparent that everyone is ready to move 25 
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forward with a decision? 1 


  MS. HIGGINS:  I mean, we were always working 2 


towards moving a decision -- moving towards a decision. 3 


  MR. GREENE:  Right. 4 


  MS. HIGGINS:  And you know, we worked through 5 


the month of January to get to a decision as we had 6 


since May of 2017. 7 


  MR. GREENE:  Right.  I understand.  And so you 8 


worked on Sundays and weekends per these e-mails? 9 


  MS. HIGGINS:  I did. 10 


  MR. GREENE:  Especially up towards the end.  11 


It was a lot of time invested on that.  So I guess my 12 


question though, were you anticipating the permit to be 13 


issued in the imminent -- and I say imminent, within a 14 


normal timeframe of 1 or 2 weeks at that point in time, 15 


January 4th? 16 


  MS. HIGGINS:  I was not. 17 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  Then why were we talking 18 


about notifying for the press release? 19 


  MS. HIGGINS:  Again, it's not uncommon that we 20 


work on multiple steps so that we're ready. 21 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay. 22 


  MS. HIGGINS:  So when we're working towards 23 


getting to that final decision and that hearing 24 


officer's report, another step could be the news 25 
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release --  1 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay. 2 


  MS. HIGGINS:  -- and so we go ahead and start 3 


working on that because everybody has a lot of things 4 


going on and the sooner we get started, the more likely 5 


we are to be ready. 6 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  Are you familiar with the 7 


draft denial letter? 8 


  MS. HIGGINS:  I am. 9 


  MR. GREENE:  And can you give us a little 10 


background on why that was prepared and did you prepare 11 


that? 12 


  MS. HIGGINS:  I did prepare that. 13 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  And when did you prepare 14 


that? 15 


  MS. HIGGINS:  I prepared it -- I think I first 16 


drafted it sometime in January.  I have to look at the 17 


file to see the date that it was… 18 


  MR. GREENE:  I think we actually have --  19 


  MR. BEERS:  January 1st. 20 


  MR. GREENE:  -- January 1st.  This one is in 21 


the file. 22 


  MR. LANE:  Can you show that to her? 23 


  MR. GREENE:  Yeah.  Let's see.  This a print 24 


from the webpage that shows it. 25 
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  MS. HIGGINS:  Okay.  So can you ask your 1 


question again, I'm sorry? 2 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  Well, we'll start out, can 3 


you give us a little background as to why you drafted 4 


that? 5 


  MR. BEERS:  This is the actual-- that's just 6 


the print from the webpage from the date --  7 


  MR. GREENE:  Yeah. 8 


  SPEAKER:  -- it's the -- that's the date that 9 


has no date -- the draft with no date on it. 10 


  MS. HIGGINS:  Sure.  So as I stated 11 


previously, when there is a public hearing we provide a 12 


hearing officer's recommendation and staff 13 


recommendation to the director for the director to 14 


consider, but the director makes the ultimate decision.  15 


So the director could choose to issue or deny.  If -- 16 


in this particular case our recommendation, both the 17 


hearing officer and staff, was to issue the project, if 18 


the director didn't go along with our recommendation 19 


and elected to deny it, this was prepared just so we 20 


had, you know, the address, the project number ready 21 


and then the director would fill in the reasons for 22 


denial based on whatever their conclusions were. 23 


  MR. GREENE:  Would that be something that the 24 


director would seek information from the people who 25 
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gather the information from the applicant? 1 


  MS. HIGGINS:  They could, but if they have -- 2 


so for this particular project we didn't have -- staff 3 


did not have any reasons to recommend denial.  So -- 4 


and we weren't asked to fill in this letter, so I can't 5 


speak to whether Linda would have asked us to fill it 6 


out or if she would have filled it out. 7 


  MR. GREENE:  Were you asked to prepare the 8 


letter? 9 


  MS. HIGGINS:  No, I was not. 10 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  And why -- you do that on 11 


a normal regular basis when you have a public hearing, 12 


is that what -- the way I understand it? 13 


  MS. HIGGINS:  Right.  So we had done this 14 


previously on projects that had a public hearing where 15 


we presented it to the director. 16 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  Can you tell us how many? 17 


  MR. BEERS:  Every project has a public hearing 18 


to draft a letter, that's -- is that fair to say? 19 


  MS. HIGGINS:  I would not say that, no.  So 20 


this was something that we did based on discussions 21 


during a previous project and so that was -- it was 22 


sort of the -- it may have been the first time we had 23 


done that, I'm not sure.  And as I said we don't have a 24 


lot of public hearings on 401 applications.  There's 25 
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not a large sample size to speak in broad generalities. 1 


  MR. BEERS:  Okay. 2 


  MS. HIGGINS:  But we had done this before and 3 


so that's why I recommended having this so it was clear 4 


that the director discretion to make the final 5 


decision. 6 


  MR. GREENE:  Is that a document that you would 7 


normally prepare when you're ready to present 8 


everything to the director? 9 


  MS. HIGGINS:  Yes, it was given to her at the 10 


same time as the draft 401 certification and the 11 


hearing officer's report. 12 


  MR. BEERS:  So just to be clear, when the 13 


hearing officer's report was reviewed by the 14 


secretary's office, you weren’t aware of what -- who 15 


reviewed it if it was reviewed, but you realized there 16 


was -- they didn't make any edits to that document as 17 


far as you know, to the final? 18 


  MS. HIGGINS:  No, I believe what I said was I 19 


don't know whether they made recommendations.  The 20 


recommendation from the hearing officer to issue the 21 


401 was not modified.  That was from the original draft 22 


I saw that Brian was preparing the hearing officer's 23 


report to the final -- throughout the entire process, 24 


the final recommendation was to issue. 25 
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  MR. BEERS:  So it was never modified by the 1 


secretary's office? 2 


  MS. HIGGINS:  Not that I'm aware. 3 


  MR. BEERS:  That you would -- you could 4 


compare the two documents and see if there were changes 5 


in there?  There were none? 6 


  MS. HIGGINS:  I never saw a version --  7 


  MR. BEERS:  You didn't see that?  Okay. 8 


  MS. HIGGINS:  -- from -- of (inaudible) edits. 9 


  MR. BEERS:  Okay.  And they didn't involve you 10 


in discussions to go back and edit?  Of course, that 11 


didn't happen.  You didn't have any discussions with it 12 


about that review process? 13 


  MS. HIGGINS:  I do not recall having any 14 


discussions with anyone in the secretary's office about 15 


that, no. 16 


  MR. LANE:  Two minutes. 17 


  MR. BEERS:  Okay.  Thank you. 18 


  MR. GREENE:  Two minute warning. 19 


  MR. GREENE:  All right.  We'll just wrap up 20 


the end process of how everything shook out because it 21 


appears everything appeared towards -- we have e-mails 22 


going back and forth on the weekend of the 21st; 19th 23 


is a Friday.  The 21st there is a e-mail at 8:50 p.m.  24 


On Sunday evening Wrenn e-mails Higgins back with final 25 
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HO report, ask questions about final permit.  Do you 1 


recall working and answering stuff on the weekends of 2 


the 21st, 22nd? 3 


  MS. HIGGINS:  I mean, I recall working on the 4 


project.  I don't have specific dates without looking. 5 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  What was the reason for 6 


the sense of urgency at that point in time? 7 


  MS. HIGGINS:  I don't know if it was a sense 8 


of urgency.  It's not uncommon that I work on nights 9 


and weekends. 10 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  And then I believe you 11 


sent Culpepper electronic copy on the 23rd with the ACP 12 


permit and denial letter.  Do you recall doing that? 13 


  MS. HIGGINS:  So again I don't have anything 14 


in front of me.  My recollection is Brian e-mailed 15 


Linda the hearing officer's report. 16 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay. 17 


  MS. HIGGINS:  And we -- I provided the 401 18 


certification we were recommending and then the blank 19 


denial template. 20 


  MR. BEERS:  Okay.  Have you ever -- were you 21 


made aware that there was a mitigation fund being 22 


negotiated between governor's office and the ACP 23 


partners related to the ACP? 24 


  MS. HIGGINS:  I was not. 25 
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  MR. BEERS:  You never were made aware of that? 1 


  MS. HIGGINS:  Not during the review of the 2 


application, no. 3 


  MR. BEERS:  Okay.  Did you find out after the 4 


fact? 5 


  MS. HIGGINS:  So I was actually on vacation 6 


the day the final 401 was issued and I read a article 7 


and that was the first I was aware of whatever the fund 8 


is. 9 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  No discussion between the 10 


governor's office regarding that and your department 11 


for mitigation purposes? 12 


  MS. HIGGINS:  They -- no one discussed it with 13 


me. 14 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  Did you have any other 15 


discussions with any of the governor's staff regarding 16 


the ACP permit? 17 


  MS. HIGGINS:  No, I've never discussed it with 18 


the governor's office or their staff. 19 


  MR. GREENE:  Okay.  Well, we appreciate it, 20 


but our time is up.  So I'm going to officially stop 21 


this at 12:31 and 50 seconds. 22 


 23 


 24 


 25 
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Water Resources
ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY


November 28, 2017


Atlantic Coast Pipeline, LLC


Attn: Ms. Leslie Hartz


707 E. Main Street, 19th Floor


Richmond, VA 23219


Subject: REQUEST FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION


Atlantic Coast Pipeline


Dear Ms. Hartz: 


ROY COOPER


Gorerno, 


MICHAEL S. REGAN


Secretar) 


LINDA CULPEPPER


Interim Direcro" 


DWR Project # 14- 0957 v2


Northampton, Halifax, Nash, 


Wilson, Johnston, Sampson, 


Cumberland and Robeson Counties


On May 8, 2017, the Division of Water Resources ( Division) received your application dated


May 3, 2017, requesting an Individual Water Quality Certification / Buffer Authorization from


the Division for the subject project. Additional information was requested by the Division on
June 27, 2017 and received on July 12, 2017. Two public hearings were held on July 18 and 20, 
2017 in Fayetteville and Rocky Mount, respectively, with a public comment period from June 16


August 19, 2017, to receive public comments on the proposed project. Comments received


are available for review at the following link: 
http:// edocs. deg. nc.gov/ WaterResources/ 0/ fol/ 548242/ Rowl. aspx. 


Based on the comments received, additional information was requested by the Division on
September 14, 2017 and responses were received on September 22 and 29, 2017. Department


of Environmental Quality, Division and Atlantic Coast Pipeline (ACP) representatives met on


September 29, 2017 to discuss the additional information that was received by the Division on
September 22, 2017. On October 16, 2017, the Division received follow-up information from
that meeting. The Division requested additional information again on October 26, 2017 and
received a response on November 4, 2017. The Division had a conference call with ACP on


November 7, 2017 to discuss the additional information that was received by the Division on
November 4, 2017 and received follow-up information on November 15, 2017. 


The Division has determined that the following additional information is necessary to continue
to process your application ( 15A NCAC 02H . 0502(c), 15A NCAC 02B. 0233( 8) and . 0259 ( 8) j: 


State of North Carolina I Environmental Quality Water Resources


1617 Mail Service Center I Raleigh, North Carolina 27699- 1617
919 807 6300







Atlantic Coast Pipeline, LLC


DWR Project # 14-0957 v2


Request for Add Info 11- 28- 17


Page 2 of 3


In our conference call, Division staff explained that ACPs Indirect and Cumulative Effects


ICE) Screening lacked an analysis of the project' s potential to stimulate economic
development and its potential impact on water quality. Staff suggested maps of
available water and sewer infrastructure overlaid with the pipeline route, water


resources, and existing developed areas and roadway infrastructure would be helpful to
identify areas with potential to experience project -induced growth (within the County, 
not County -wide). Once these areas are identified, a more detailed discussion of the


potential for each specific area to experience project -induced growth must be provided. 


a. Although ACP provided the mapping suggested by staff, there was no analysis of
the information provided in the maps, specific areas were not identified, a


detailed analysis of each area' s potential for project -induced growth was not


completed, nor was there a detailed discussion of the regulatory framework that
may be in place or needed to protect water quality. Please include each of these
in your analysis. 


b. Excerpts below from Guidance for Assessing Indirect and Cumulative Impacts of
Transportation Projects in North Carolina Volume Ill explain the analysis should


include comparing forecasts of future conditions with and without the proposed
project along with an explanation of the underlying system of logic used in the
analysis. 


Analyzing induced growth is an exercise in creating and comparing


forecasts offuture conditions. At least two forecasts are necessary: 
a Base or No -Action Forecast which describes future conditions in the


absence of the project or plan; and


an Action Forecast describing conditions in a future point in time
following implementation of the project alternative or plan... 


The key in forecasting is an underlying system of logic that can produce
reproducible and relatively consistent results regardless of the forecaster. 
It should be noted that forecasting is not the exact determination and
prediction of the future, but the logical extrapolation of likely effects that
will occur from known associations among different critical parts of the
system. (from page IV -4) 


c. The analysis should include a specific discussion of industries that need


additional natural gas capacity to operate in North Carolina. 
d. There should be a clear connection in the discussion to support the conclusion


statements. 


1 Guidance for Assessing Indirect and Cumulative Impacts of Transportation Projects in North Carolina Volume II: 
Practitioner' s Handbook. 2001. The Louis Berger Group, Inc. 
https:// connect. ncdot.gov/ resources/ Environmental/ Compliance/` 20Guides/` 20and/ o20Procedures/ Volume%200


2/ o20Assessment%20Guidance%20Practitioners%20Hand book. pdf







Atlantic Coast Pipeline, LLC


DWR Project # 14- 0957 v2


Request for Add Info 11- 28- 17


Page 3 of 3


In addition to the more robust analysis of ICE, please also provide more details


regarding the terminus of the project in the ICE document. On page 12 of the ICE, ACP
states that there is no commitment to potential customers or reasonably foreseeable
plans to extend the ACP beyond the current terminus. Include an explanation of the


factor(s) that led to proposed terminus of the project. 


Pursuant to 15A NCAC 02H . 0502(e) / 15A NCAC 0213 . 0233 / 15A NCAC 0213 . 0259, the applicant


shall furnish all the above requested information for the proper consideration of the


application. Please respond in writing within 30 days by sending one copy of all the above
requested information to the 401 & Buffer Permitting Branch, 1617 Mail Service Center, 
Raleigh, NC 27699- 1617. 


Please be aware that you have no authorization under the Section 401 of the Clean Water Act


or the Neuse or Tar -Pamlico Buffer Rules for this activity and any work done within waters of
the state or protected riparian buffers may be a violation of North Carolina General Statutes
and Administrative Code. 


Contact me at 919-807- 6360 or karen. higgins@ncdenr.gov or Jennifer Burdette at 919-807- 


6364 or iennifer.burdette@ncdenr.gov if you have any questions or concerns. 


Sincerely, 


Karen Higgins, Supervisor


401 & Buffer Permitting Branch


cc: Richard Gangle, Dominion Resources Services, Inc. ( via richard. b. gangle@dom. com) 


Spencer Trichell, Dominion Resources Services, Inc. ( via spencer.trichell@dom. com) 


USACE Raleigh Regulatory Field Office
DWR 401 & Buffer Permitting Branch file


Filename: 140957v2AtlanticCoastPipeline( Multi)_401_ IC_ NRB_ TAR_ Addlnfo4
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From: Doug Heyl  


To: Julia White (julia.white@nc.gov)  
Subject: Date: Attachments:  


Heyl, Douglas  


FW: ACP Update Notes - Jan. 3, 2018 Wednesday, January 3, 2018 1:36:00 PM image001.png  


North Carolina Department of Environmental Quality 919.707.9034 (Office) 
919.812.3415 (Mobile) 
douglas.heyl@ncdenr.gov  


Email correspondence to and from this address is subject to the 
North Carolina Public Records Law and may be disclosed to third parties.  


From: Munger, Bridget 
Sent: Wednesday, January 03, 2018 1:04 PM 
To: Holman, Sheila <sheila.holman@ncdenr.gov> 
Cc: Heyl, Douglas <Douglas.Heyl@ncdenr.gov>; Munger, Bridget <bridget.munger@ncdenr.gov> 
Subject: ACP Update Notes ‐ Jan. 3, 2018  


ACP Weekly Update Notes Jan. 3, 2018  


DAQ: No written response has been received from Dominion following DAQ’s request for 
additional information on the air quality permit application for the Northampton compressor 
station facility. Mike A. has reviewed draft hearing officer’s report; it is in good shape.  


DWR: In response to the fifth add-info request, Dominion submitted a revised cumulative 
analysis report on Dec. 20. Information submitted is under review to ensure that all the 
requested information has been provided. Final edits are being made to the hearing officer’s 
report. Staff is meeting with Linda Culpepper tomorrow to discuss further.  


DEMLR - E&SC: Staff will issue another letter of disapproval to Dominion by Jan. 4, which is the 
15-day deadline date. The letter will include about 19 comments/items, which is down from 34 
on the last letter of disapproval. There is no set deadline for Dominion to respond once the letter 
of disapproval is issued. Staff said the timeline is working out that we may be ready to issue an 
approval for the E&SC and construction stormwater permit application when the 401 certification 
issues are  


 


resolved. Per standard procedures, DEMLR will not issue the E&SC or construction stormwater 
permit approval prior to 401/404 approvals.  







DEMLR - Stormwater: No information has been received from Dominion in response to the 
DEMLR’s requests for more information on the stormwater general permit and stormwater 
individual permit. Options for a public comment period are under discussion.  


Bridget Munger 
Public Information Officer 
N.C. Department of Environmental Quality  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







 


From: Wrenn, Brian L  


To: Higgins, Karen; Burdette, Jennifer a 
Subject: Date: Attachments:  


RE: ACP Well Testing 
Thursday, January 4, 2018 12:54:46 PM image001.png  


Ok, I think I have the comments and edits from both of you resolved. Karen, I made one change to the 
appendices order and double checked the references in the text but no changes to the Appendices other 
than that. I’ve included the well testing language about complaints, added the 500 feet zone around 
blasting, and the cumulative analysis write‐up as well. I think that covers it. I’ve saved the report with 
today’s date. Let me know what you think. Thanks.  


Brian Wrenn 919‐743‐8409 (office) 919‐491‐2616 (cell)  


From: Higgins, Karen 
Sent: Thursday, January 04, 2018 9:47 AM 
To: Burdette, Jennifer a <Jennifer.Burdette@ncdenr.gov>; Wrenn, Brian L <brian.wrenn@ncdenr.gov> 
Subject: Re: ACP Well Testing  


agreed  


Thanks‐ Karen  


Karen Higgins  


401 & Buffer Permitting Branch Supervisor Division of Water Resources 
Department of Environmental Quality  


919 807-6360 office 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







From: Wrenn, Brian L  


To: Higgins, Karen; Burdette, Jennifer 


Subject: a FW: ACP HO report 


Date: Friday, January 5, 2018 9:17:45 AM 


Not sure if either of you got in this am, but I’m at home with one sick child and another out of school 
due to snow. The Secretary’s office wants to review the HO report prior to sending to Linda. I told 
Bridget we would send a copy to them when we send to Jeff. I doing another read through right now. 
When do you think you can finish your review? Thanks!  


Brian Wrenn 919‐743‐8409 (office) 919‐491‐2616 (cell)  


From: Munger, Bridget 
Sent: Friday, January 05, 2018 8:56 AM 
To: Wrenn, Brian L <brian.wrenn@ncdenr.gov> Subject: RE: ACP HO report  


That sounds great. Thanks!  


From: Wrenn, Brian L 
Sent: Friday, January 5, 2018 8:44 AM 
To: Munger, Bridget <bridget.munger@ncdenr.gov> Subject: Re: ACP HO report  


I think the HO report is their focus this am. If it’s ok, we can send the draft to you when we send it to Jeff 
to review. Thanks.  


Sent from my iPhone 
On Jan 5, 2018, at 8:09 AM, Munger, Bridget <bridget.munger@ncdenr.gov> wrote:  


Hi Brian, 
If Karen and Jennifer will be looking at the report today, I can wait for that draft. Please let me know what 
you prefer. 
Thank you! 
Bridget 
(Working at home this morning: 919-268-0069)  


From: Wrenn, Brian L 
Sent: Thursday, January 4, 2018 7:25 PM 
To: Munger, Bridget <bridget.munger@ncdenr.gov> Subject: ACP HO report  


Please make it known that this has not gone through final revisions. Some of the cumulative impact 
language is new and neither Karen nor Jennifer have reviewed it at all. Thanks.  


 


 







From:  


To: Subject: Date:  


Brian‐  


Higgins, Karen  


Wrenn, Brian L; Burdette, Jennifer a RE: ACP HO report 
Friday, January 5, 2018 11:37:00 AM  


Just a few minor suggestions highlighted in yellow. I don’t think Jennifer will review this today 
so please go ahead and send to Jeff and others.  


Since the department is reviewing the documents before going to Linda, I’m not sure that it will 
be ready for her by Monday. Should we try to reschedule for later in the week? We could try for 
after the EMC on Thursday (maybe 3:30) or Friday (maybe 8:45 or 2:00).  


Thanks‐ Karen  


Karen Higgins  


401 & Buffer Permitting Branch Supervisor Division of Water Resources 
Department of Environmental Quality  


(919) 807-6360 office  


karen.higgins@ncdenr.gov  


https://deq.nc.gov/about/divisions/water-resources/water-resources-permits/wastewater-branch/401- 
wetlands-buffer-permits  


512 N. Salisbury Street (Archdale Building), Suite 942-E, Raleigh, NC 27604 1617 Mail Service Center, 
Raleigh, NC 27699-1617  


Email correspondence to and from this address is subject to the North Carolina Public Records Law and 
may be disclosed to third parties.  


From: Wrenn, Brian L 
Sent: Friday, January 05, 2018 9:18 AM 
To: Higgins, Karen <karen.higgins@ncdenr.gov>; Burdette, Jennifer a <Jennifer.Burdette@ncdenr.gov> 
Subject: FW: ACP HO report  


Not sure if either of you got in this am, but I’m at home with one sick child and another out of school 
due to snow. The Secretary’s office wants to review the HO report prior to sending to Linda. I told 
Bridget we would send a copy to them when we send to Jeff. I doing another read through right now. 
When do you think you can finish your review? Thanks!  


Brian Wrenn 919‐743‐8409 (office)  







From: Munger, Bridget 
Sent: Friday, January 05, 2018 8:56 AM 
To: Wrenn, Brian L <brian.wrenn@ncdenr.gov> Subject: RE: ACP HO report  


That sounds great. Thanks!  


From: Wrenn, Brian L 
Sent: Friday, January 5, 2018 8:44 AM 
To: Munger, Bridget <bridget.munger@ncdenr.gov> Subject: Re: ACP HO report  


I think the HO report is their focus this am. If it’s ok, we can send the draft to you when we send it to Jeff 
to review. Thanks.  


Sent from my iPhone 
On Jan 5, 2018, at 8:09 AM, Munger, Bridget <bridget.munger@ncdenr.gov> wrote:  


Hi Brian, 
If Karen and Jennifer will be looking at the report today, I can wait for that draft. Please let me know what 
you prefer. 
Thank you! 
Bridget 
(Working at home this morning: 919-268-0069)  


From: Wrenn, Brian L 
Sent: Thursday, January 4, 2018 7:25 PM 
To: Munger, Bridget <bridget.munger@ncdenr.gov> Subject: ACP HO report  


Please make it known that this has not gone through final revisions. Some of the cumulative impact 
language is new and neither Karen nor Jennifer have reviewed it at all. Thanks.  


Brian L. Wrenn 
Ecosystems Branch Chief Water Sciences Section 
NC Division of Water Resources 919‐743‐8409 (office) 919‐491‐2616 (cell)  


Physical Address:  


4401 Reedy Creek Road Raleigh, NC 27607  


Mailing Address:  


1621 Mail Service Center Raleigh, NC 27699‐1623  


 


 


 


 







From: Wrenn, Brian L  


To: Higgins, Karen; Burdette, Jennifer a 
 
Subject: FW: ACP hearing officer"s report 


Date: Friday, January 5, 2018 12:19:39 PM 


Attachments:  


FYI  


 
ACP_hearing officers rept_01052018.docx 


Brian Wrenn 919‐743‐8409 (office) 919‐491‐2616 (cell)  


From: Wrenn, Brian L 
Sent: Friday, January 05, 2018 12:19 PM 
To: Poupart, Jeff <jeff.poupart@ncdenr.gov> 
Cc: Munger, Bridget <bridget.munger@ncdenr.gov> Subject: ACP hearing officer's report  


Jeff, 
Please find attached the draft hearing officer’s report for the ACP project. If you have any questions, 
please do not hesitate to contact me. I’m at home with kids, so try my cell (919‐491‐2616). Thanks.  


Brian L. Wrenn 
Ecosystems Branch Chief Water Sciences Section 
NC Division of Water Resources 919‐743‐8409 (office) 919‐491‐2616 (cell)  


Physical Address:  


4401 Reedy Creek Road Raleigh, N 19681C 27607  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







From: To: Subject: Date:  


Burdette, Jennifer a  


Wrenn, Brian L  


RE: ACP hearing officer"s report Friday, January 5, 2018 4:15:00 PM  


Sorry for missing your call this morning. I was deep into the draft of the 401. Before I left, I just 
wanted to thank you for all of your help with this project. I enjoyed and learned a lot working 
with you.  


Take care, Jennifer  


Jennifer Burdette  


401/Buffer Coordinator 
Division of Water Resources - 401 & Buffer Permitting Branch Department of Environmental Quality 
919 807 6364 office 
jennifer.burdette@ncdenr.gov  


1617 Mail Service Center Raleigh, NC 27699-1617  


(Physical Address: 512 N. Salisbury St, Raleigh, NC 27604 - 9th Flr Archdale Bldg – Room 942F) Email 
correspondence to and from this address is subject to the  


North Carolina Public Records Law and may be disclosed to third parties.  


From: Wrenn, Brian L 
Sent: Friday, January 05, 2018 12:20 PM 
To: Higgins, Karen <karen.higgins@ncdenr.gov>; Burdette, Jennifer a <Jennifer.Burdette@ncdenr.gov> 
Subject: FW: ACP hearing officer's report  


FYI  


Brian Wrenn 919‐743‐8409 (office) 919‐491‐2616 (cell)  


From: Wrenn, Brian L 
Sent: Friday, January 05, 2018 12:19 PM 
To: Poupart, Jeff <jeff.poupart@ncdenr.gov> 
Cc: Munger, Bridget <bridget.munger@ncdenr.gov> Subject: ACP hearing officer's report  


Jeff, 
Please find attached the draft hearing officer’s report for the ACP project. If you have any questions, 
please do not hesitate to contact me. I’m at home with kids, so try my cell (919‐491‐2616). Thanks.  


Brian L. Wrenn 
Ecosystems Branch Chief Water Sciences Section 
NC Division of Water Resources 919‐743‐8409 (office) 919‐491‐2616 (cell)  







From: Wrenn, Brian L  


To: Higgins, Karen 
Poupart, Jeff 
Cc:  


Subject: Re: ACP - Draft Decision Documents 


 Date: Sunday, January 21, 2018 8:58:42 PM  


Karen, 
I accepted all of the edits on the HO rept. I looked at the 401 one last time. In condition 16, it 
references an exemption from condition #13. should that be #15 instead?  


I'll sign the document and send it to Linda, copying you and Jeff. Thanks for all of your help on 
this.  


From: Higgins, Karen 
Sent: Friday, January 19, 2018 9:26:01 PM To: Wrenn, Brian L 
Cc: Poupart, Jeff 
Subject: Re: ACP ‐ Draft Decision Documents  


Brian‐  


Attached are a revised 401 and HO report. I made the edits to the HO report based on your 
comments in the 401 and reviewed a couple other places as well. I used the HO report I sent 
yesterday with those track changes accepted, so the only track changes you see are those I 
made today.  


I also made the recommended changes to the draft 401. 
Please let me know if you have any further comments/changes for either document.  


Thanks‐ Karen  


Karen Higgins  


401 & Buffer Permitting Branch Supervisor Division of Water Resources 
Department of Environmental Quality  


919 807-6360 office karen.higgins@ncdenr.gov  


 


 


 







From: Higgins, Karen 
Sent: Thursday, January 18, 2018 10:00 PM 
To: Wrenn, Brian L <brian.wrenn@ncdenr.gov>; Poupart, Jeff <jeff.poupart@ncdenr.gov> 
Subject: ACP ‐ Draft Decision Documents  


Attached please find the draft 401 certification for ACP as well as the draft denial letter. Please 
review and send me any edits/comments etc. If you make edits in the document(s) please use 
track changes so I can look at them easily.  


Please send me comments tomorrow if possible, or at least Monday morning.  


Thanks‐ Karen  


Karen Higgins  


401 & Buffer Permitting Branch Supervisor Division of Water Resources 
Department of Environmental Quality  


919 807-6360 office  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







 


From: Wrenn, Brian L  


To: Culpepper, Linda 
Cc: Poupart, Jeff; Higgins, Karen 
 
Subject: ACP Hearing Officer"s report 
Date: Monday, January 22, 2018 8:41:00 AM  


Attachments: ACP_hearing officers rept_01222018.pdf 


Linda, 
Please find attached for your review the Hearing Officer’s report for the Atlantic Coast Pipeline project. I 
am happy to discuss this with you if you have any questions or comments. Thanks!  


Brian L. Wrenn 
Ecosystems Branch Chief Water Sciences Section 
NC Division of Water Resources 919‐743‐8409 (office) 919‐491‐2616 (cell)  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







From: Munger, Bridget  


To: Holman, Sheila; Heyl, Douglas 
 


Subject: Fwd: ACP Hearing Officer"s report 


Date: Monday, January 22, 2018 2:51:28 PM 


Attachments: ACP_hearing officers rept_01222018.pdf ATT00001.htm 


Please see attached. 
Sent from my iPhone Begin forwarded message:  


From: "Higgins, Karen" <karen.higgins@ncdenr.gov> To: "Munger, Bridget" 
<bridget.munger@ncdenr.gov> Subject: FW: ACP Hearing Officer's report  


FYI  


Thanks‐ Karen  


Karen Higgins  


401 & Buffer Permitting Branch Supervisor Division of Water Resources 
Department of Environmental Quality  


(919) 807-6360 office  


karen.higgins@ncdenr.gov https://deq.nc.gov/about/divisions/water-resources/water-resources-
permits/wastewater- branch/401-wetlands-buffer-permits  


512 N. Salisbury Street (Archdale Building), Suite 942-E, Raleigh, NC 27604 1617 Mail Service Center, 
Raleigh, NC 27699-1617  


Email correspondence to and from this address is subject to the North Carolina Public Records Law and 
may be disclosed to third parties.  


From: Wrenn, Brian L 
Sent: Monday, January 22, 2018 8:42 AM 
To: Culpepper, Linda <linda.culpepper@ncdenr.gov> 
Cc: Poupart, Jeff <jeff.poupart@ncdenr.gov>; Higgins, Karen <karen.higgins@ncdenr.gov> 
Subject: ACP Hearing Officer's report  


Linda, 
Please find attached for your review the Hearing Officer’s report for the Atlantic Coast  


Pipeline project. I am happy to discuss this with you if you have any questions or comments. Thanks!  







Brian L. Wrenn 
Ecosystems Branch Chief Water Sciences Section 
NC Division of Water Resources 919‐743‐8409 (office)  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







 


From: Higgins, Karen  


To: Culpepper, Linda  


 
Subject: draft 401 decision documents 


Date: Tuesday, January 23, 2018 1:22:54 PM 


Attachments: 140957v2AtlanticCoastPipeline(Multi)_401_IC_NRB_TAR_2.docx 
140957v2AtlanticCoastPipeline(Multi)_401_IC_NRB_TAR_DENIAL.docx 


Linda‐  


Attached please find an electronic copy of the draft 401 decision documents for ACP. I’m 
working on the bullet points.  


Thanks‐ Karen  


Karen Higgins  


401 & Buffer Permitting Branch Supervisor Division of Water Resources 
Department of Environmental Quality  


(919) 807-6360 office  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







 


Subject: DWR Discussion - ACP 
 


Location: DENR_GS - Rm 5301 - 10 Seats - Morrow Mount 


Start: Wed 1/24/2018 11:30 AM Wed 1/24/2018 12:15 PM Tentative  
End: 
Show Time As:  


Recurrence: Meeting Status:  


Organizer: 
Required Attendees:  


Linda‐  


(none) 
Not yet responded 


Higgins, Karen 
Culpepper, Linda; Wrenn, Brian L; Poupart, Jeff  


We wanted to block some time with you to go over the HO Report and 401 decision documents 
if you had any questions. I gave Bridgette a hard copy of the HO Report, draft 401 certification 
and draft denial.  


Thanks‐ Karen  


127  


Mack, J anet  


 


Subject: Location:  


Start: 
End: 
Show Time As:  


Recurrence: Meeting Status:  


Organizer: 
Required Attendees:  


(none) Accepted  







Canceled: ACP Team Meeting 
DENR_GS - Rm 5212 - 14 seats - Bodie Island Lighthouse  


Mon 1/22/2018 1:00 PM Mon 1/22/2018 1:30 PM Free  
 
Lucey, John D 
Heyl, Douglas; Kritzer, Jamie; Jill Warren Lucas; Munger, Bridget; Leonard, Laura  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







From: Higgins, Karen  


To: Morris-McLawhorn, Bridgette R 
Culpepper, Linda 
 
Cc: 
Subject: ACP - word document 


Date: Thursday, January 25, 2018 3:40:34 PM 


Attachments: 140957v2AtlanticCoastPipeline(Multi)_401_IC_NRB_TAR_3.docx 


Bridgette‐  


I put a paper copy of the 401 certification for ACP on your desk today – there are two places for Linda to sign. I will not be in the office 
tomorrow, so if Linda wants any changes to the 401, I’ve attached the word document to this email so you can edit as needed. If you do make 
any changes to the word document, will you please send me the final word version document for our records?  


Also, on the bottom of page two you’ll see email addresses for Richard Gangle and Spencer Trichell. Once (if) Linda signs the 401, will you 
please email them a scanned copy of the signed document, and cc me as well?  


Thanks‐ Karen  


Karen Higgins  


401 & Buffer Permitting Branch Supervisor Division of Water Resources 
Department of Environmental Quality  


(919) 807-6360 office  


karen.higgins@ncdenr.gov  


https://deq.nc.gov/about/divisions/water-resources/water-resources-permits/wastewater-branch/401- wetlands-buffer-permits  
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